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Preface 2023 
Part 1 of this book is an edit and an update of the book “Joseph Bradfield – Our Ancestor” written by 
Enid Tognolini from 1990 to 2000. I have changed the title, the layout, the font, sometimes the order; 
I have cut and reworded sections and added notes to make things clearer, I have added newspaper 
items from Trove the National Library online resource centre, but the first section of this work the 
connection of the family lines and the research documents and the birth, death and marriage 
certificates still remains mostly the work of Enid. 

I came across a copy of Enid’s book when I visited Jim Bratfield at Stroud Road NSW in 2006. I 
photocopied that book and retuned the original to Jim. I was astounded when I read about the life of 
Joseph Bradfield, my great-great-grandfather. I knew absolutely nothing about him. He was never 
mentioned. The family history on my Mum’s side of the family came to a blank wall with her 
father’s father. That is the father of Patrick Bradfield one Thomas Bratfield.  

The story will unfold.  

How did we forget the amazing character Joseph?  

Why the name is spelt Bradfield and Bratfield?    

How do you keep track when Joseph finishes up with 51 grandchildren? 

Family history can be a strange pursuit but it is the family that keep you going and who rekindle the 
interest. In my case my brother, Bruce, and cousins: in particular Bruce Lyons who spark the flame 
to keep me at it. And my aunty Beryl Lyons (nee Bradfield) has been a good source of information 
over the years and especially in these early months of 2023 while she has been in Byron Bay 
Hospital spinning me tales and recollecting her youth and days of adventure. 

Before we begin I’ll answer a question that is always asked. 

Are we related to John Job Crew Bradfield who designed the Sydney Harbour Bridge and devised 
various engineering works in Australia? The answer is No. His father came from Wiltshire, England 
and Joseph parents came from Norwich UK about 300km away. John’s father was John Edward 
Bradfield he was born in 1823, and his father Richard John Bradfield who married Ann Bailey was 
born on June 14 1801, in Bremhill, Wiltshire, England. I think Percy Bradfield started this myth, see 
notes later in book. 

I have added a detailed section, Part 2, about my grandfather Patrick Bradfield 1870–1960 and his 
line of the family. 

The detail in the book tends to follow the family line from Joseph Bradfield to his son Thomas 
Bratfield and in turn his son Patrick Bradfield and then Ivy Bradfield my mother. Their families, 
their brother and sisters, make up the vast family tree of this book. Future generations can use this 
information to link back to Joseph who came to Australia in 1818. 

 

 
Neville Maloney – Bangalow 2023 
Great great grandson of Joseph Bradfield 

Great grandson of Thomas Bratfield 
Grandson of Patrick Bradfield 

          Son of Ivy Bradfield

The pages and pages of lists of names 

 Much of Enid’s work included lists of people with numbers beside them.  I have re-formatted 
and simplified these lists. They do provide a valuable resource for future family historians to 
check if someone is related and to find the surnames of families as they change through the 
generations. I have added in a couple of places instructions to help interpret the lists, with just a 
little effort they can prove interesting information and become fairly easy to follow.  
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Preamble 

(Original 1999 edition Preamble of “Joseph Bradfield – Our Ancestor”) 
 
The following pages may be of interest to anyone who is descended from Joseph Bradfield 
and Ann Reardon, but I have compiled this booklet with the interest of my own family 
foremost in my mind. The Reader may copy or share with others, anything contained herein, 
provided that he / she acknowledges this Researcher's efforts.  
It will be found that I sometimes change between the spellings of Ann & Anne; Reardon & 
Riordan,· Bradfield ~ Bratfield Be patient, because these names change within various 
documents, and tend to confuse at times!  

Acknowledgements  
With the hope that I have not forgotten anyone who has assisted me, I present the following 
names, and thank them all most sincerely for their help and information: 
Pearl M. Kendrick; Mark James (Jim) Bratfield; Daphne Nicholls; Colleen Price; Eris 
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Eleanor McSwan; Christine King; William Good, Esq. Maclean District Historical Society 
Inc.; Clarence River Historical Society Inc.;  

Publications used for Reference  
GOOD W. A Forest of Blanches The Story of the Blanch Family 1838 -1988. Star Printery 
Pty. Ltd., Sydney 1988.  
MARSH Ann Davis Family & Descendants 140 Years in Australia 1848 -1988 North Coast 
News Pty. Ltd., Coffs Harbour 1988.  
It is to Pearl M. Kendrick that I offer a Special Thank You for the photo of our ancestor 
Joseph which appears on the preceding page. I was able to have it included in the book 
Australian Biographical and Genealogical Record Series 1 1788 -1841 (Published by 
ABGR in association with the Society of Australian Genealogists, Sydney 1992.) A small 
biography of Joseph appears on page 36 of that publication 
Enid Tognolini  
December 1999  
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Enid Tognolini and the Joseph Bradfield Book  
  

I wrote to Enid Tognolini in 2006, 
after I was shown a copy of her 
book on the Bradfield family. Enid’s 
replies show the pitfalls in 
preserving records and in particular 
digital data.  

I never met Enid but I owe her so 
much for the history she discovered 
without her work there would be 
no Bradfield Book in 2023. 

I am still using the old genealogy 
program Brother’s Keeper that she 
used and mentions in the first 
letter. Once you have invested so 
much time and effort entering data 
into one program it is hard to 
change to another, only some of 
the information can be transferred 
successfully. 

(Neville Maloney 2023) 
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Part 1 

JOSEPH BRADFIELD 1802 -1886 
Joseph and Anne are my Great Great Great Grandparents*. I say are rather than were 
because they have become very real to me during the last decade. Prior to this I had never 
heard the name Bradfield as an ancestor. But let us begin at the beginning - at least as far 
back as I have researched. *Written by Enid Tognolini 
Joseph Bradfield was born in the County of Norfolk, England, in 1802, the son of John 
Bradfield and Sophia Ward. He was baptised on 23 January 1803 at St. Peter 
Parmentergate Church of England at Norwich. He had brothers and sisters, aunts and uncles 
(see relevant family tree), and I would assume that he was named for his paternal 
Grandfather Joseph, who had married Sarah Hayhow at St. Gregory's Church in Norwich on 
06 February 1758. I have viewed church records of Norwich, going back to the early 1500s 
and the names Bradfield and Ahowe can be traced right to these days. I feel that Ahowe was 
the forerunner to Hayhow, as it must be remembered that few people could read or write in 
those early days. 

England in the early 1800’s 

To try to understand the circumstances that caused our Joseph to arrive in Australia in 

1818, let us think about the conditions that prevailed in England during that time. George 

the Third had been the country's Monarch since 1760, and by the time of our ancestor, 

Joseph's birth, the King's health had deteriorated. The question of the King's mental health 

and stability was established in 1811, and his eldest son, later to become King George the 

Fourth, acted as Prince Regent for his father as the Monarch's blindness and insanity 

increased. 

England had fought many battles with France, and during Joseph's young life the country 

had been embroiled in its wars with France and Napoleon Bonaparte, culminating in 1815 

with the now famous battle of Waterloo, and France's defeat. Constant wars had weakened 

England's economy, and the workforce was now flooded with soldiers and others returning 

to civilian life with the advent of peace. 

James Watt's invention of the steam engine heralded in a new era. As early as 1785 Edmund 

Cartwright had invented the Steam Power Loom, and with Richard Trevithick's Steam 

Engine in 1800, and Railway locomotive in 1804, the manufacturing trade was facing a new 

age - an age of unemployment as machinery took over many tasks normally carried out by 

skilled manual workers, and people engaged in Cottage Crafts. The Industrial Revolution 

was upon the people, and the Luddites went around destroying the industrial machines 

during the years 1811 to 1818; still further disrupting the employment situation for the 

workers. The Great Trade Depression of 1814 had disastrous effects, and the Courts faced a 

continuous stream of people who were charged with all types of crimes, from petty pick-

pockets to the hardened criminals. 

Joseph had been born, and lived through this extremely unstable era of history, until, at the 
age of 14, he committed the sin of breaking into the home of Mr. Samuel Rice near the town 
of Eye in Suffolk and stealing a silver watch. He was observed loitering in the area and the 
Constable soon had him under arrest. Joseph had thrown the stolen watch into the fields 
where it was found by the police. 
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Suffolk Chronicle - 02 August 1817 

Joseph Bredfield,* aged 14, indicted for breaking and entering the dwelling house of Samuel 
Rice, at Eye, and stealing there of a silver watch, was convicted; but, on account of his youth, 
he was recommended to mercy. It appeared that the prisoner had loitered about the house, 
waiting for an opportunity, when the prosecutor's house should be left. He then broke the 
window, entered, and carried off the watch from the chimney piece. Being pursued by the 
prosecutor, and a constable, he threw the watch over a fence into a ploughed field. 

Ipswich Journal - 02 August 1817 

The first prisoner put to the bar was Joseph Bredfield,* charged with stealing a silver watch, 
the property of Samuel Rice, of Eye. The prisoner is a boy about 14 years of age, and from the 
evidence of Mrs. Rice, had called at her house to ask if it was his way to school. Mrs. Rice 
shortly after went out with her child, and locked up her door; she was absent about 10 minutes; 
on her return she observed the window broken, and found that her husband's watch which she 
had brought down and hung upon the chimney piece was gone; she had observed the boy 
loitering near the house when she went out. The boy being suspected, an alarm was given, and 
Mr. Rice and a constable went in pursuit of him. The boy when overtaken, was observed about a 
mile and a half from Eye, to throw a watch into a field, where it was found, and proved to be Mr. 
Rice's watch. The Jury, after a short deliberation, returned the verdict of Guilty, but on account 
of his years, recommended him to mercy. 

*This is yet another spelling of the name Bradfield. 

Exactly why did young Joseph steal that watch?  
He had employment himself - his occupation being given as a Dyer, so one would assume he 
was working in the textile industry. His home was in Norwich, but it would seem he was 
living in Eye, Suffolk, on the 29 April 1817. Perhaps his father was out of work and young 
Joseph was trying to 'procure' extra money to assist his parents? Perhaps, because Joseph is 
my ancestor, I am trying to find excuses for his behaviour when, in fact, there was really no 
excuse. A boyish prank? Possibly. In truth we will never know; unless of course he left 
behind a Journal or diary - but that is most unlikely.  
I can almost feel the fear this young lad must have experienced when he stood in the dock 
awaiting the verdict from the Judge and Jury on that fateful day of 31 July 1817 – GUILTY. 
TO BE HANGED !!! Were his parents there to give their support, or did he face that awful 
trial alone? The Judge, when handing down the sentence of death on Joseph, made the 
decision to commute it to Transportation across the seas to the Colony of New South Wales 
- for the term of his natural life! This gracious gesture was given because of the age of the 
offender. (N.B. His height at this time is given as five feet and half an inch - surely still a 
child in many ways?) Joseph was then held in prison until 03 April 1818, when he left the 
land of his birth forever, aboard the ship Isabella. This was the first voyage to New South 
Wales made by the Isabella, and her Master was Captain Robert Berry. 
Try to picture this young lad, in company with all sorts of fellow convicts - the very bad to 
the first offender like Joseph, confined together, perhaps in chains (for part of the journey at 
least), for five long weary months, until they eventually reached this foreign soil we now 
call Australia on 14 September 1818. Had he remained in England, who knows what lay 
ahead for him? A life of crime? I doubt that; but a life of deprivation surely? Perhaps Fate 
did him a favour, but only Joseph himself could answer that!  
How did Joseph adapt to his new environment - the life of a convict in Sydney Town? 
Probably, at times with great hostility and resentment! On his arrival in 1818 he was put to 
work for the Government, as a labourer, possibly in road making. On 01 May 1819 he is 
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classified as a stonebutter, and is sentenced to one years hard labour for misconduct and 
neglect of duty at Sydney, by the Governor, Lachlan Macquarie. Together with twenty four 
fellow convicts, he sailed on His Majesty's Brig Elizabeth Henrieua to serve his sentence at 
Newcastle. 
By 08 September 1821 his occupation was a stonemason, and he was receiving 1½ rations 
from His Majesty's Stores. This was most probably in Sydney, where he was working as a 
carpenter for the Government during 1822. On 13 March 1823 he was assigned to 
Alexander Dickson of Newcastle as his servant, travelling with him (and others) from 
Sydney to Newcastle on the Sloop Elizabeth. 
Joseph was no longer a youth, but a man in the year of 1825, and by now must have been 
feeling his lack of freedom most acutely. He was still a convict, and working for Mr. Jos. 
Thew at Newcastle when he became a Runaway! Apprehended and returned to the 
Commandant at Newcastle, he was punished by receiving fifty lashes of the whip. Still 
around the Newcastle region in 1828, Joseph is now assigned as a labourer to Andrew 
Newton, who had his property on the first branch of the Hunter River. 
At long last, on 22 July 1831, Joseph is granted a Ticket of Leave (this is similar to a 
Parole). On that date our ancestor is described as being five feet and six inches tall (having 
grown 5~ inches since 1817), with dark brown hair, dark complexion, and hazel eyes. He 
was a Protestant, and his Ticket of Leave permitted him to stay in the district of Paterson 
Plains. Joseph was working at Tanilba Bay, Port Stephens, when he met and fell in love with 
a little Irish Convict by the name of Ann Reardon (sic).  

ANN REARDON circa1810 – 5th March 1872 (She died at Palmers Island NSW) 
Joseph Bradfield and Ann Reardon were married, with the consent of the Governor of New 
South Wales, on 02 July 1832 in the Church of England Parish of Christ Church, Newcastle, 
in the County of Northumberland, N.S.W. This marriage was witnessed by David 
Bowerman of Williams River, and Ellen Timson of Newcastle - both signing their names 
with a cross (X), as did Ann Reardon. Joseph apparently could write his own name. (It is of 
interest to note that David Bowerman and Ellen Timson were married only a few weeks 
after our ancestors.)  
One wonders exactly what Joseph and Ann were doing at Tanilba Bay in 1832. Ann was a 
convict too, so it is possible that she was a bonded servant with the Caswell family, who 
were resident at Tanilba House, situated on one of the finest sites of Port Stephens. It is 
more than likely that Joseph was also employed by the Caswell family, but this is pure 
conjecture on my part. At the time of their marriage Ann may have been 'assigned' to 
Joseph. 
Ann Reardon was born in Tipperary, Ireland, sometime around the years of 1807 to 1814. 
Who her parents were will probably never be known by any of us as no record seems to exist 
which contains that information. It is easy to see that the lass had no education, and quite 
possibly did not even know her own age. It will be noted on her Convict Indent of 1829, her 
age is given as 22 years; yet at her marriage three years later it is given as 23 years. To 
confuse the issue further, her death certificate of 1872 gives her age as 58 years! 
Ann Reardon / Riordan certainly needs our understanding and compassion when we 
examine her (known) background, and learn the reason for her being sent to Australia. She 
was in Surrey, and working as a cook and maid of all work when she was accused of 
stealing a pair of silk stockings. For this supposed crime she was sentenced to seven years 
transportation to the Colony of New South Wales, even though she had no prior 
convictions. She left London, England on 20 July 1829, aboard the ship Lucy Davidson, 
whose master was Captain William Wiseman, and arrived Sydney Cove on 29 November 
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1829. Ann was fortunate to be assigned to Roger Therry, Esquire, a highly esteemed Sydney 
Judge, and a known kinsman of that well known and much loved Catholic Priest, Reverend 
John Joseph Therry, who was responsible for the first St. Mary's Cathedral being built. Ann 
was described at that time as being a single woman, 5 feet 1 ~ inches tall, with a ruddy & 
freckled complexion. She had light brown hair, light hazel eyes, and had a small scar over 
her left eye and a burn scar on the back of her left hand. She was of the Roman Catholic 
Faith. 
Exactly where Joseph and Ann lived immediately following their marriage in 1832 in 
Newcastle, is not clear. It would seem that their first child Matthew was born 1833, probably 
in the Hunter River region, and then he was baptised the next year (1834) at St. Mary's 
Roman Catholic Church in Sydney. The other children were born on or near the Barrow-
Well Estate near Seaham, with their youngest child, Sarah being born in March 1847. In 
those early days Joseph was employed on Barrow-Well by George Mosman, Esquire, but 
it’s believed that around the 1850s (or even earlier) he was in a position to buy or lease 
property in Gloucester. 
Joseph must have felt like celebrating the occasion on the First day of February of the year 
1838, when at long last he received his Conditional Pardon from Colonel H. Snodgrass, 
Acting Captain-General and Governor-in-Chief of Her Majesty's said Territory of New 
South Wales and its Dependencies, and Vice-Admiral of the same. He was a diligent 
husband and father, and worked hard to provide for his family. From a list of subscribers to 
the Seaham Church Building Fund, we learn that Joseph had donated £5/ - he gave £2/-for 
Maitland Hospital Fund in 1889 and contributed very generously, often 3 or 4 times the 
average donated by most people, and regularly to various causes His sons and daughters also 
donated to the funds as well.. 

   
 
Joseph and Anne's eldest (living) daughter, Sophia, was the first of their family to marry, in 
1858 at Clarence Town, on the Williams River near Seaham. Shortly afterwards Sophia and 
her husband, John Thomas Blanch, left that area and went to live in the Clarence River 
region of northern New South Wales. I believe that her brother George also left for the 
Clarence around that same time, as he had established a farm in the area of Ulmarra by 1862 
when he married in Grafton to Mary Miller. 
The next 'child' to leave the family was their youngest son, Thomas, who married Bridget 
Callaghan in Clarence Town in 1864, and proceeded to a selection of land near Stroud to 
begin his own Dynasty. Thomas was the only 'child' who lived his life close by the original 
area of his (and Bridget's) birth. Joseph's youngest child, Sarah married in 1866 at Seaham 
to Frederick George Johnson, the eldest son of George and Elizabeth Johnson. Sadly, 
Frederick's mother died in February 1869, and is buried at Clarence Town cemetery. It is 
from this date that the change in the spelling of Joseph's surname is noticed - from Bradfield 
to Bratfield. 
Sometime around 1869 Joseph and Anne, together with George Johnson and his younger 
son William, and Matthew and Joseph Bratfield Jnr., accompanied by many other residents 
of Seaham / Clarence Town journeyed north to the Clarence River region, joining their 
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other family members - Frederick George & Sarah Johnson, Sophia and John Thomas 
Blanch, and George and Mary Bradfield. (It will be noted here that all members of the 
family did not adopt the surname of Bratfield, and even to the present day you will find 
descendants of Joseph and Anne under both of the surnames.) Joseph and Anne, and their 
sons Joseph Jnr. and Matthew, together with the Johnsons, settled on Palmers Island, in the 
lower Clarence River district. It was here, on 05 March 1872 that Anne Bratfield died, and 
was buried in an unmarked grave somewhere on that small Island in the Clarence River. 
Joseph's two remaining sons, Matthew and Joseph Jnr. lived on Palmers Island until they 
both married in 1878 - Matthew to Louisa Curtis at Goodwood Island (Clarence River), 
and Joseph Jnr. to Christina McDermid at Palmers Island. Joseph and Christina spent 
their married life in Grafton, while Matthew and Louisa remained in the Lower Clarence. By 
this time Joseph senior was living in Dobie Street Grafton with his son George and family, 
but on 14 September 1886 our Patriarch died (officially of Old age and general decay), and 
he was buried in the Grafton Cemetery. When his son George died in 1925, George's widow 
Mary had a tombstone erected, dedicated to the memory of Joseph and his son George. 
When Mary Bratfield died in 1930, no one thought to add her name to the stone, and that is 
how it remains today. 
When Joseph Bratfield died on 14 September 1886, it was exactly 68 years to the very 
day since he first set foot on Australian soil. R.I.P.    (Enid T 1999) 
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Below is the Suffolk Assizes (Court) record of Joseph’s conviction and a portrait of the 
gentleman that Joseph became 
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The documents on the next 7 pages  

1. The Certificate of the Verdict of the trial of Joseph Bradfield - This was in 1817 
Joseph was just 14 years old. (This document obtained by Enid Tognolini from the 
Public Record Office in London England in 1993 

2. Ticket of Leave – This today would be called being released on Parole. There was a 
condition attached to the “leave” and in this case Joseph could not leave the District 
of Nelsons Plains. This leave was granted in 1831, Joseph was 28. 

3. A conditional Pardon – in 1838 when Joseph was 35 he received a pardon for his 
crime of stealing a watch, some 20 years earlier. The condition of his pardon was 
that never return to England and if he did his original sentence would stand and he 
could be executed.  

4. The Marriage Certificate of Joseph Bradfield and Ann Reardon in Newcastle NSW in 
1832  

5. The registered death details of Ann Bratfield (BRADFIELD) (nee Reardon) 1872. 
This is where the spelling of the name gets confusing. The information for the 
records was supplied by their son Joseph who was named at birth Joseph Bradfield 
but named/registered the surname of his children Bratfield. He did not know or he 
had forgotten the maiden name of his mother. 

6. The registered death details of Joseph Bratfield (BRADFIELD) 1886. Again the 
surname details are nor consistent with the name on Joseph’s other official 
documents. In this case the information was provided by his son George who had his 
surname registered at birth of Bratfield. 

7. Grave of Joseph Bratfield (BRADFIELD).1886 - Wait a minute where not done yet 
with spelling of his name.  In 1817 the papers spelt is name BREDFIELD. Official court 
and government documents spell it BRADFIELD. Of his children 5 have surnames 
BRADFIELD and 2 have BRATFIELD. That chaos continues in the next generation as 
well. BUT WAIT, have a good look at his headstone the monumental mason made a 
mistake and a yet another version of the name is carved in stone.  

(Neville Maloney 2023)  
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Joseph Bradfield (Bredfield, Bratfield, Brateield) 
his headstone in Grafton Cemetery NSW 
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An interesting story about Ann Reardon, Joseph Bradfield’s wife, it 

gives us an indication of her standing in the community and her skills.  
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The Bradfield Families 
The family tree 2 pages back is a key to understanding the family many lines that result 
from our lynchpin ancestor Joseph Bradfield. 

If we use Joseph as a reference point, and he very much is. He is the sole member of his 
family (that we know of) who came to Australia. We have a fairly limited understanding of 
his siblings and his ancestors. He had two sisters; Sophia and Sarah and two brothers; John 
and Joseph. Their lives are ready for research we don’t know if any of their families or 
descendants came to Australia.     

We know the names of Joseph’s parents John and Sophia and his Uncle Joseph and two 
Aunties: Sarah and Elisabeth. We also know his grandparents on his father’s side Joseph 
Bradfield and Sarah Hayhow (they must have been born about 1735 because they were 
married in 1758). All of the family were born and lived in Norwich England about 180kms 
NE of London.  

Joseph’s Family in England 
Joseph and Ann have 7 children. The tree on the previous page gives brief details about 
them and the next 2 pages summarises the events and facts of their lives.   (NM 2023) 

 

  

Researching on Trove the 
National Library online resource 
centre for information to add to 
this book I came across 
numerous lists where Joseph 
contributed to community fund 
raising.  

He gave to hospital, church and 
funds to help people in need 
(one where their house burnt 
down). And he was always one of 
the largest donors, usually 2 to 4 
times what most were giving. 
The example here not only shows 
Joseph but also 3 of his children 
donating to the Patriotic Fund in 
1855. A fund to assist the widows 
and orphans of the Crimean War, 
it seems to have been a wide 
ranging and popular fund started 
by Queen Victoria. (NM) 
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Joseph and Ann lived initially 
around Newcastle when they 
were married. However from 
1835 until 1844 five of their 
children were listed as being 
born at Barrowell but that 
place no longer exists. It was 
located on the eastern side of 
the river opposite Seaham (see 
maps)    

The map below is from the 
1800’s  it indicates Barrowell as 
a new estate. On the baptism 
certificate for Joseph and Ann’s 
second child Mary Ann, born 
1835 it list G. Mossman as their 
employer and he is named on 
the map as the land owner in 
the Barrowell area. 
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THE FAMILY OF 

JOSEPH BRADFIELD  
and  

ANN REARDON 
& their 

DESCENDANTS 
 
 

 

Joseph and Ann had 7 children. 

 

1. Matthew       1833 

2. Mary Anne   09/07/1835 

3. George           1837 

4. Sophia    13/12/1839 

5. Joseph (Jnr)   06/03/1842 

6. Thomas    08/04/1844 

7. Sarah    23/03/1847 

 

  

The following section is about each of Joseph Bradfield 
and Ann Reardon’s children and their descendants. 
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1. MATTHEW BRADFIELD 
1833 – 10 JULY 1910 

The 1st child of Joseph Bradfield and Ann Reardon 

Matthew Bradfield was born in 1833, but I do not know the exact location of his birth. I 
have assumed that it was either in Newcastle or at some place on the Hunter of Williams 
River. Joseph and Anne obviously took a trip to Sydney in 1834, as Matthew was baptised 
in St. Mary's Roman Catholic Church in Sydney in that year.  

Matthew had stayed with his parents until they all moved to the Northern Rivers district of 
New South Wales sometime around 1869, and he too settled on Palmers Island in the 
Lower Clarence River region. He married at Goodwood Island (in the Clarence River) on 24 
July 1878 to Louisa Curtis, and the marriage certificate states that Louisa's usual place of 
residence was Grafton. Witnesses to this marriage were Abraham Carr and Eliza Jane 
Wright. The Minister was the Reverend John Hill Garven" of the Presbyterian Church.  

I have sought in vain to learn more of Matthew's wife's background - date and place of 
birth, name of parents. and eventual date of death, but to no avail. When Matthew's 
application for an Aged Pension was refused in 1901 the name of Louisa Bradfield was not 
there.  

Matthew died on 10 July 1910 and was buried in the Maclean cemetery the next day. He 
was a Blacksmith - I wonder if his father taught him his trade?  (Enid Tognolini) 

Additional  Notes 2023 (Neville Maloney) 

Matthew was later granted in pension at least in 1904 again his wife was no mentioned 

His missing wife’s mystery is not helped by the newspaper stories on the flowing pages.  

Matthew was sentenced to 7 years in Grafton Goal in 1883 for malicious injury to 
government property. At the trial it is mentioned that he is the sole carer for his 80 year old 
father and no mention is made of his wife.   

A petition in 1884 to reduce his sentence also makes no reference to a wife. It was not 
successful in any case.  During his sentence he was sent to Berrima Goal (see below). 

Matthew’s death notice in 1910 also makes no reference to his wife other than the fact 
that he was married at the age of 23.  
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In September/October 1883 
Matthew Bradfield was charged 
with destroying the navigation 
beacon at Yamba. The trial details 
from a newspaper at the time are 
opposite.  
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Above: A petition in 1884 to 
appeal the 7 year sentence 
Matthew Bradfield received in 
1883 

Right:  The death notice of 
Matthew Bradfield in 1910. 
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That completes the family information of 
MATTHEW BRATFIELD 1833 – 10/07/1910  

The first child of Joseph Bradfield born 1803 (in England) – & died in 1886 (in Grafton NSW) and 
Ann Reardon 
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2. MARY ANN BRADFIELD 
9 JULY 1835 – 1837 

The 2nd child of Joseph Bradfield and Ann Reardon 

The only record of Mary Ann is her baptism certificate.  Her birth was registered (Reg No. 
820/1835 V183582019. The place of her birth was “Barrowwell” so we know the family 
moved there prior to July 1835. The spelling of the surname on both documents is 
Bradfield.   
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3. GEORGE BRATFIELD 
1837 – 16 May 1925 

The 3rd child of Joseph Bradfield and Ann Reardon 

Enid had no notes concerning George other than the year of his birth and dates of his 
marriage to Mary Miller and his death.  

The articles extracted from the Grafton Argus tell a little about his life as a provider of 
firewood (and there was also an article about him being charged for felling timber on 
crown land) and reflections about him in his death notice. In the Sydney Morning Herald 
was a story from the Supreme court that actually went on for many years concerning a 
couple of acres of land in Grafton that Peter manning seems to have squatted on and 
claimed it was his. The court found in favour of George but there were further court 
proceeding in Grafton for a long time to get Manning off the land. The wording was so 
convoluted I did not include the copies of the court cases. (NM)  

George Bratfield married Mary Miller (1837 – 13 Nov 1930) on 19th December 1862 in 
Grafton; they had one child Eva Bratfield. Eva married Harold Grisford and from them the 
family line of the Crisfords is formed. Again Enid has little detail but she provides some 

documents for Eva & Harold and 
follows their family for a couple of 
generations.  
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Above: The death notice of George Bratfield 

Right: Mary Bratfield (nee Miller) celebrates 
her 92 birthday. 

Below: Mary Bratfield’s death notice 
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Eva Bratfield 1864 – 1955 
The only child of George Bratfield and Mary Miller Eva married Harold Grisford in 1889 in 
Grafton NSW.   

Eva Bratfield and her family 

L to R:  Harold Gavin Crisford, Harold (Eva’s husband), George 
Stonham Crisford,  Eva Bratfield, Charles Keith Crisford 
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The Descendants of George Bratfield 1837 – 1925  

1. George1 Bratfield, b. 1837 (son of Joseph Bradfield and Anne Reardon), d. 16 May 1925 in 
Grafton, buried 17 May 1925 in Grafton Presbyterian Cemetery.  He married Mary Miller, married 
19 Dec 1862 in Grafton, b. 1837, d. 13 Nov 1930 in Grafton. 

    Child: 

    2. i. Eva2 Bratfield b. 1864. 

Generation Two 

2. Eva2 Bratfield (George1), b. 1864 in Grafton, d. 14 May 1955 in 188 Falcon St, North Sydney, 
buried 16 May 1955 in Cremated.  She married Harold Crisford, married 25 July 1889 in Grafton 
NSW, b. 1866, d. 1933. 

    Children: 

    3. i. George Stonham3 Crisford b. 1890. 

    4. ii. Harold Gavin Crisford b. 24 Mar1892. 

      iii. Charles Keith Crisford b. 1897 in Grafton, d. 14 May 1951 in Cooma 
NSW.  He married Jean Mary McCallum, married 1923 in Coraki NSW. 

Generation Three 

3. George Stonham3 Crisford (Eva2 Bratfield, George1), b. 1890 in Grafton, d. 09 Jul 1969 in 
Northbridge NSW.  He married Rita Mary Riley, married 1921 in Byron Bay, b. 1897, d. 23 Jun 1969. 

    Children: 

      i. George Bratfield4 Crisford. 

      ii. Ruth Crisford. She married Mr Jurd. 

      iii. Margaret Crisford. She married Mr Davey. 

      iv. Helen Crisford. She married Mr Simpson. 

4. Harold Gavin3 Crisford (Eva2 Bratfield, George1), b. 24 Mar1892 in Grafton, d. 14 Oct 1942 
in Darlinghurst NSW.  He married Addley (Adele) Hyland, married 24 Mar 1914 in Toowoomba Qld, 
b. 07 Jul 1889 in Banalla Vic, d. 12 Oct 1973 in Sydney NSW. 

    Children: 

      i. Raymond Gavin4 Crisford b. 07 Nov 1915 in Charleville Qld, d. Mar 
1945 in WWII. 

      ii. Halcyone Adele Crisford b. 24 May 1917 in Grafton.  She married 
Albert Joseph Teal, married 1942 in Waverley NSW. 

      iii. John Hyland Crisford b. 28 Oct 1920 in Brisbane Qld. 

    5. iv. Eris Elizabeth Doretta Crisford b. 18 Apr 1926. 

Generation Four 

5. (Harold Gavin3, Eva2 Bratfield, George1), b. 18 Apr 1926 in Casino.  She married John 
Fleming, married 20 May 1950. 

    Children: 

      i. Ann5 Fleming b. 13 Feb 1951. 

      ii. Elizabeth Fleming b. 07 Jun 1953. 

      iii. Raymond Fleming b. 15 Mar 1956. 

      iv. Mary Fleming b. 23 Jun 1958. 

      v. Peter Fleming b. 16 Feb 1961. 

      vi. David Fleming b. 22 Jan 1964. 

      vii. Christopher John Fleming b. 04 Sep 1970. 
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That completes the family information of 

GEORGE BRADFIELD 1837 – 16/05/1925  
The first child of Joseph Bradfield born 1803 (in England) – & died in 1886 (in Grafton NSW) and 

Ann Reardon 
 

  

Eva 
Bratfield 
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4. SOPHIA BRADFIELD 
13 DEC 1839 – 31 MAR 1902 

The 4th child of Joseph Bradfield and Ann Reardon 

 
Sophia and her siblings were baptised with the 'correct' surname of their father, and that was 
"BRADFIELD". Later the name taken by some of the Bradfield descendants changed to 
"BRATFIELD". It was as "Bratfield" that Sophia married her husband, John Thomas 
Blanch, in 1858, (registered at Clarence Town). Their first child Alice, had her birth and 
death registered at Raymond Terrace, New South Wales, then it would appear that John and 
Sophia Blanch moved up to the Clarence River region, as their other children's births were 
all registered at Grafton.  
As well as my own research of the life of Sophia, I used information from two publications, 
namely A Forest of Blanches (The Story of the Blanch Family 1838 -1988), published 1988 
by William Good of the University of Sydney, N.S.W., and Davis Family & Descendants 
(140 Years in Australia 1848 -1988), and published 1988 by Ann Marsh. The former 
covered the descendants of John Thomas Blanch and his siblings, and the second book 
contained the descendants of the youngest child of John & Sophia Blanch, namely Lillie 
Jane Blanch (who married George Ernest Yager in 1902). Unfortunately there were a few 
discrepancies between the two books regarding the descendants of George and Lillie Yager, 
so I ask the reader to take this into consideration.  
It should be noted that Sophia was born at BarrowWell, Williams River, on 13 December 
1839, and not, as stated in A Forest ofBlanches (p.60), born in 1841. It is to be expected that 
other information contained in the names, dates, and places pertaining to Sophia's 
descendants, may be incorrect, and that a large number of 'omissions' may be obvious to the 
Reader. (Enid Tognolini) 

Sophia Bradfield and her husband John Thomas Blanch had 10 children 

1. Alice Blanch   1859 – 1859 

2. Joseph Blanch   1860 – 1943 

3. John Thomas Blanch  1862 – 1941 (Married Rachel Connor) 

4. George Blanch *  1864 - ?         (Married Elizabeth Sneesby) 

5. Frank Blanch *  1866 – 1949  (Married Isabella Thompson) 

6. Emily Blanch *  1868 – 1934  (Married George Hooker) 

7. Ida Isabella Blanch *  1870 - ?  (Married Arthur Sutherland) 

8. Arthur C Blanch *  1875 – 1957  (Married Julia Margaret Sutherland) 

9. Alfred Ernest Blanch  * 1878 – 1934  (Married Rhita Menyweather) 

10. Lillie Jane Blanch *  1880 – 1929  (Married George Yager)  
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The descendants and family lines of SOPHIA BRADFIELD 1839 - 1902 
 

BRADFIELD Sophia  
Born: 13 Dec. 1839 in: Barrow-well, Williams River, NSW.  
Died: 31 March 1902 in: Brushgrove, N.S. W., AUSTRALIA.  
 
Father: BRADFIELD Joseph   
Mother: REARDON\RIORDAN Ann\e   
 
Husband BLANCH John Thomas   
Married: 1858 -01619 in: Marriage registered in ClarenceTown NSW  
Born: 16 April 1834 in: Rolvenden, Kent, ENGLAND  
Died: 5 February 1914 in: Brushgrove, Clarence River, N.S.W.  
 
Child 1 BLANCH Alice  
Born: 1859  in: Birth registered Raymond Terrace, N.S.W.  
Baptized: in: (b.20 Nov.1858 Seaham -"F.O.B.") * 
Died: 1859  Death registered Raymond Terrace, N.S.W.  
 
Child 2 BLANCH Joseph  
Can find no record of birth, death or marriage of Joseph Blanch. His name occurs on page 60 of the book 
"A Forest of Blanches", compiled by William Good (University of Sydney) in 1988. On pages 61 of "F. 
O.B." it is stated". Joseph lived at Cowper for some time and in later years may have worked the punt at 
Maclean. (End of quote. E.M. T. September 1999) 
 
Child 3 BLANCH John Thomas  
Born: 1862  Birth registered Grafton, N.S.W.  
Died: 1941  Death registered Grafton, N.S.W.  
Buried: in: (Died 03 Feb. 1941 -"F.O.B.")  
Ref: Occupation: Teamster at Clarenza.  
Spouse: CONNOR Rachel  
Married: 1894 -Marriage registered Ulmarra, N.S.W.  
 
Child 4 BLANCH George  
Born: 1864 in: Birth registered Grafton, N.S.W.  
Spouse: SNEESBY Elizabeth Mary   
Married: 19 April 1894 Marriage registered Maclean NSW 
 
Child 5 BLANCH Frank  
Born: 1866 in: Birth registered Grafton, N.S.W.  
Died: 29 June 1949 in: Lower Coldstream, NSW.  
Ref: "F.O.B." Occupation: Farmer  
Spouse: THOMPSON Isabella  
Married: 1892 : Marriage registered Ulmarra, N.S.W.  
 
Child 6 BLANCH Emily  
Born 1868 -09707 in: Birth registered Grafton, N.S.W.  
Died: 27 April 1934 in: Woodburn, N.S.W.  
Spouse: HOOKER George Percy  
Married: 1889: Marriage registered Ulmarra, N.S.W.  
 
Child 7 BLANCH Ida Isabella  
Born: 1870 Birth registered Grafton, N.S.W.  
Spouse: SUTHERLAND Angus  
Married: 1892 -: Marriage registered Maclean, N.S.W.  
 
Child 8 BLANCH Arthur C.  
Born: 1875 -12048 in: Birth registered Grafton, N.S.W.  
Died: 1957 in:  
Spouse: SUTHERLAND Julia Margaret  
Married: 1902 -09485 in: Marriage registered Maclean, N.S.W.  

Update information about Joseph 
Blanch (NM 2023) 
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Child 9 BLANCH Alfred Ernest  
Born: 1878 -13296 in: Birth registered Grafton. N.S.W.  
Died: March 1934 In:  
Spouse: MENYWEATHER Rhita May  
Married: 1910 -04519 in: Marriage registered Byron Bay, N.S.W.  
 
Child 10 BLANCH Lillie Jane  
Born: 18 January 1880 in: Ulmarra, registered Grafton, N.S.W.  
Died: 1929  
 (Lily was a diabetic)  
Spouse: YAGER George Ernest  
Married: 28 May 1902 in: St. Paul's C of E., Ulmarra, N.S.W.  
 

Understanding the numbered lists of names in the following sections 

I have included the pages and pages of names because they provide a valuable resource for future 
researchers interested in finding family descended from Joseph Bradfield. I have edited and changed 
the layout of the original lists that were generated from some genealogy software by Enid Tognolini. 
(Those lists were full of numbers and codes relating to the program they came from and I suspect 
that the remnants of some remain on these pages as well). 

The person who is number 1 in the list starts that family group in that list. 

Their children are all numbered 2 and their children 3 and so on  

 A 2 followed by a 2 tells you that the first one had no children (or none are known about, the records 
are incomplete and that is the case as the numbers get larger, this research does not include the many 
details of families of those born after 1960)  

Another way to look the lists is to be aware that within each family list those with the number 2 are 
siblings. The 3’s directly under a 2 are their children and the 3’s in each list are cousins to all the 
other 3s.  

The codes b. = birth date, d. = death date, m = married (sometimes a name will have two or three 
m’s indicating the number of times they were married.  

An example below is also highlighted in the actual list, a few pages on, for you to test your skill on 
figuring out who is who..   
4 LEWIS Raymond Robert b. 14 October 1949 m. 1972 CAFLISCH Nerelle Ann   
5 LEWIS Rachelle Louise  b. 07 April 1973  
5 LEWIS Matthew Aaron  b. 23 October 1977  
3 CLIFFORD Dorothy Blanche b. 28 August 1927 m. 1947 McMANUS Patrick V.  m.1966 RAE Colin    
4 McMANUS Denis Patrick  b. 21 Nov. 1950 m. 1971 MATHEWS Sandra 1.  
5 McMANUS Alissa Jean  b. 25 Dec. 1975  
5 McMANUS Michelle Ann b. 15 April 1977  
5 McMANUS Adam Patrick b. 09 May 1980  
2 HOOKER Nellie J.  b. 1893 -35636 d. 1895  
 
Dorothy was married twice and had one child  with by her first husband as listed directly beneath 
her. That first child 4 McMANUS Denis  had three children all numbered 5  

 2 HOOKER Nellie listed beneath Dorothy’s grandchildren is herAunty “Nellie” (because she is a 
number 2, one generation before Dorothy) who is her mother’s younger sister& we know she is 
younger because she is further down in the list of names. We need to trace back nearly a page in the 
list to pick up 2 HOOKER Vera who is Dorothy’s mother because all the interceding entries are the 
children and grandchildren of Dorothy’s brother Kenneth the previous number 3 directly listed 
under Vera.    (NM 2023)  
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The descendants and family lines of Sophia Bradfield’s 4th child GEORGE BLANCH 
 
1 BLANCH George b. 1864  
m. 19 April 1894 SNEESBY Elizabeth Mary b. 1868 -09681 d. 1923  
 
2 BLANCH Mervyn Milton b. 1894  d. 27 April 1963  
m. 1920 -04565 ANDERSON Narelle J. U.  
2 BLANCH Olive P, b. 1896   
2 BLANCH Myrtle Ib. 1899   
m. 1918 -02845 STONE Roland R. b. 1896  
2 BLANCH Dorothy Doreen (a.k.a. Betty)  b. 22 August 1901  
m. 28 April 1920 BRICKELL George  d. 26 July 1938  
m. Date ? LAMAN Alfred Thomas  b. 01 July 1901 d. 04 June 1954  
3 BRICKELL Wallace George  
3 BRICKELL Doreen Marie (a.k.a. Betty) b. 26 July 1926  
m. 1945  LINDSAY Owen Charles b. 13 August 1923  
4 LINDSAY Gary John b. 07 Feb. 1947 m. Date not known Name not 
known   
5 LINDSAY Michael 
5 LINDSAY Jason   
4 LINDSAY Christine Gai  b. 27 March 1950  
m. 27 August 19?? ANDERSON Stephen John  b. 01 January 1952  
5 ANDERSON Kylie Maree  
5 ANDERSON David Steven   
4 LINDSAY Steven John  b. 11 Feb. 1965  
2 BLANCH Reginald H.  b. 1906 - d. 1906 -  
 

The descendants and family lines of Sophia Bradfield’s 5th child FRANK BLANCH 
 
1 BLANCH Frank b. 1866 d. 29 June 1949  
m. 1892 -07307 THOMPSON Isabella  b. 1868 d. 24 Sept. 1943  
 
2 BLANCH Raymond Clarence b. 15 Sept. 1892 d. 25 Nov. 1970  
Raymond was known in the district as "King Blanch", and was a highly respected citizen . He liked horse 
racing and the dog course, and never missed a church service in the local hall, being a member of the 
Anglican Church. Spent most of his life in farming pursuits in Lower Coldstream.  
The above was taken from page 61 of "A Forest of Blanches" compiled by William Good, 1988. E T.  
 
2 BLANCH Ora Lucy Florence b. 06 Feb. 1894 d. 08 Dec. 1929 m. 1923 -11528 WICKS Harold  
3 WICKS Owen Francis William m. 02 April 1956 FROHMULLER Patricia Ellen  
Owen Wicks was reared by his Grandparents at Coolah Creek, according to page 61 of "FOB", 1988.  
4 WICKS Stephen Andrew b. 05 June 1961 d. 05 June 1961  
4 WICKS Suelen Maree b. 01 October 1962 m. 03 January 1987 SHARPE Christopher John  
4 WICKS Rodney Francis b. 28 Dec. 1964  
4 WICKS Peter John b. 28 Nov. 1966  
3 WICKS Lyle Keith m. Date ?  DAY Lola May  
4 WICKS Gloria Ann m. Date ? ANDERSON Campbell   
5 ANDERSON Shari  
5 ANDERSON Nicholas  
5 ANDERSON Shannon   
5 ANDERSON Cameron  
4 WICKS Ora Florence  m. Date ? LUGTON David   
5 LUGTON Alexander   
5 LUGTON Lucy  
4 WICKS Michael Harold  m. Date ? EVANS Colleen  
5 WICKS Jacinta   
5 WICKS Lyle  b. __ d. deceased by 1988  
4 WICKS Kathleen  m, Date ? GODFREY John   
5 GODFREY Misty   

The numbers next to the 
name in these sections 
represent the generations. 

1. = Sophia’s children 

2. = Sophia’s grand children 

3. = Sophia’s G grand children 

4. =   “      GG grand children  

5. =   “     GGG grand children 

And so on for each additional 
generation. 

Abbreviations 

FOB = The book “A Forest of 
Blanches”  

ET & ENT = Enid Tognolini 
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5 GODFREY Donovan   
4 WICKS James Lyle   
3 ROWLES Kevin Michael  m, Date ? WYKES Zoe   
4 ROWLES Leanne   
4 ROWLES Michael  
2 BLANCH John Albert b. 21 Jul 1896 d 02 Aug 1977 m 03 Dec.1930 INMAN Elsie Vera b 25 Apr 1910  
3 BLANCH Marie Evelyn  b. 21 May 1931 m. 18 Feb, 1950 EGGINS Sid   
4 EGGINS Douglas  b, 30 Sept. 1951  
4 EGGINS Patricia  b. 20 June 1955 m. 17 June 1975 WINTERS Ivan   
5 WINTERS Libby Kristine Lee  b, 10 Feb. 1973  
5 WINTERS Jodie Maree  b. 10 October 1975  
3 BLANCH Doreen June  b. 21 June 1934 m. Date ? RANDAL N.   
4 RANDAL Tony   
4 RANDAL Terry  
4 RANDAL Cheryl   
4 RANDAL Coral   
3 BLANCH Elaine Joy  b. 20 July 1938 m. Date ? SUMNER 1.  
4 SUMNER Lorraine  
4 SUMNER Peter  
4 SUMNER Gary  
4 SUMNER Mark  
3 BLANCH Valmai Daw b, 08 July 1940 m. Date ? TRUSS R.  
4 TRUSS Paul  
4 TRUSS Deborah  
4 TRUSS Warren  
3 BLANCH Dorothy Merle  b. 22 Nov. 1943 m. Date ? WATKINS Colin m. Date ? BOYD C.  
3 BLANCH Ena Isabel  b. 02 June 1948  m. Date ? CHILDS G.   
3 BLANCH Leslie "Joe"  b. 18 April 1933 m. 15 August 1959 CRISPIN Edith   
4 BLANCH Edith Michelle "Lindy"  b. 04 October 1959 m.. February 1983 HUTCHINGS Barry  
5 HUTCHINGS Brooke Louise  b. August 1987  
4 BLANCH Judy  b. 07 January 1963 m. Not married UNKNOWN   
5 BLANCH David  b. 07 May 1987  
4 BLANCH Wendy  b. 08 Dec. 1965  
4 BLANCH Jenny b. 20 October 1971  
4 BLANCH Joanna  b. 28 July 1973  
4 BLANCH Susan  b. 11 Nov. 1976  
4 BLANCH John  b. 23 May 1981  
3 BLANCH Don Earl  b. 08 October 1936 m. Date ? BATEMAN Marcia   
Don Blanch worked with his father on the property at Carrs Creek, dairying, and growing maize etc. Don 
was still living on this property in 1988 when the book, "A Forest of Blanches", was compiled. E.M.T.  
 
 
2 BLANCH Florence Myrtle (a.k.a. Molly)  b. 28 July 1898 d. 08 June 1978  
m. 1918 - WINKLER John Godliebt  d. 1942 - 
m. 1944 - HODGSON Thomas  
3 WINKLER Ora Gladys  b. 08 July 1918 m. 1939 - BAlLEY Mervyn Lewis   
Ora Gladys was raised by her grandparents at Coolah Creek, page 61 of "A Forest of Blanches", 1988.  
4 BAILEY Desmond Mervyn  b. 1944 m. Date ? UNKNOWN Heather   
5 BAILEY Sharon  
5 BAILEY Anna  
3 WINKLER Thelma Dora "Beryl" ("Beryl" was raised by her Grandparents at Coolah Creek,) P61 FOB 
2 BLANCH Edward Henry (Ned) b1900 d 27 Dec.1967 m.20 March 1935 HEINZ Ivy  b16 Feb. 1914  
3 BLANCH Colleen Merle b. 06 Dec. 1935  m. 27 March 1954 CAMPBELL Frederick Roy  
4 CAMPBELL Maureen Dawn  b. 28 August 1954  m. 12 January 1974 RAE Trevor John   
5 RAE Kristy Jane  b. 30 July 1978  
5 RAE Anita Lee  b. 16 Sept. 1980  
5 RAE Curt Matthew  b. 05 April 1983  
5 RAE Eric Maree  b. 16 Dec. 1985  
4 CAMPBELL Stephen Frederick  b. 24 April 1969  
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3 BLANCH Shirley Jean  b. 12 July 1937 m. 19 Nov. 1955 KNIGHT Neville   
4 KNIGHT Gary James  b. 08 August 1956 m. 15 Septem. 1984 DONNELLY Kerry   
5 KNIGHT Benjamin James  b. 16 August 1985  
5 KNIGHT Abby Lavine  b. 01 March 1987  
4 KNIGHT Craig John  b. 02 Feb. 1967  
4 KNIGHT Brooke Joanne  b. 16 May 1969  
3 BLANCH Beryl Dawn  b. 11 Sept. 1939  
3 BLANCH Kevin John  b. 07 August 1940 m. 25 August 1973 BILIOU Joy  m. 23 August 1978 
FULLER Glennys Yvonne . b. 04 Sept. 1946  
4 BLANCH Carlo John  b. 23 October 1978  
4 BLANCH Callan Edward  b. 19 June 1981  
4 BLANCH Alyssma Nicole  b. 17 March 1983  
4 BLANCH Fleur Azure  b. 18 March 1985  
4 BLANCH Kasmire Sheree  b. 19 March 1987  
3 BLANCH Graeme Boyce  b. 11 July 1944  
2 BLANCH William Thomas (Bill) b. 05 June 1903 d. 19 Feb. 1983  
2 BLANCH Stanley Hunter  b. 06 July 1905 d. 01 January 1984  
2 BLANCH Sidney Ernest  b. 02 April 1908 m. 1943 -09991 ROBERTSON Trissy   
3 BLANCH Allan Sidney  b. 11 July 1944 d. 08 August 1986 m. 15 Dece 1961 ALISON Alvine   
4 BLANCH Anthony James  b. 29 May 1962 m. 03 August 1985 McCONNELL Karen   
5 BLANCH Nathan James  b. 22 October 1985  
5 BLANCH Amy Louise  b. 08 Feb. 1987  
4 BLANCH Robert William  b. 22 Feb. 1966  
4 BLANCH Darren Allan  b. 20 Feb 1968  
3 BLANCH Barry Ernest  b. 22 July 1946 m. 22 Feb 1969 GREEN Doreen   
4 BLANCH Kim Maree  b. 15 August 1969  
4 BLANCH Michelle Annette  b. 23 Nov 1971  
4 BLANCH Matthew John  b. 15 Sept 1977  
3 BLANCH Julie Isabell  b. 08 October 1953 m. Date ? O'HARA Keith   
4 O'HARA Robert  
4 O'HARA Shawn  
3 BLANCH Colin John  b. 06 October 1957 m. 01 
Dec 1979 HEARFIELD Christine   
4 BLANCH Melissa Sue  b. 08 July 1982  
4 BLANCH Nicole Maree  b. 04 Dec. 1985  
3 BLANCH Wayne Francis  b. 06 October 1957  
2 BLANCH Coral Irene  b. 18 June 1910 d. 01 April 
1979 m. Date ? REDMAN John   
 

 
  

Sophia her father, Joseph and her 
brothers George and Matthew 
donated money to the Patriotic 
Fund in 1855. A fund established by 
Queen Victoria to care for the 
widows and orphans of the soldiers 
killed in the Crimean War.  
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The descendants and family lines of Sophia Bradfield’s 6th child EMILY BLANCH 
 
1 BLANCH Emily b. 1868 -09707 d. 27 April 1934  
m. 1889 HOOKER George Percy  d. 1905  
2 HOOKER Percy Hilton  b. 08 Dec. 1890 d 26 Sept 1970 m. 1916 -04104 JOHNSON Evelyn May   
3 HOOKER Harold J.  b. 04 Dec. 1915 d. 26 March 1985 m. 1943 DEAN Mary  
4 HOOKER Michael   
4 HOOKER Doreen   
4 HOOKER Peter  
4 HOOKER James  
3 HOOKER Vincent George  b. __ d. 1923 - 
3 HOOKER Esma Josephine  b. 05 Sept. 1923 d. 23 October 1981 m. 1943 BAKER Vincent C.  
4 BAKER Pauline Gail  b. 29 October 1948 m. 1970 WILSON Garry E.   
5 WILSON Kelly Dyonne  b. 27 Feb. 1971  
5 WILSON Scott Robert  b. 12 Sept. 1977  
5 WILSON Shane Gary  b. 15 March 1980  
3 HOOKER Alexious Joseph  m. Date ? DEAN Melva   
4 HOOKER Robert   
4 HOOKER David   
4 HOOKER Kerry   
3 HOOKER Norman  b. d. 1933   
2 HOOKER Olive Maud  b. 1891 d. 09 Feb. 1966 m. 1914 3 SMITH Charles L.0  
2 HOOKER Vera Muriel b. 31 October 1892 d. 11 March 1943 m. 1915  CLIFFORD George E. J.  
3 CLIFFORD Kenneth George  b. 13 June 1915 d. 16 Dec. 1970 m. Date ? DORRINGTON Daisy   
4 CLIFFORD Fae  
4 CLIFFORD Shirley   
4 CLIFFORD Neil  
4 CLIFFORD Raymond   
4 CLIFFORD Enid  .  
4 CLIFFORD Julie   
4 CLIFFORD Gregory   
4 CLIFFORD Geoffrey   
3 CLIFFORD Eric Claude b.28 August 1916 m. 1940 MARTIN Verlie   
4 CLIFFORD Eileen Joyce  b. 04 August 1940 m. 1971 GRAHAM Colin   
5 GRAHAM Bernard Colin  b. 07 Nov. 1971  
5 GRAHAM Gary Keith  b. 26 July 1975  
4 CLIFFORD Patricia Marie  b. 24 March 1943 m. 1962 LOVETT John   
5 LOVETT David John  b. 19 June 1964  
5 LOVETT Karen Patricia  b. 19 January 1966  
5 LOVETT Denise  b. 27 Sept. 1967  
5 LOVETT Leanne Margaret  b. 15 January 1969  
5 LOVETT Janice Fae  b. 16 April 1970  
4 CLIFFORD Claudette Mary  b. 06 October 1946 m. 1969 GRAHAM Douglas N.  
5 GRAHAM Peter Norman  b. 03 August 1971 d. 10 March 1983  
5 GRAHAM Barry John b. 18 June 1973  
4 CLIFFORD Brian Robert  b. 07 January 1958  m. 1979 McDONALD Deborah Ann   
5 CLIFFORD Timothy Robert  h. 29 July 1983  
5 CLIFFORD Paul Brian  b. 23 March 1985  
5 CLIFFORD Bradley John  b. 17 June 1987  
5 CLIFFORD Amanda Fay  b. 17 June 1987  
4 CLIFFORD Lynn Maree  b. 30 Dec. 1964 m. 1984 BYLSMA Richard   
5 BYLSMA Daniel John  b. 20 Sept. 1986  
3 CLIFFORD Marie  b. 26 May 1918   m. 1941 PERKINS Owen E.  
3 CLIFFORD Ronald  b. 05 June 1921 d. 27 January 1987  m. 1944 BRISLANE Verlie  
4 CLIFFORD Darrell Grant  b. November 1947  m. Date ? ? Christine  
5 CLIFFORD Sarah  
3 CLIFFORD Lola Doreen  b. 28 Feb. 1925   m. 1942 LEWIS Kenneth C.   
4 LEWIS Janice Doreen b. 11 January 1943 m. 1961 KENNEDY Arthur M.  
5 KENNEDY Sharron Ann b. 02 August 1961 m. 1983 KEAHLET Stephen  
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5 KENNEDY Michelle  b. 13 March 1963  
4 LEWIS Warren Kenneth  b. 24 January 1944 d. 17 January 1958  
4 LEWIS Raymond Robert b. 14 October 1949 m. 1972 CAFLISCH Nerelle Ann   
5 LEWIS Rachelle Louise  b. 07 April 1973  
5 LEWIS Matthew Aaron  b. 23 October 1977  
3 CLIFFORD Dorothy Blanche b. 28 August 1927 m. 1947 McMANUS Patrick V.  m.1966 RAE Colin    
4 McMANUS Denis Patrick  b. 21 Nov. 1950 m. 1971 MATHEWS Sandra 1.  
5 McMANUS Alissa Jean  b. 25 Dec. 1975  
5 McMANUS Michelle Ann b. 15 April 1977  
5 McMANUS Adam Patrick b. 09 May 1980  
2 HOOKER Nellie J.  b. 1893 -35636 d. 1895  
2 HOOKER George H.  b. 1895  d. WW1  
2 HOOKER Lily Sophia Jane  b. 17 August 1896 d. 08 Nov 1970 m.24 Aug 1932 PRYCE Armand John  
3 PRYCE Margaret Blanche  b. 22 Nov. 1934 m. 1952 RAPMUND Ronald B.m. 1965 JARRETT Cecil   
4 RAPMUND Peter John  b. 24 October 1952  m. 06 June 1981 McHUGH Lynette F.   
5 RAPMUND Warren John  b. 09 April 1982  
5 RAPMUND Sammy Jo  b. 03 Sept. 1984  
5 RAPMUND Annette Margaret  b. 17 October 1986  
4 RAPMUND Terry David  b. 04 October 1954  m. 14 April 1979 McHUGH Joanne M.   
5 RAPMUND Luke Armand  b. 28 May 1981  
4 RAPMUND Julieanne b. 30 October 1957 d. 30 October 1957  
4 RAPMUND Desmond James 1993 b. 12 June 1960  
3 PRYCE Doreen Elizabeth  b. 08 May 1937 m. 1957 HEARNE Raymond T.  
4 HERNE Rodney Terrance  b. 16 March 1958  
4 HERNE Deborah Leanne  b. 05 March 1959  m. 26 August 1978 MORRIS Raymond A.   
5 MORRIS Karl Raymond  b. 30 Sept. 1980  
5 MORRIS Christopher John b. 01 Feb. 1983  
5 MORRIS Adam James  b. 11 Sept. 1987  
4 HERNE Armand John  b. 07 January 1962  
2 HOOKER Eric Claud  b. 05 Dec.1898 d. 06 October 1950 m. 1923 -11840 MUNRO Elva M. b 1901   
3 HOOKER Lloyd George  b. 16 January 1924  m. Date ? HALLIDAY Beryl   
4 HOOKER Peter George  b. 13 July 1951 m. 22 August 1969 LONAN Denise   
5 HOOKER Michael  b. 01 May 1969  
5 HOOKER Christopher  b. 09 May 1973  
5 HOOKER Shane  b. 04 March 1976 d. 06 March 1976  
4 HOOKER Eric Claud  b. 09 Sept. 1952  
4 HOOKER Phillip Charles  b. 24 Nov. 1954  
4 HOOKER David Ross b. 05 Dec. 1958   m. Date ? BAGNALL Roslyn   
5 HOOKER Bradley   
5 HOOKER Angela   
5 HOOKER Shannon   
4 HOOKER Leonie Gai  b. 09 March 1960 m. Date ? RYAN James   
5 RYAN Ben   
5 RYAN Danny   
4 HOOKER Julie Marie  b. 20 January 1962 m. Date ? NOTT Trevor   
5 NOTT Katie  b. Prior to 1988  
5 NOTT Andrew   
5 NOTT Tehlia   
3 HOOKER Vyla Leone  b. 31 July 1925     m. 23 April 1945 MEEHAN Kevin   
4 MEEHAN Darryl John  b. 03 May 1947 d. 08 Dec 1969  
4 MEEHAN Tim Wayne  b. 11 July 1957  
4 MEEHAN Michael James  b. 18 April 1959    m. 02 Feb. 1985 UNKNOWN Deanne   
5 MEEHAN Nathan  b. 1987  
4 MEEHAN Barbara  b 13 Dec. 1960 m. Date ? PERRIN Geoffrey  m. Date ? ROBARD Peter   
5 PERRIN Jeffrey   
5 PERRIN Casey   
4 MEEHAN Cathie  b 27 Feb. 1962    m. 31 March 1984 SMITH Bradley   
5 SMITH Matthew  b. 1987  
4 MEEHAN Jane  b. 05 Sept. 1964 m. October 1984 McNEISH Bradley   
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3 HOOKER Rex Travis  b. 04 Sept. 1927   m. 10 May 1946 STACKMAN Ailsa   
4 HOOKER Denise  b. 26 August 1946  m.??  
5 HOOKER Kim  b. d. Not alive 1988  
5 HOOKER Daniel   
5 HOOKER Karen   
4 HOOKER Gail  b. 10 October 1948 m. Date ? COOK Trevor   
5 COOK Darren   
5 COOK Tracey   
4 HOOKER Trevor  b. 13 August 1955 m. Date ? UNKNOWN Jan   
5 HOOKER Nicole  
4 HOOKER Neville  b. 08 March 1957 m. Date ? JOHNSON Denise   
5 HOOKER Guy   
5 HOOKER Angela   
4 HOOKER Bronwyn  b. 20 January 1962 m. Date ? NOTT Trevor (A little inconsistent data here Trevor 
is listed as married to Julie Marie Hooker, 28 lines back in this list, also in 1962!!) NM 2023 
5 NOTT Emma  
5 NOTT Renee  
4 HOOKER Wendy  b. May 1964 d. May 1964  
3 HOOKER Gloria  b. 23 October 1931 m. 18 August 1949 AUSTIN James   
4 AUSTIN Jacquelyn Ann  b. 11 January 1950     m. 29 Sept. 1973 CLAYDON Leslie  
5 CLA YDON Tanya  
5 CLA YDON Aaron   
5 CLA YDON Travis   
4 AUSTIN Tony John  b. 29 May 1952 m.  ??  
5 A USTIN Rhonda  
5 A USTIN Belinda  
4 AUSTIN Kerry Dianne  b. 08 Feb 1955  m. 08 Decem. 1973 SCHWAGER Kerry John   
5 SCHWAGER Christopher  
5 SCHWAGER Sandra   
5 SCHWAGER Michael   
4 AUSTIN Ian William  b. 14 Jan 1956  
4 AUSTIN Robyn Michelle  b.16 Sept. 1957 d. 29 July 1986   m. 27 Septem 1975 WAKELY Ian  
5 WAKELY Adam   
5 WAKELY Louise   
5 WAKELY Jasmin   
5 WAKELY Dwyan   
4 AUSTIN May Stephen  b. 19 Feb. 1959    m. 23 October 1987 JENSEN Kay   
5 AUSTIN Amanda  
5 AUSTIN Sarah   
5 AUSTIN James   
4 AUSTIN Geoffrey James  b. 17 October 1961  
4 AUSTIN Rodney Allyn  b. 24 Jan 1963  
3 HOOKER Jean  b. 23 Feb. 1933 d. 20 Dec. 1935  
2 HOOKER Dorice Petoria  b. 1900  d. 24 August 1938  
2 CROSS Archibald Charles T.  b. 1907  m. 1926 -08812 CLIFFORD Rita   
The father of Archibald Charles T. Cross was Archibald S. Cross, who was born in 1882 & birth 
registered at Windsor. Archibald S. Cross was the eighth of twelve children born to Charles Cross & 
Sophia Armstrong, who were married in 1866, (marriage registered Windsor).This Cross family lived  
around the Windsor and Maitland regions as this was where all the births of the twelve children took 
place. EMT 1999.  
3 CROSS Enid   
3 CROSS Noel   
3 CROSS Marcia  
3 CROSS Robert  
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The descendants of Sophia Bradfield’s 7th child IDA ISABELLE BLANCH  
 
1 BLANCH Ida Isabella b. 1870   m. 1892 _04750 SUTHERLAND Angus  b. 1869  d. 1937   
2 SUTHERLAND George M.  b. 1893  m. 1919 -14116 BUTCHER Rubena  b. 1893   
2 SUTHERLAND Angus Arthur James b.1895  d. 1941 m 1914  PRINGLE Harriet Eileen M.   
3 SUTHERLAND Claud R.  b. 1915  
3 SUTHERLAND Loch (?Lauchlan)  b. __d. 1937   
2 SUTHERLAND Robert L. b. 1897   
2 SUTHERLAND Miriam  b. 1901  m. 1918  HANNAH Roy   
2 SUTHERLAND Harvey b. 1904  m. 1930  PHEMISTER Daisy E.  
2 SUTHERLAND Effie M.  b. 1906 m. 1926  BUTCHER Leslie H.  b. 1903  
2 SUTHERLAND Victor  b. 1909   
 

The descendants of Sophia Bradfield’s 8th child ARTHUR C. BLANCH  
 
1 BLANCH Arthur C.. b. 1875  d. 1957 m. 1902 SUTHERLAND Julia Margaret b.1880 d.17 Oct 1923  
2 BLANCH Edna P. b. 1904  m. 1927  CARROLL Thomas   
2 BLANCH Ida S. b. 1907  m. 1930  ENSBEY Ernest E.  
2 BLANCH Kenneth V.  b. 1908  m. 05 Sept. 1928 THOMPSON Eva  d. 13 October 1980  
2 BLANCH Arthur Stuart  b. 1911  d. 10 October 1923  
2 BLANCH Hilton R.  b. 1914   
2 BLANCH Kelvin G. b. 1918   
 

The descendants of Sophia Bradfield’s 9th child ALFRED ERNEST BLANCH  
 
1 BLANCH Alfred Ernest b. 1878  d. March 1934  m. 1910  MENYWEATHER Rhita May   
2 BLANCH Carlyle Alfred  b. 01 October 1911 d. 28 Nov. 1981 m. McKINNON Joyce   
3 BLANCH Allan  
3 BLANCH Neville   
3 BLANCH John   
3 BLANCH Phillip   
3 BLANCH Caroline   
3 BLANCH Jane   
2 BLANCH Joyce M. b. 09 May 1916 d. 1971/1972  m. 11 July 1936 BRIDGER John Wesley   
3 BRIDGER Darryl  b. 1938/1939 d. 1949  
3 BRIDGER Geoffrey  b. 1942  
3 BRIDGER Bryan  b. 1951  
2 BLANCH Mervyn Ellis  b. 09 March 1919  m 29 Sept. 1945 KIRBY Beryl Estelle  b. 28 Sept. 1920  
3 BLANCH Janis  b. 1949 m. Date ? RASSOCK Ken   
4 RASSOCK Nicole  b. 09 June 1967  
4 RASSOCK Darren  b. 03 October 1970  
3 BLANCH Kaye  b. 1952 m. 1976 CLARK John   
4 CLARK Nathan  b. 21 January 1978  
4 CLARK Wayne  b. 22 October 1980  
4 CLARK Adam  b. 12 May 1982  
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Lillie Jane Blanch 1880 – 1929 
Joseph Bradfield’s grand-daughter 

 
George (Yager) was born on 14 March 1876 at Brushgrove, second child and eldest son of Christian and 
Fanny (Davis) Yager. He married Lily* Jane Blanch, (youngest) daughter of John and Sophia (Bratfield) 
Blanch of Coldstream on 28 May 1902.  

In 1889 at an early age he (George Yager) started his carrying business, becoming Brushgrove's pioneer 
carrier. He built his fleet up to three spring carts, three four wheeled trolleys and two jinkers. He also ran 
a livery stable.  

George and Lily had four sons, Thomas Clarence born 1903, Arthur Lionel and Ernest Leonard twin sons 
born 8th December 1910, and Eric Christian John born 12th February 1912. All four sons worked in their 
father's business during the horse drawn days. They carted produce to local business from the river boats. 
In 1936 George went into motor lorries.  

During the war (2nd World War) the trucks were fitted with gas producers as petrol was scarce. Other men 
were employed over the years, driving trucks, especially during the war when at various times all four 
sons enlisted in the army. Just some of the men were Tom Macintosh, Garney Inman, Wilfred Hughes. 
Reg Yager, Lance Sidney Daly, Jack Lambert and Rex Gow.  

For many years until the 1940s, George operated a mail run by horse and sulky in the Tyndale district and 
around Woodford Island and in spite of the floods, left the run with never a day missed. Lily, his wife 
died in 1929 aged 49 years. She was a sugar diabetic.  

Another one of the sidelines was delivering milk. The milk in cans in the horse drawn cart, the "driver" on 
a step at the back. The Yagers also carted stone broken up for roadwork. George was the first man in the 
Clarence area to transport cattle on a float to the South Grafton saleyards. Also a sideline for George was 
selling sawn wood by the cartload. He had a circular saw run by a motor.  

A staunch member of the Grand United Order of Oddfellows, he was a Past District Master. He was also 
a past secretary of the Brushgrove Common. On 2nd October 1912 he was appointed Pound Keeper. 
George also delivered blocks of ice, for the ice boxes of the time, to anyone on the island who didn't have 
a river frontage.  

In March 1913 his new residence was completed. George enjoyed good health until the October before 
his death and retained an active interest in his business. He died in the Lower Clarence Hospital at 
Maclean, 13 June 1955 aged 79 years.  

POINT OF INTEREST  

Extracts from Ledger of Carrying Business:  

Charged to Gladstone Green, Woodford Leigh 31st March 1949  

Cartage of Molasses -1 pound (£1)  

Horse to Grafton -15 shillings (15/-)  

7th September 1951 -2, 44 gallon drums of petrol cost 15 pounds 4 shillings and 4 pence (£15/4/4).  

9th September paid Wunderlich & Co., South Grafton, 6 pounds 15 shillings (£6/15/-) for universal for 
International truck.   

The above story of George Ernest Yager and his wife, Lillie Jane Blanch was written by Gwen 
Mulherin, for the book titled Davis Family & Descendants -140 Years in Australia -1848 -1988 
(Compiled by Ann Marsh, and published 1988)  

(N.B. The mother of Lillie Jane Blanch was Sophia Bratfield, and Sophia was the elder sister of my 
Great Great Grandmother, Sarah, who married Frederick George Johnson, son of George & Elizabeth 
Johnson.)  

Enid Tognolini  (January 2000)  

 
* Lily a variation of the spelling of Lillie  
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The descendants of Sophia Bradfield’s 10th child LILLIE JANE BLANCH  
 
1 BLANCH Lillie Jane  b. 18 January 1880 d. 1929  
m. 28 May 1902 YAGER George Ernest  b. 14 March 1876 d. 13 June 1955  
2 YAGER Thomas Clarence  b. 22 March 1903 d. 31 May 1973  
m. 27 October 1926 SKINNER Mary Elizabeth  b. 12 May 1899 d. 15 May 1978  
3 YAGER George William  b. 30 August 1927 m. 16 Sept. 1950 RYAN Nola Elvie   
4 YAGER Desmond William  b. 21 March 1951 m. May 1976 DAVEY Cheryl  b. 13 August 1955  
5 YAGER Jason Robert  b. 14 Dec. 1975  
5 YAGER Andrew George  b. 07 Feb, 1978  
5 YAGER Mark William  b. 07 Feb. 1978  
4 YAGER Narelle Glenys  b. 02 March 1953  m. 09 January 1971 CHANDLER Peter  b.14 Feb. 1951  
5 CHANDLER Scott Douglas  b. 14 June 1971  
5 CHANDLER Troy Andrew  b. 20 Feb. 1973  
5 CHANDLER Tracy Maree  b. 16 October 1974  
5 CHANDLER Glen Peter  b. 17 January 1976  
4 YAGER Peter  b. 07 March 1956  
4 YAGER Barry Patrick  b. 21 April 1960   m. 08 June 1985 JOHNSON Annette  b. 30 March 1963  
5 YAGER Christie Jane  b. 19 Sept. 1984  
5 YAGER Nicole Sue  b. 04 January 1987  
3 YAGER Keith Rodney  b 12 January 1930  m. 02 April 1955 HYNMAN Margaret  b 06 August 1932  
4 YAGER Rodney Ian  b. 16 April 1956   m. 25 July 1980 BARFOOT Elizabeth May  b 10 May 1954  
5 YAGER Andrew David  b. 06 July 1983  
5 YAGER Jennifer Ruth  b. 27 May 1987  
4 YAGER Lynn Maree  b. 30 Dec. 1958  
3 YAGER Colin Percy  b. 1935 d. 1937   
2 YAGER Arthur Lionel  b.08 Dec. 1910 d.15 May 1953  m.26 Oct 1932 GLOVER Miriam Myrtle 
Marjorie  b. 25 October 1911 d. 23 Sept. 1980  
3 YAGER Arthur Ronald  b. 10 August 1934 m. 1955 ? Joan  m. Date ? ? Patricia m. Date ? 
MIDDLETON Dorothy (Arthur was married 3 times) 
4 YAGER Marjorie  b. 06 May 1957   m. Date ? MR WARRINGTON or WADDINGTON   
The book "A Forest of Blanches" (p.68) says that Marjorie Yager married a Mr. Waddington, but the 
book "Davis Family and Descendants" (p78) says that Marjorie married a Mr. Warrington. Without a 
year, town, or Christian name for the groom I cannot solve this one. Enid. T. 1999  
4 YAGER Susan Veronica  b. April 1959  
The book, "A Forest ofBlanches" (p68) says that Susan Veronica Yager married a Mr. Weggalan, and the 
book "Davis Family and Descandants" say that Susan Veronica married a Mr. Weggelar However, I am 
unable to find this name in either form, and in variations of either form. Enid. T. 1999  
4 YAGER Michelle April  b. 1962  
3 YAGER Leonard Keith  b. 04 Dec. 1936  m. Date ? SCHWAGER Lois   
4 YAGER Lionel James  b. 03 Sept. 1957  m. Date ? HUNTER Susan Joy   
5 YAGER Adam John  b. 07 July 1983  
5 YAGER Hayley Jane  b. 12 April 1985  
4 YAGER Joanne  b. 26 Dec. 1959 m. Date ? LENNON Michael John  
 YAGER Miriam Elsie May  b. 12 May 1938  m.24 Dec. 1955 SHEEHAN Phillip John  b 26 January 
1926 d. 16 January 1967   m. 02 Feb. 1968 CRISPEN Malcolm Bruce   
After the death of her husband, Phillip John Sheehan in 1967,  Miriam remarried a year later to Malcolm 
Bruce Crispen. The book "A Forest of Blanches" (p.68) states that Malcolm Crispen adopted Phillip 
Sheehan's five children, thus changing their surname from Sheehan to Crispen. The book "Davis Family 
and Descendants" (p.78) lists Miriam's children & grandchildren as "Sheehan", and I have retained this 
option. Enid T. 1999  
4 SHEEHAN Jacqueline Narelle b.5ept 1956 m 19 Mar 1977 GOODINGS Jeffrey Kevin b.05 Dec 1953  
5 GOODINGS Kevin John  b. 22 October 1979  
5 GOODINGS Jeremy Bruce  b. 22 October 1979 d. 22 October 1979  
5 GOODINGS Matthew Thomas  b. 05 August 1981  
5 GOODINGS Emily Jane  b. 20 June 1986  
4 SHEEHAN Phillip Anthony b. 27 March 1957 m. 11 July 1981 NICOLIA Frances  b. 30 Dec. 1959  
5 SHEEHAN Phillip John  b. 03 May 1984  
4 SHEEHAN Michael Kenneth  b. 09 Sept. 1959  
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4 SHEEHAN James Lawrence  b. 20 May 1961 m. 19 April 1983 MOSES Marcia May b.03 Nov 1964  
5 SHEEHAN Nathaniel James  b. 06 October 1983  
4 SHEEHAN Gregory John  b. 05 October 1962  
4 CRISPEN Karen Frances  b. 07 May 1971  
4 CRISPEN Colin Joseph  b. 10 June 1975  
3 YAGER Reginald Don  b. 28 Sept. 1941 m. 29 Sept. 1962 DAVIS Alice  
4 YAGER Kim Leigh  b. 31 March 1964  m. 15 January 1983 DWYER Robert Patrick   
5 DWYER Christopher Scott  b. 26 Sept. 1982  
5 DWYER Katherine June  b. 06 January 1985  
4 YAGER Alan Mark  b. 22 Dec. 1965  
4 YAGER Donald Anthony  b. 24 March 1967  
4 YAGER Angela Rachelle  b. 14 Dec. 1971  
2 YAGER Ernest Leonard b.08 Dec.1910 d.02 Apr 1981 m.08 Dec 1943 HUGHES Una May b 08 Apr 
1922  
3 YAGER Clifford Allan  b. 05 April 1945 m. Date ? EVANS Janet   
4 YAGER Kylie  b. 19 May 1969  
4 YAGER Wendy  b. 28 January 1972  
3 YAGER Pamela Joy  b. 01 Nov. 1953 m. Date ? MUNRO Russell   
4 MUNRO Luke  b. 28 Nov. 1981  
4 MUNRO Kate Maree  b. 20 April 1983  
4 MUNRO Samara  b. 23 June 1985  
2 YAGER Eric Christian John  b. 12 Feb. 1912 d. 06 August 1983  m. 31 May 1933 ENSBEY Lillian 
May  b. 29 June 1907  
3 YAGER Gweneth May  b. 01 May 1936  m. 07 July 1955 FERGUSON Frank  b. 05 Sept. 1931  
m. 21 Sept. 1985 MULHERIN David John  b. 10 Feb. 1940  
4 FERGUSON Jennifer May  b. 10 April 1956  m. 01 Nov. 1974 YOUNG Phillip Edward   
m. 19 January 1980 KELLIHER John Douglas  b. 26 Feb. 1951  
5 KELLIHER Kirsty May  b. 01 Sept. 1980  
5 KELLIHER Brooke Louise  b. 15 October 1983  
4 FERGUSON Virginia Lee  b. 24 May 1958  m. 24 July 1976 TORY James Matthew  b. 17 June 1956  
5 TORY Kharn James  b. 29 April 1979  
5 TORY Gavin Lee  b. 01 July 1981  
4 FERGUSON Rosemarie Ann  b.13 May1963  m.05 Sept.1987 FEENEY Richard  b. 24 January 1951  
4 FERGUSON Desmond Francis  b. 29 June 1968  
3 YAGER Dorothy May  b. 05 May 1939  m. 10 October 1959 EGGINS Clive  b. 12 Dec. 1936  
4 EGGINS Terence John  b. 08 May 1959  
4 EGGINS Stephen Charles  b. 13 Sept. 1960   m. 14 Feb. 1981 HOWARD Kathryn   
5 EGGINS Rebecca  b. 30 March 1984  
3 YAGER Barbara Lillian  b. 04 Sept 1941  m. 16 April 1960 HOUSE John Henry   
4 HOUSE Michael David  b. 03 April 1962  
4 HOUSE Barry Neville  b.22 Jan 1964 m. 19 March 1988 POLLEY Lynelle Tania  b 25 March 1968  
3 YAGER Valmai Dawn  b.18 Jul 1943  m.26 Jan 1963 DANIELS Arthur Francis (Bill) b.13 Aug 1941  
4 DANIELS Anthony  b. 25 May 1966  
4 DANIELS Anne Marie  b. 08 July 1967  
3 YAGER Janelle Florence  b. 27 Dec. 1946   m. 19 October 1963 YARDY Errol Stanley  b. 02 October 
1943 d. 27 August 1981  
4 YARDY Brenda Louise  b. 14 June 1964  m. Date ? LIVERMORE John Stephen  b. 06 Feb. 1958  
4 YARDY Richard James  b. 27 April 1967 m. Date ? DOUST Karen   
5 YARDY Emma Louise  b. 22 Feb. 1987  
4 YARDY Lisa Joy  b. 15 August 1971  

 
 
 

That completes the family information of 
SOPHIA BRATFIELD 13/12/1839 – 31/03/1902  

The first child of Joseph Bradfield born 1803 (in England) – & died in 1886 (in Grafton NSW) and 
Ann Reardon 
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5. JOSEPH BRADFIELD JNR 
06 March 1842 – 09 SEPT 1927 

The 5th child of Joseph Bradfield and Ann Reardon 

Joseph Bradfield Jnr*, born 1842 on the BarrowWell Estate of Seaham, spent his youth in 
the Williams river region. He came north with his parents and brother Matthew around 1869 
and settled on Palmers Island, in the lower Clarence River, following the occupation of 
Teamster and Carrier. In December 1878 he married Christina McDermid, whose family 
were also then living on Palmers Island. It is quite probable that the McDermids and the 
Bradfields were well acquainted when they lived in the Williams River district. Other 
associated names of families who made the journey north to settle in the Clarence River 
region include McPhee, McLean, Johnson etc. 
Christina McDermid was the fourth child of Hugh McDermid and Jessie McPhee who had 
been married at Clarence Town (Williams River) 20 March 1849. Jessie McPhee had arrived 
in Australia with her parents and siblings on the vessel Brilliant on 20 January 1838 when 
she was only eight years of age. Seven of Hugh and Jessie's children were born in the 
Williams River area before the family moved north to Palmers Island, where another six 
children were born. 
After Joseph and Christina were married they settled in Grafton where their ten children 
were all born. Sadly, three daughters and one son died in childhood, while another son died 
at the age of twenty-two years. However, their youngest daughter, Rosella Kallatina 
Bratfield born 1893, married 1915 to Harris Edward Claude Page, had five children, and 
eventually died in her ninety-ninth year. 
Joseph was always a hard working and honest man and was highly respected in the 
community, as was his wife Christina. Some of his descendants still live in the Clarence 
River region of NSW, but few, if any, have Joseph's surname - which he chose to be 
Bratfield instead of the name in which he was baptised - Bradfield. Both Joseph and 
Christina are buried in the Church of England Cemetery at South Grafton. (Enid Tognolini 
1999) 
* The “Jnr” addition to Joseph’s name was not seemingly used in his lifetime but I have added it to these notes 
and where his name is used to distinguish him from his father. (NM 2023) 

 

Joseph Bradfield Jnr and his wife Christina McDermid had 10 children 

1. Un-named Bratfield   1879 – 1879  (female) 

2. John Bratfield*    1880 –   (Married Isabel Lawrence) 

3. George Bradfield*   1882 – 1931 (Married Blanche Parkinson) 

4. Catherine Bratfield   1883 - 1891       

5. Ann Sophia Bratfield   1884 – 1885   

6. Joseph W Bratfield   1887 – 1909 

7. Hugh Bratfield   1888 -  ?  (Alive still in 1932) 

8. Reginald Alexander Bratfield 1890 – 1934   

9. Rosella Kallatina Bratfield*  1893 – 1991  (Married Harris Edward Claude Page) 

10. Samuel T Bratfield   1900 – 1901   
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Joseph Bradfield Jnr in centre of photo taken in Wharf St Maclean in the early 1900’s 
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The descendants of Joseph Bradfield Jnr & Christina McDermid’s 2nd & 3rd children  
JOHN BRATFIELD & GEORGE BRADFIELD  

 1 BRADFIELD Joseph  b. 06 March 1842 d. 09 Sept 1927  
Married  24 Dec. 1878 McDERMID Christina b. 01 July 1855 d. 22 May 1926  
 
2 BRATFIELD Un-named Female b. 1879 -14312 d. 1879 
 
 2 BRATFIELD John b.1880  
 married. 22 January 1913 LAWRENCE Isabel b. 1878  

 
3 BRATFIELD Lawrence John  b. 1913 - d. 19Dec. 1980  

married 1938 EATON Evelyn Mavis  
 
 4 BRATFIELD Beryl Jean  b. 1939  

married. 25 Sept. 1958 SKENNAR Roy Mervyn  
 
5 SKENNAR Michael John   
5 SKENNAR Darlene Ann   

 
2 BRADFIELD George  b. 1882 - d. 19 Dec 1931   

Married  20 July 1910 PARKINSON Blanche Sarah b. 1879 -14205  
Probably as an 'oversight', George was registered at birth as "Bradfield", and he kept that 
spelling of his surname for his marriage, and at the registration of his three children.(ET). 
Blanche Sarah Parkinson was actually registered as "Sarah Blanche" when born in 1879, but 
must have preferred her name as Blanche Sarah.  
Her marriage in 1910 legally gave the name "Bradfield" to Clarence G., born in 1909. It is not 
possible to say that George Bradfield was also the father of Roy Parkinson, born in 1899; 
however this lad died in 1918, under the name of "Roy Bradfield". (ET) 
 
3 PARKINSON (Bradfield) Roy  b. 1899 d. 1918  (See note above) 
 
3 BRADFIELD Clarence George. b. 1909 d. 28 Feb 1947 
 Clarence G. was born in 1909, and was registered as "Parkinson", with Blanche as his mother -

no father mentioned. His parents' marriage in 1910 legitimized his birth, and he was again 
registered -this time (1910) as "Bradfield". (ET) 

 
3 BRADFIELD Lilian M. b. 1912      m. 1930 -01390 EDWARDS Clarence G.  

 
 3 BRADFIELD Ray b. 1915  
 

2 BRATFIELD Catherine b. 1883  d  July 1891 (Died when 8 years old) 
 
2 BRATFIELD Ann Sophia  b. 15 Dec. 1884 d. 29 Dec. 1885  (Died when 1 year old) 
 
2 BRATFIELD Joseph W. b. 1887   d.16 Sept. 1909  (Died when 22 years old) See Obit next pages.  
 
2 BRATFIELD Hugh   b.1888  (Still alive in 1932, see newspaper article next pages) 
 
2 BRATFIELD Reginald Alexander b. 1890  d. 23 June 1934  
2 BRATFIELD Rosella Kallatina (Her family and descendant list covered in later pages) 
2 BRATFIELD Samuel T.  b. 1900 d. 1901 
 
The next few pages contain records and newspaper articles relating to some of the 8 children listed 
above, following those pages are the descendants of Joseph Jnr’s 9th child Rosella Kallatina 
Bratfiled. The 10th child Samuel T Bratfiled died as 9 months in 1901.  
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Marriage record of Joseph Bratfield Jnr’s son John Bratfield to Isabel 
Lawrence in 1913. Note his occupation “Carrier” 

Marriage Certificate of George Bradfield. As noted 
previously his name is spelt BRADFIELD as his 
fathers in this document. All other siblings and his 
father used the BRATFIELD spelling of the name.  
Above: Death notice indicates that George lived in 
Dorrigo/Bellingen area. 
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Above: Death notice of Clarence G Bradfield 
1909 – 28 Feb 1947 the son of George (death 

notice previous page) 

Above: Notice concerning the 4th child of 
Joseph Bratfield Jnr Catherine (Kate) who died 

when she was 8 years old in 1891. 

Above: The 6th child of Joseph Bratfield Jnr 
he died 16

th
 Sept 1909. 

Above: A story about a land dispute involving 
the 7

th
 and 8

th
 children  of Joseph Bratfield 

Jnr; Hugh and Reginald in 1922 

Above: The 7th child of Joseph Bratfield Jnr 
seems to have been in some trouble 1932 
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Above: The 8th child of Joseph Bratfield Jnr 
Reginald Bratfield had case brought against 
him in court in 1929. It provides interesting 
information about him and his work as well. 

 

Right: The death notice of  of Joseph Bratfield 
Jnr & Christina McDermid’s 10

th
 and last child 

Samuel T Bratfield who died in 1901. 
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The descendants of Joseph Bradfield Jnr & Christina McDermid’s 9th child  
 ROSELLA KALLATINA BRADFIELD  

 
2 BRATFIELD Rosella Kallatina  b. 21 July 1893 d. 16 Dec. 1991  

married. 21 Sept. 1915 PAGE Harris Edward Claude  b.15 March 1887 d. 09 Feb. 1954  
3 PAGE Charles Osmond Joseph  b. 14 March 1917  
married. Date ? WALTERS Gwendoline   

4 PAGE Diane  m. McKINNON Errol   
5 McKINNON Karen  married. Date ? DUNLOP Peter   
5 McKINNON Mark  

4 PAGE Barbara  married. McPHEE Barry   
5 McPHEE Tracey  married. REID M.  

6 REID Riahana   
5 McPHEE Kylie   

4 PAGE Janice  married. HARGREAVES Mervyn   
5 HARGREAVES Alisha   

3 PAGE Jack Raymond b.28 Feb1922 married 7April 1945 SCRIVENER Nancy d 1 Dec 
1991  

4 PAGE Lynette Anne  b. 02 January 1946  married. 01 October 196? COTTON Wayne  
5 COTTON Lisa Jane  b. 07 July 1969  

4 PAGE Jennifer Elizabeth b.22 April 19?? married McCONNELL John   
5 McCONNELL Travis John  

4 PAGE David John b. 07 Septem. 19?? married BAILEY Janet Frances   
5 PAGE Brandt Christian  
5 PAGE Joshua Bryce   

3 PAGE Gwendoline E.  b.14 May 1925  married Date ? MACPHERSON Lindsay  
4 MACPHERSON Philip married UNKNOWN Sue  

5 MACPHERSON Thomas  
5 MACPHERSON Archibald   
5 MACPHERSON Jack  

4 MACPHERSON Russell  m. FISHER Kinga   
5MACPHERSON Angus   
5 MACPHERSON Dougal   
5 MACPHERSON ------  

3 PAGE Harris Keith  b 11 Sept. 1928 m. Date unknown DOBINSON Betty 
4 PAGE Tony  m. UNKNOWN Lynnette   

5 PAGE Child   
4 PAGE Gregory  m. UNKNOWN Kerry   
4 PAGE Leanne  m. CROFT David   

5 CROFT Female   
4 PAGE Kerry   

3 PAGE Ella Joan  b. 18 October 1931 m. Date unknown HANSEN Lambert   
4 HANSEN John  m. UNKNOWN Lindy   

5 HANSEN Male   
5 HANSEN Female (one of twins)   
5 HANSEN Female (one of twins)  

4 HANSEN Peter  
4 HANSEN Bruce  m. ? UNKNOWN   

5 HANSEN Male  
 

That completes the family information of 
JOSEPH BRATFIELD JNR 05/03/1842 – 09/09/1927  

The fifth child of Joseph Bradfield born 1803 (in England) – & died in 1886 (in Grafton NSW) and 
Ann Reardon 
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7. SARAH BRADFIELD 
23 March 1847 – 25 FEBRUARY 1919 

The 7th child of Joseph Bradfield and Ann Reardon 
(The youngest 'child' of Joseph & Anne) 

A little bit out of sequence here I have put SARAH before her older brother THOMAS (who 
is the 6th child of Joseph and Ann) to provide consistency with the family history I will be 
adding to the Thomas line in later sections of this book – (Neville Maloney 2023) 
Enid Tognolini (nee Reeves) continues her story: 
Sarah Bradfield was my Great Great Grandmother, and died over eleven years before I was 
born. Unfortunately I do not have any photos of her, and the only photo I have of any of her 
children is that of Alice Sophia, her first-born, from whom I am descended. That photo was 
obtained for me by the kindness of Eileen M. Richards, nee Woods. I feel sure that other 
photos exist  
I had at first thought of continuing the "Bradfield Story" with the material I have re Sarah, but then realised 
that Sarah's husband, Frederick George Johnson, (my Great Great Grandfather) came to Australia with his 
parents and brother and sister, and already had an Aunt (his father's half sister) in the Colony who was married 
and had her own family. Having researched as much as I can about the Johnson Family, I have decided to put 
together a separate "book" about the Johnsons, and merely present this brief outline of Sarah to be included in 
"The Bradfield Story".  

Sarah was the youngest child of Joseph and Anne Bradfield, was born at Seaham, N.S.W. on 
23rd March 1847, and was baptised on 16th April 1847 at the Catholic Parish of East 
Maitland. She married Frederick George Johnson at the Church of England in Seaham on 
03rd May 1866, and her marriage certificate is the first occasion where I can find her 
surname becoming "Bratfield".  
Sarah's first child was born at Seaham, the next two had their births registered at Raymond 
Terrace, but the fourth child was registered at Maclean as the family had then moved to 
Palmers Island. The remaining nine children were also born at Palmers Island.  
Sarah died on February 25th 1919 at Condong, Tweed River, and is buried with her husband 
in the Florence Street Cemetery, Tweed Heads, NSW. (ET 1999)  
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The Descendants of Sarah BRADFIELD 1847 – 1919 & Frederick JOHNSON 
 
1 BRADFIELD Sarah  b. 23 March 1847 d. 25 Feb. 1919  
married. 03 May 1866 JOHNSON Frederick George  b. 10 August 1845  d.01 Feb. 1919   
 
Frederick George Johnson married Sarah Bradfield (Bratfield) when their first child, Alice, was about 
eleven months of age. They eventually moved up to Palmers Island (Lower Clarence River), as did 
Sarah's parents and other members of the family . Some were already residing in the Clarence River 
region by this time. At one time Frederick George was running the hotel on Palmers Island. Eventually 
the family moved on to the Tweed River area. Condong was once known as "Johnsonville".  
 
2 JOHNSON Alice Sophia  b. 22 June 1865 d. 07 Oct. 1928  
Married . 28 June 1882 PHILLIPS John Matthew  b. 04 May 1858 d. 25 June 1922  
3 PHILLIPS Joseph Matthew  b. 14 August 1882 d. 28 July 1914  
m. 6 March 1908 CROWE Jean Mary   
4 PHILLIPS Un-named male child 8 b. 1908  d. 1908   
4 PHILLIPS Alice Jean  b. 1909 – 
4 PHILLIPS John J. (Jack)  b. 1912 -  
3 PHILLIPS Catherine Mary  b. 06 Sept. 1884 d. 25 July 1953  
m. 04 Feb. 1904 REEVES Thomas Lollback  b. 17 Nov. 1878 d. 15 Dec. 1943  
4 REEVES Thomas John  b. 22 January 1905 d. 05 Nov. 1972  
m. 16 May 1925 CUTTS Evelyn Grace  b. 17 April 1907 d. 11 June 1979  
5 REEVES Evelyn Joyce  b. 06 June 1926 d. 18 June 1938  
5 REEVES Enid Morrison  b. 07 Sept. 1930  This is Enid Tognolini who did all of this research (NM 2023) 
m. 08 April 1950 TOGNOLINI Roger William  b. 26 June 1924  
6 TOGNOLINI Barbara Enid  b. 12 April 1951  
m. 10 April 1970 UNDERDOWN Terence Ernest Arthur  b. 31 January 1950  
7 UNDERDOWN Karen Louise  b. 04 October 1971   m. 18 May 1991 KING Jeffrey Peter  
8 KING Emily Louise  b. 03 May 1992  
7 UNDERDOWN Belinda Joye  b. l3 October 1972  
7 UNDERDOWN Amanda Grace  b. l3 April 1975    m. 29 March 1997 FIRMIN Stephen   
8 FIRMIN Camilla Grace  b. 14 June 1995  
8 FIRMIN Jasmine Jade  b. 29 July 1998  
7 UNDERDOWN Mark Terence  b. 05 April 1979  
7 UNDERDOWN Terese Leanne  b. 18 March 1981  
6 TOGNOLINI David Roger John  b.12 May 1954    m.06 Oct 1973 TRINDER Shirley b.11 May 1955  
7 TOGNOLINI Douglas David  b. 18 May 1974  
7 TOGNOLINI Tania Leigh  b. 15 July 1975  
6 TOGNOLINI Paul Anthony b.14 June 1962     m.18 Feb 1989 REBECCHI Gillian Ann b.25 Jan 1964  
7 TOGNOLINI Josie-Ann  b. 02 Nov. 1990  
7 TOGNOLINI Nikki Inglis  b.13 August 1996  
The father of Nikki was a gentleman named Mr. Inglis. Unfortunately he was killed a month or two prior 
to Nikki's birth -hence her second Christian name -Inglis. (Paul & Gillian were divorced at this time.) 
Roger and Enid Tognolini welcome Nikki Inglis Tognolini as their Grand-daughter. (ET)  
 
4 REEVES Henry Charles  b. 27:12:1906 d. 26:08:1976     m. 5 August 1930 BUTLER Ethel Lillian   
5 REEVES Alice Mary  b. 28 July 1931     m. 12 April 1952 GARLAND Frederick J.  
6 GARLAND Frederick J.  b. 29 March 1955    m. 23 Feb. 1985 LEWIS Deryth   
7 GARLAND David Frederick  b. 20 January 1986  
6 GARLAND Ellis Charles  b. 21 October 1958   m. 21 October 1987 HAMLIN Cheryn   
7 GARLAND Christopher  b. 13 March 1980  
7 GARLAND Darren Ellis  b. 22 May 1986  
6 GARLAND Peter James  b. 15 Nov. 1960  
6 GARLAND Janice Mary  b. 12 Nov. 1964  
5 REEVES Margaret D.         m. 27 Nov. 1954 PROFKE Wilhelm Carl   
6 PROFKE Cheryll b. 1955  
6 PROFKE Gayle  b. 1958  
6 PROFKE Sharon  b. 1959  
5 REEVES John Henry  b. 15 March 1937    m. August 1963 VAUGHAN Gwenda     
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6 REEVES Gavin John  b. 18 May 1964    
4 REEVES Elizabeth Alice  b. 03:11 :1908 d. 10:04:1977    m. 27 July 1940 ROOT Jack Ernest   
5 ROOT Allan Ross  b. 16 May 1942  
5 ROOT John Charles Thomas  b. 29 July 1945    m. Date ? HAMMOND Ann   
m. 26 June 1971 HAYNES Patricia E.  
6 ROOT Gary John b. 27 Dec. 1964  
6 ROOT Nichole L.  b. 13 August 1972  
6 ROOT Troy A.  b. 16 October 1973  
6 ROOT Tiffany A.  b. 4 January 1983  
6 ROOT Trenton J.  b. 12 April 1984  
5 ROOT Dianne Margaret  b. 24 October 1949 d. April 1989  
 m. 28 June 1969 HANCOX Desmond I.E.  b. 15 Sept. 1947  
6 HANCOX Tanya Marie  b. 16 October 1971  
6 HANCOX Rodney Glen  b. 13 Nov. 1972  
6 HANCOX Jennifer Ann  b. 26 January 1975  
4 REEVES Hilda Mary b. 08:12: 1912 d. 11: 11: 1949    m. 1932 - Robert Peter  b. 1906  
Hilda Mary (McAdoo) died in the Tweed District Hospital during the birth of her sixth child in November 
1949. The baby died with her. (ET) 
5 McADOO Mary Josephine  b. 17 August 1932 m. 8 Nov. 1950 HARDING Edgar   
m. 6 February 1971 HOPKINSON Cecil Norman   
6 HARDING Judith Mary  b.18 Dec 1951    m. Date unknown NOBLE Royce   
7 NOBLE Courtney Michelle  b. 16 Dec. 1978  
7 NOBLE David Trent  b. 3 Sept. 1983  
6 HARDING Kevin E. John  
5 McADOO Margaret  b. 1935  
5 McADOO Yvonne Patricia  b. 4 October 1936     m. 11 August 1956 CLEGG Alfred   
6 CLEGG Alfred  b. 02 Feb. 1957    m. Date ? KROPP Susan Jane   
7 CLEGG Steven  
7 CLEGG Bradley Neil  
6 CLEGG Raymond  b. 29 March 1958     m. Date ? POOLE Debra Ann  
7 CLEGG Rebecca Ann  
7 CLEGG Luke Raymond  
 6 CLEGG Ian  b. 13 May 1959   m. Date  ?   HARDIE Cheryl Ann  
 7 CLEGG Jason Andrew  
7 CLEGG Jodie Marie  
6 CLEGG Janette  b. 5 July 1960    m. Date ? GELDARD Robert  
6 CLEGG Sharon  b. 26 October 1963    m. Date ? WEBSTER Joseph   
7 WEBSTER Natasha Lee   
7 WEBSTER Daniel Mark   
5 McADOO Robert  b. November 1937  
5 McADOO Alma   
4 REEVES Dorothy May 0 b. 08:09:1915 d. 07:03:1980  m. Date ?  FILBY Gordon   
Dorothy May Reeves was my father's youngest sister. She married in 1937 -(06479) to Thomas Deacon, who 
apparently was already married. It was during this time that she 'adopted' her niece, Gwane Josephine 
Phillips. Later (date unknown to me) she did legally marry Gordon Filby. (Thomas Deacon was introduced to 
the Family as "Tommy Tippett" and seemed quite a nice chap.) Enid M Tognolini (nee Reeves) Jan. 1999.  
 
3 PHILLIPS Sarah Ann  b. 24 April 1887 d. 07 March 1978   m. 30 June 1915 ENGELMAN George   
4 ENGELMAN Alma Mavis b. 1916     m. 1941 -11970 ATKIN Athol Donald   
3 PHILLIPS Margaret Sophia  b. 01 July 1889 d. 14 Feb. 1979   
married 20 May 1914 WOODS Arthur James 4 b. 30 June 1887 d. 13 Feb. 1922  
4 WOODS Eileen Margaret  b. 13 Dec. 1914  
married. 9 January 1943 RICHARDS Raymond Joseph  b. 06 January 1919  
5 RICHARDS Brian Arthur  b. 18 March 1952  
 married. 14 April 1973 FORSTER Barbara Marion  b. 25 October 1954  
6 RICHARDS Jade Leonie  b. 18 June 1980  
6 RICHARDS Laura Marion  b. 24 January 1984  
3 PHILLIPS Frederick William  b. 22 June 1890    m. 3 May 1916 DOWLING Margaret   
4 PHILLIPS William Joseph  b. 1917 -12929    m. 1939 -04272 SMITH Gwendoline   
5 PHILLIPS John   
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5 PHILLIPS Gwane Josephine  b. 21 March 1942    m. 7 January 1961 WALKER John Ralph   
6 WALKER Brett John  b. 18 Nov. 1964  
6 WALKER Brenda Kathleen  b. 4 August 1966  
6 WALKER Charmagne Elsie  b. 30 January 1968  
6 WALKER Ashley John  b. 3 February 1971  
4 PHILLIPS Hilda Mary  b. 1918 -   m. 1939 - PRINDABLE Matthew Kevin   
5 PRINDABLE Barbara   
5 PRINDABLE Paul   
5 PRINDABLE Terence   
5 PRINDABLE Jan       m. AXELBY  ? 
4 PHILLIPS Iris Marion     m. 1936 CONNOR Stanley Earle  
4 PHILLIPS Reginald   
4 PHILLIPS Valerie   
4 PHILLIPS Beryl   
4 PHILLIPS Bernard  
3 .PHILLIPS George Thomas  b. 19 April 1893    m. 3 Nov 1916 STAFF Alma Gladys  b. 1899   
4 PHILLIPS Allan  
4 PHILLIPS Ronald   
3 PHILLIPS Joshua (Ozzie) 1 b. 14 August 1894    m. 10 March 1915 DUNNE Edna M. (Minnie)   
4 PHILLIPS Joseph C.  b. 1916   
3 PHILLIPS May  b. 16 June 1897 d. 17 May 1945   m. 25 April 1916 DARE James Charles   
4 DARE Collin  
4 DARE Norma Joan  b. 1918   
3 PIDLLIPS Clarence  b. January 1900 d. 1978     m. 1924  BOURKE Margaret M. (Maggie)  b. 1902 
"Clarrie" Phillips was my father's Uncle, but Clarrie was only five years older than Dad (Thomas John 
Reeves) so they were more like Cousins. Clarrie loved the Redcliffe Peninsula, and all of Moreton Bay, and 
often brought his young wife and daughter to Suttons Beach to enjoy the sun and sea. After his death his ashes 
were cast onto the mud flats of the Brisbane River near Capalaba, and I believe this would have been a fitting 
finale to Clarence. (Enid T 1999) 
  
4 PHILLIPS Joan Kathleen b.14 August 1927 d.14 Dec.1996  
married.MR. BOSTOCK b. 27August 1922 d. 06 Feb. 1984  
5 BOSTOCK Phillip A.  b. 25 June 1949    m. UNKNOWN Brenda   
6 BOSTOCK Andrew Arthur b. 10 June 1984  
6 BOSTOCK Adam John  b. 10 June 1984  
2 JOHNSON William  b. 1867 -15409 d. 08 Sept. 1956  
2 JOHNSON George  b. 1870    m. Date ?  McLEOD Christina Hannah  b. 1879  
 I can find no record of a marriage for George Johnson to Christina Hannah McLeod, either in Queensland or 
in N.S.W. E.M.T. 1999. McLEOD: Christina Hannah McLeod was the fifth child registered to William and 
Hannah McLeod of the Tweed River region, as listed in the B.M.Ds. ofN.S.W. Unfortunately I cannot find a 
marriage of William & Hannah in N.S.W., nor can I find a marriage of Christina Hannah McLeod to George 
Johnson. (Enid T 1999) 
 
3 JOHNSON Kitty  
Kitty Johnson was a Matron (or Deputy Matron) of the Brisbane General Hospital at one time (around the 
1940s), and later took charge of a Childrens' Home at Wooloowin, a suburb of Brisbane, Queensland. She 
remained single. Can find no record of her birth, either in N.S.W. or Queensland, yet I know that she existed, 
because I knew her. (Enid T 1999) 
 
3 JOHNSON Frederick William b. 1897   m. Date ? UNKNOWN   
4 JOHNSON Keith   
3 JOHNSON Ena May  b. 1898  
3 JOHNSON Alexander C.  b. 1900  
2 JOHNSON Joseph 3 b. 1872  d. 06 June 1915    m. 1899  TRUTE Nellie  b. 1876 -21195  
3 JOHNSON Clarence  b. 1901  d. 1985    m. 1930  VARDY Edna D.  b. 01 Nov. 1909 d. 26 Feb. 1994  
4 JOHNSON Audrey b. 1932    m. 1950 CURTIS Donald  
5 CURTIS Lyn  b. 1950     m. Date ?  TREDWELL Leon   
6 TREDWELL Sonia  b. 1973  
6 TREDWELL Melinda  b. 1974  
6 TREDWELL Leanne  b. 1977  
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5 CURTIS Jennifer  b. 1952    m. Date ? GOULDING Stan   
6 GOULDING Catherine  b. 1973  
6 GOULDING Alison  b. 1974  
5 CURTIS Heather  b. 1955    m. Date ?  STONE Graham  m. Date ? LAND Steve   
6 STONE Daniel  b. 1979  
6 LAND Tony  b. 1987  
5 CURTIS Paula  b. 1964  
4 JOHNSON Lorna  b. 1933   m. 1956 CULLEN Trevor m. 1981 CHISHOLM "Snow"   
5 CULLEN Wayne  b. 1961    m. Date ? ALEXANDER Ellen   
4 JOHNSON Nellie  b. 1936    m. 1954 NAPPER Lloyd   
5 NAPPER Wendy  b. 1958  
5 NAPPER Dawn  b. 1964     m. Date ? PATISON Graham   
4 JOHNSON Eunice  b. 1947    m. 1967 HIGGINS Wayne   
5 HIGGINS Timothy  b. 1973    m. Sept 1995 JAMES Tracey  b. 1973 5 HIGGINS Luke b. 1978  
2 JOHNSON Frederick Thomas  b. 1874 d. 25 Aug 1919  
Married . 6 February 1901 KORSCH Anna Dorothea Alvina (Annie) b. 14 July 1881 3  
JOHNSON Ivy M.  b. 1901       m. 1921  BROWN Victor H.A.  
4 BROWN Mervyn   
4 BROWN Darcy   
3 JOHNSON Alice Annie  b. 1903    m. 1922  TURNER Philip  b. 1894 -22921  
4 TURNER Noel  b. 1926    m. Date ?  KYBURZ Nola   
5 TURNER Eric   
5 TURNER PHILIP   
5 TURNER Female   
4 TURNER Dorothy Joan     m. Date ?  BIRKETT William Gordon   
5 BIRKETT Hiliary  b. 1948    m. Date ? COUSINS Geoffrey  
6 COUSINS Andrew   
6 COUSINS Peter   
5 BIRKETT Margot  b. 1953   m. Date ?  REYNOLDS Mark   
3 JOHNSON Eric George  b. 1908    m. 1936  LISLE Dorothy Gertrude   
3 JOHNSON Doris Daphne 5 b. 1916   m. 1942  ANDERSON John William (Jack)   
4 ANDERSON Narelle   m. Date ? GLASHEEN John   
5 GLASHEEN John   
5 GLASHEEN Paul   
3 JOHNSON Vincent Frederick  b. 1918  d. 24 June 1919  
2 JOHNSON Elizabeth A.P.  b. 1876 m. Not married to father of William J Johnson (father unknown)   
Married . 1901  FOWLER Albert R.  
3 JOHNSON William J.  b. 1893  (Father unknown)  
3 JOHNSON Frederick David  b. 1897  d. 15 March 1939  m. 1924 -17800 HALL Violet  
Frederick David Johnson was accidently drowned at the Tweed River Bar, Tweed Heads, N.S.W. on 15 March 
1939, leaving a widow with five young children. F.D. Johnson is buried in the Old Tweed Heads Cemetery, in 
Florence Street, Tweed Heads, N.S.W. (Enid Tognolini 1998)  Fredrick & William probably had the same 
unknown father.  
 
4 JOHNSON Cecil  b. Ca 1925  (Ca abbreviation “Circa about”) 
4 JOHNSON Richard  b. Ca 1930  
4 JOHNSON Mavis  b. Ca 1932  
4 JOHNSON Betty  b. Ca 1935  
4 JOHNSON James  b. Ca 1937  
3 FOWLER Thomas F.  b. 1902   
A "Thomas F. Fowler" married Margaret M . Molloy in 1929 -10790; registered at Raymond Terrace, N.S.W. I 
do not know if this is 'our' Thomas F. Fowler. (Enid T. 1998)  
 
3 FOWLER Florence M.  b. 1910    m. 1930 -  FOSTER James R.L.   
4 FOSTER Leonard   
4 FOSTER Merle   
3 FOWLER Albert Leslie  b. 1913    m. 1938  KING Margaret Elsie  
3 FOWLER Elsie D. b. 1916   
2 JOHNSON John Matthew  b. 1878     m. 1905  HANNAFIN Kathleen   
3 JOHNSON Frederick George  b. 29 Aug 1906 d. 1973   m. 1934 FLEMMING Majory  b. 1912 d. 1974  
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4 JOHNSON Patricia  b. 1935     m. 1956 WILSON Ian   
5 WILSON Gregory  b. 1957  
5 WILSON Peter  b. 1959       m. Date ? WAY Desley   
5 WILSON Stephen  b. 1962  
5 WILSON Brian  b. 1964      m. Date ? BENNETT Sherie   
6 WILSON Shandelle  b. 1984  
6 WILSON Adam  b. 1988  
5 WILSON Darren  b. 1966  
5 WILSON Christopher  b. 1968  
4 JOHNSON Kathleen  b. 1937 d. 1975  
4 JOHNSON June  b. 1943      m. 1967 PRICE John   
5 PRICE Malcolm  b. 1968  
5 PRICE Tracey  b. 1970 d. 1970  
5 PRICE Anthony  b. 1971  
4 JOHNSON John  b. 1945    m. 1970 BOURKE Denise m. 1977 QUASS Ursula   
5 JOHNSON Fiona  b. 1972  
5 JOHNSON Natasha  b. 1977  
4 JOHNSON Cheryl  b. 1950    m. Date ? WATTS David   
5 WATTS Melissa  b. 1978  
5 WATTS Susan  b. 1980  
3 JOHNSON Joseph M.  b. 1909 -  m. 1932  KUHL Iris  d. 13 March 1995  
4 JOHNSON Lesley  b. 1940  
3 JOHNSON Kathleen Elsie  b. 1910   m. 1935  KING James W.   
4 KING Brian  b. 1936       m. Date ? McGRATH Rita   
5 KING Lisa   
5 KING Jason   
5 KING Rohan   
5 KING Adrian   
4 KING Jan  b. 1941    m. Date ?  SMITH Ronald   
5 SMITH Brett b. 1963  
5 SMITH Craig  b. 1967  
4 KING Margaret  b. 1951   m. Date ? ROSS Steven    
3 JOHNSON Walter H.  b. 1914    m. Date ? GILLEATT Hazel  m. Date ? ROBINSON Judy  
4 JOHNSON Helen   
2 JOHNSON Daniel Henry  b. 1880   m. 1910  MILLER Mary Ellen   
3 JOHNSON Frederick William  b. 1912    m. 1936  ADAMS Edna Viti   
4 JOHNSON Ross  b. 1939     m. Date ? HANNA Delma   
5 JOHNSON Mark  b. 1964  
5 JOHNSON David  b. 1966  
5 JOHNSON Lisa  b. 1969  
4 JOHNSON Marilyn  b. 1940    m. Date ? EDWARDS Alan   
5 EDWARDS Wendy  b. 1966  
5 EDWARDS Peter  b. 1968  
5 EDWARDS Rosslyn  b. 1976  
2 JOHNSON Ellen M.  b. 1883 -14823   m. Date ? DAVIS William   
2 JOHNSON Peter N.  b. 1884 -16643 d. 1891   
2 JOHNSON Gertrude Sarah  b. 1885    married . 1908  DUNSDON George   
3 DUNSDON Hazel Olive May  b 20 Aug 1904 d. 30 Aug 1977  
Married . 1922  EVERSON Aubrey Hugh (Tom) b. 04 Sept 1897 d. 07 July 1969  
Hazel Olive May Johnson was born in Queensland to an unmarried Gertrude Sarah Johnson on 20 August 
1904 (Ref 04/00984) Information taken from microfiche -B.M.Ds. Queensland. (Enid T) 
 
4 EVERSON Stanley Hugh  b. 22 April 1923    m. 10 April 1954 FRITH Dorothy Ann  b. 22 April 1926  
4 EVERSON Rita May  b. 10 Nov. 1924     m. Date ? GOREY Desmond George   
5 GOREY Judith Ann     m. Date ? SOUTHCOMBE Richard   
6 SOUTHCOMBE Timothy   
6 SOUTHCOMBE Taran   
5 GOREY Graeme   
5 GOREY Elizabeth  
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5 GOREY Craig Stanley   
4 EVERSON William George  b.  d. 21 Nov. 1991  m. Date ? GRAY Joan   
5 EVERSON Julie Ann   
5 EVERSON Mark 1    m. Date ? UNKNOWN Sally   
5 EVERSON David Peter   
5 EVERSON Barbara     m. Date ? GILL Philip   
6 GILL Lauren   
5 EVERSON Christopher John   
4 EVERSON Beryl Gertrude  m. Date ? JORDAN Kevin Michael  m. Date ? REEVES Bernard Reginald   
5 JORDAN Allan Michael     m. Date ? McNISH Joyce   
6 JORDAN Sarah   
6 JORDAN Matthew   
6 JORDAN Luke   
6 JORDAN Belinda   
5 REEVES Bernard John   
4 EVERSON Colin Francis   m. Date ? PETERSEN Hazel   
5 EVERSON Susanne   m. Date ?  COOK Wallace   
6 COOK Matthew   
6 COOK Female  
 6 COOK Male   
5 EVERSON Ross   
5 EVERSON Gary    m. Date ? UNKNOWN Susan   
6 EVERSON Joel   
6 EVERSON Reese   
5 EVERSON Belinda    m. Date ? LADE Peter  
6 LADE Katherine   
4 EVERSON Alan Aubrey  b. 04 April 1944  m. Date ? McCOY Margaret   
4 EVERSON Denise    m. Date ? MORROW Gregory \ 
5 MORROW Sharon Denise  m. Date ? WILSON David  
6 WILSON Timothy b.12 April 1993  
5 MORROW Scott   
5 MORROW Shane   
5 MORROW Catherine   
3 DUNSDON Mary E.  b. 1909  d. 1909   
3 DUNSDON Edward George  b. 10 Dec.1910  d. 07 Sept 1973  
married. 07 July 1932 KEYS Beryl Gertrude b 23 Sept 1915 d. 03 July 1970  
4 DUNSDON Barrie Edward  b. 07 Feb.1933 m.29 January 1964 UNKNOWN Lesley Jean b.01 Jun 1942  
5 DUNSDON Craig Steven  b. 27 July 1964  
5 DUNSDON Julie Ann  b. 09 October 1965  
5 DUNSDON Scott Andrew  b. 24 June 1971  
2 JOHNSON Clarence L.  b. 1887  d. Ca 1972   m. Date ? LEECH May   
2 JOHNSON Lilian  b. 1888  m. 1906  CLARK Samuel   
3 CLARK Lillian Gwen  b. 1907  A "Lillian G. Clark" married Stanley H. Charlier (1929) at Annandale, 
N.S.W.; but I do not know if this is 'our' Lillian Gwen Clark. (Enid M Tognolini 1998).  
3 CLARK Enid M.  b. 1910 
 

 
 
 
 

That completes the family information of 
SARAH BRATFIELD 23/03/1847 – 25/02/1919 

The seventh child of Joseph Bradfield born 1803 (in England) – & died in 1886 (in Grafton NSW) and 
Ann Reardon 
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6. THOMAS BRATFIELD 
08 APRIL 1844 – 13 SEPTEMBER 1907 
The 6th child of Joseph Bradfield and Ann Reardon 

 
A little bit out of sequence again I have put SARAH the 7th child ahead of  her older brother 
THOMAS (who is the 6th child of Joseph and Ann) to provide consistency as I continue in 
later sections with Thomas’s son Patrick, my grandfather. (Neville Maloney 2023) 
The Bratfield/Bradfield spelling issue becomes a messy affair as we work through 
Thomas’s family. In notes from Enid Tognolini she refers to Thomas as Bradfield but it is 
pretty clear that he was always knows as Thomas BRATFIELD (newspaper articles and his 
headstone). I will usually refer to him as Bratfield.  
The name of his wife Bridget is equally confusing. Enid uses the spelling Callaghan and 
with good reason her first child John Henry was named Callaghan (before she was married) 
on his birth certificate. BUT a newspaper notice concerning her father’s will spells his name 
as Calinan and her marriage certificate her name is spelt Callian. There are other references 
and I have seen O’Callian so I have notes with a variety of spellings. I have left her name as 
Callaghan in Enid’s notes but I have settled on Callian as the correct spelling. (Neville 
Maloney 2023) 

 
Thomas Bratfield was born at Seaham in 1844, the sixth of seven children of Joseph 
Bradfield and Anne Riordan/Reardon.  
He married Bridget, the daughter of John and Margaret Callaghan/Callian/O’Callian who 
was born 26 September 1844 near Brookfield, which is between Clarence Town and 
Dungog. It is most probable that the Bradfield and Callaghan/Callian/O’Callian families 
were friends of long standing. 
When Bridget was nineteen years she gave birth to a son who was registered as John Henry 
Callaghan, by Bridget's second cousin, Michael Roach of Ballydrade. (also spelt as 
"Ballidrihid") The following year, 1864, Thomas Bradfield and Bridget were married, and 
together with the toddler John Henry (Harry) they came from the Williams River by bullock 
dray to settle on "Rosedale", a grant of land near Stroud. 
Thomas and Bridget lived and worked on "Rosedale" all their (married) lives, and, including 
John Henry, they had seventeen children. Sadly in 1877 they had twins, two sons, who did 
not survive, and it is believed that these little ones were buried on "Rosedale".  
Thomas and Bridget must have been wonderful parents, and photos of their 'children' show 
elegant young ladies and handsome young gentleman. I am told (by one of Bridget's grand-
daughters) that Christmas Day was always spent at "Rosedale" with the entire family 
present. 
Of their sons it would appear that Joseph and George (and their respective families) chose 
to work within the Sydney region; Patrick moved to the Northern Rivers District of New 
South, living and working around Ulmarra, and later at Tullymorgan in the Clarence River 
region.  
John Henry (Harry) had his own farm at Gloucester, and his younger brother Thomas 
(Tom) worked for him on the land.  
Adjoining "Rosedale" was "Lilydale', which Horace bought in 1919, and at the back of 
"Rosedale" and "Lilydale" was "Leighton" which Thomas Jnr (Tom) purchased after John 
Henry's death when the Gloucester Farm was sold. Sadly Vincent died just before his 
eighteenth birthday.  
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Of the daughters, four married and moved from "Rosedale" (they were Lillian, Amy 
Christina, Evelyn Malvina, and Nettie Vera Pearl), while Mary Ann & her daughter 
Evar (Nean) remained at home. Beatrice May lived and worked in Sydney all her adult 
life. 
After the death of Thomas in 1907, Bridget and the unmarried members of her family 
remained at "Rosedale", until eventually only Mary Ann, Nean, and Archibald were left. 
These three then put a manager in charge and moved to Gloucester to live. Archibald's Will 
of 1978 gave the first option to purchase "Rosedale" to his niece (Mrs) Daphne Nicholls, but 
she declined the honour, and Mark James (Jim) Bratfield took advantage of the second 
option to purchase "Rosedale", adding it to his own holdings in that area. (Enid Tognolini 1999) 
 

  Thomas Bratfield 1844 - 1907 
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  Bridget Callian/ Callaghan the 
wife of Thomas Bratfield.  

The mother of Patrick Bradfield 

& 

16 other children 

Born 1844 died 1932.  

From the information known 
about her this photo does not 
seem to do her justice. She is 
reported as being a very caring 
person with a lot of friends. 
(See obituary next page)  

Below left: 
Bridget with her grand-
daughter Pearl (Pearlie) 
Bratfield the daughter of her 
son Horace Bratfield. 
 

Next page: the article titled 
“Ecclesiastical Jurisdiction”  
is a Probate notice about  an 
estate in 1868 it seems to be 
Bridget’s father.  
John Calinan is the person 
named however I have no 
direct evidence of the name of 
Bridget’s father. 

The obituary notice below is from 
the Richmond River Herald and 
Northern Districts Advertiser 2nd Aug 
1932 

NOTE: the spelling of Bridget’s 

maiden name “O’Callian” 



70 
 

  



71 
 

  
Thomas Bratfield’s death certificate: Confirms the spelling of his name and the information 
is provided by his son George who has the spelling of his own surname as Bradfield! 

The spelling of his wife’s surname is Callian. The “ r” seems to be missing in his mother’s 
name of Reardon. 

 It lists all 14 of his surviving children and mentions 3 males deceased.  

Thomas died of Influenza (10 days) and Pneumonia (5 days) 

 The place he died is listed as Telegherry, essentially a forest timber getting region, about 
50kms NW of Stroud where he lived. 
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Thomas Bratfield & Bridget Callian’s marriage certificate: Bridget has her 
name as Bridgett  

BUT Thomas’s name is spelt Bradfield!! (Note that Thomas signed his name with a 
mark but Bridget signed her own name). 

I can’t find where Ballidrihid in NSW was but it must have been around Stroud. It 
does however indicate that Bridget’s family may have come from the Ballydrehid 
region in Tipperary, Ireland. Her second cousin, Michael Roach who registered her 
first son’s birth is listed as coming from “Ballydrade”.  

The vertical writing on the left side reads “ The consent of John Callian was 

given  to the marriage of Bridgett Callian with Thomas Bradfield the said 
Bridgett Callian being under the age of twenty – one years” 

  

Below: Thomas Bratfield’s headstone 1907. 

Note the inscription. It reads: 
I HAVE LOST MY SOUL’S COMAPANION 

A LIFE LINKIED WITH MY OWN 

ONE IN LIFE AND WORK AN FEELING 

DEATH PARTED – NOW ALONE 
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 Thomas Bradfield  

and  

his wife  

Bridget Callian’s 

17 children 

 

1. John Henry (Harry) Bradfield  1863 – 1907  (Married Mary Ann Plater) 

2. Joseph Bratfield    1865 – 1932 (Married Elizabeth Ann Anderson) 

3. Mary (Marie) Ann Bratfield   1867 – 1951 (Spinster – 1 daughter Nean 

4. George Bradfield    1869 – 1819 (Married Margaret Rose Navin)       

5. Patrick Bradfield    1870 – 1960  (Married Annie Ernestine Pringle)       

6. Thomas Jnr (Tom) Bratfield   1872 – 1961 (Bachelor)  

7. Margaret Jane (Madge) Bratfield  1874 – 1947 (Spinster – One daughter Mary ) 

8. Lillian Bratfield    1876 – 1966  (Married Samuel Alex Saddler)       

9. Un-named  Bratfield    1877 – 1877 (Twin – Still born) 

10. Un-named Bratfield   1877 – 1877 (Twin – Still born)   

11.  Amy Christina Bratfield   1878 – 1943 (Married Thomas Newton Carter)   

12. Beatrice May Bratfield   1880 – 1965 (Spinster) 

13. Archibald William Bratfield  1882 – 1978 (Bachelor) 

14. Evelyn Malvina Bratfield   1883 – 1960 (Married Stanley Allen)  

15. Horace Burton Bratfield    1886 – 1965 (Married Agnes May Lecky) 

16. Vincent Frederick Clarence Bratfield 1889 – 1907 (Died 18 years old) 

17. Nettie Vera Pearl Bratfield   1891 – 1966 (Married Alexander T Calman) 
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1. JOHN HENRY (HARRY) BRADFIELD 
13 January 1863 – 16 November 1907 
Married (1864) MARY ANN PLATER 

The 1st child of Thomas Bratfield and Bridget Callian 
 

John Henry was born to Bridget Callian and was registered with the surname of Callaghan. 
(See next his Birth Certificate next page). 
 There is no dispute that Thomas Bradfield was the father, but in 1863 both Thomas and 
Bridget were only 19 years of age.  
Bridget's father, John Callian, did give his consent to the marriage in 1864.  
At some point after the marriage of his parents John’s surname was changed to Bradfield 
(See his death Certificate on following pages). 
John Henry ended his own life by suffocation caused by hanging. (On the next pages there is 
a detailed newspaper article covering the inquest into his death). 

JOHN HENRY (HARRY) BRADFIELD and MARY ANN PLATER’s Family 
The 2 children of HARRY BRADFIELD and MARY PLATER 

 

NAME 
 

BIRTH 
 

DEATH 
 

MARRIED 
 

Amy Lillian Bradfield 1889 1889  

Percy Colvin Bradfield 1894 1986 Mary Warne 
 
John Henry (Harry) Bradfield, h. 13 Jan 1863 in Ballidrihid, Raymond Terrace (son of Thomas 
Bratfield and Bridget Callian), d. 26 Nov 1907 in Stroud.  
 
He married Mary Ann Plater, married 1889.  

I.  Amy Lillian Bradfield, b. 1889, d. 1889.  

II.  Percy Colvin Bradfield, b. 1894, d. 1986. Percy was given a good education, at Scots College 
in Sydney gaining entry into Sydney University in 1913.  He passed various musical exams 
from 1909 to 1911 he also played the piano. He spent some time in America He eventually 
became a Real Estate Agent in 1927 at Double Bay in Sydney. The real estate firm although 
sold by his son, Peter, in 1980 still retains the Bradfield name.  

He married Mary Warne, married 1938 in Woollahra.  

A.  Gail Bradfield, b. abt 1940.  She 
married Ross Flanery in 1965 

B.  Peter Bradfield, b. abt 1943.  
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Percy Bradfield seems to have been the one who started the claim of being related to John 
Bradfield the engineer. The story below is from a 2012 article about the real estate firm 
that still uses the Bradfield name.  IT IS NOT TRUE 

No. Percy is not related to John Job Crew Bradfield, just look back a few pages and you 

can see who is family is. His father was John Henry Bradfield. Percy was 13 when his father 
committed suicide and he may have made-up a different family history to cope or it may 
have been an effective marketing ploy to promote integrity to his Real Estate business. 

John Job Crew Bradfield had five sons in fact: Edward Ventris, Anthony Bailey, Alan John, 
Stanley George and Keith Noel Everal and NOT a PERCY among them. 

John Crew Bradfield had 3 brothers: 

 Richard John Edward Bradfield 1849-1932 (Died in Ipswich Qld) 

William Henry Crew Bradfield 1854-1892 (Died in Rathdowney Qld) 

George Mathew Crew Bradfield 1062-1863 (Born and died in Ipswich Qld) 

John also had 4 sisters Mary, Susan, Georgina & Clara but they did not carry on the 
Bradfield name. NONE OF THESE PEOPLE ARE RELATED TO THE JOSEPH BRADFIELD LINE 
THAT ARE THE BRADFIELD/BRATFIELD FAMILIES THAT POPULATE THIS FAMILY HISTORY. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

That completes the family information of 
JOHN HENRY (HARRY) BRADFIELD 13/01/1863 – 26/11/1907  
The 1st child of Thomas Bratfield 1844 – 1907 and Bridget Callian 

Jonathan Chancellor   January 24, 2012        www.urban.com.au/news/ 
The Prichard name, which has been associated with Sydney eastern suburbs real estate since 
1927, has disappeared. 

Bradfield & Prichard has been rebranded BradfieldCleary, highlighting the latest appointment 
of a principal to the Double Bay agency, Georgia Cleary. 

Estate agent Bob Guth acquired Bradfield and Prichard in 1980 from Peter Bradfield and Barry 
Prichard, whose fathers, Percy Bradfield and Roy Prichard, established the company in 1927. 

The agency retains the Bradfield name which is held in huge esteem given Percy’s father 
was John Job Crew Bradfield the engineer, town planner and dedicated public servant, 

best known for his pivotal role in the construction of the Sydney Harbour Bridge. 

Since 1980 the agency has gone from strength to strength with mid-tier sales reliability. It also 
manages one of the largest property portfolios in the eastern suburbs. 

The name change follows the 2012 appointment of salesperson Georgia Cleary as a partner 
and director. 

 

The son of John Henry 
(Harry) Bradfield, Percy 
Colvin Bradfield, his 
headstone in South Head 
General Cemetery in 
Sydney. 
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  2. JOSEPH BRATFIELD 
31 May 1865 – 01 January 1932 

Married (1892) ELIZABETH ANN ANDERSON 
The 2nd child of Thomas Bratfield and Bridget Callian 

 
There was virtually no information about Joseph and I have pieced together a little about his 
life from brief articles. Some correct and some surmised 
When Joseph was married in 1892 he is listed as living in Bega and his wife was born in 
Eden so the assumption is they met on the south coast. He was managing a store in Bega. 
I have found a notice with Joseph Bradfield elected as an Alderman in Bega in 1893 and that 
is a maybe it is him. There are also two newspaper articles from 1904 of Joseph Bradfield 
one of him selling his goods at auction and the other moving to a job managing a business in 
Taree where he was a draper. (See articles next page). That business was destroyed by a fire 
in 1905 and interestingly enough a Joseph Bradfield at that time applied for a cattle brand in 
the Dungog area where his family all lived.  
A death notice, next page, says that he worked at Mark Foys department store for many 
years (it is well known in the family that his sister Beatrice worked at Mark Foys as well). It 
also says he lived at Punchbowl. (The spelling of his name in that notice is Bradfield) 
Joseph died in Sydney in 1932 and is buried in Rookwood Cemetery.   

 
JOSEPH BRATFIELD and ELIZABETH ANN ANDERSON’s Family 

 
The 2 children of JOSEPH BRATFIELD and ELIZABETH ANDERSON 

 

NAME 
 

BIRTH 
 

DEATH 
 

MARRIED 
 

Violet M Bratfield 1893 1885  

Ivy Bratfield 1896 1971 (Spinster) 

 

Joseph Bratfield, b. 31 may 1865 in Raymond Terrace (son of Thomas Bratfield and 
Bridget Callian), d. 01 Jan 1932 in Balmain. He is buried in Rookwood Cemetery Sydney.  
He married Elizabeth Ann Anderson, married 02 Feb 1892 in North Sydney.  

I.  Violet M. Bratfield, b. 1893 in Bega NSW, d. 1895 in Junee NSW.  

II.  Ivy Bratfield, b. 1896 in Sydney NSW, d. 03 Jan 1971, buried in Rookwood Lawn Cemetery 
"Ivy was a pretty girl with thick wavy hair. She was a ballet dancer and pianist, an article from 
the Dungog paper supports her entertainment skills when she was about 11 years old. When she 
was about 29 in 1925 she had a house with a shop in front of it at Punchbowl (Sydney). She was 
very kind to her Aunt Nettie" Info from her cousin Pearl (ET & NM).  (See newspaper articles 
on next page) (Also a copy of a letter concerning her estate later in this section).  
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Above and left: These 3 articles I am 
confident are about Joseph Bradfield born 
1965 because they fit in with the limited 
information we have and are time and 
location possible for him. No other 
person of the same name is present in 
any articles at the time. 

Below: Joseph Bratfield/Bradfield’s death 
notice 1932. 

Below: These 2 any articles are about Ivy 
Bratfield the daughter of Joseph. The 
grand-daughter of Thomas Bradfield. 
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That completes the family information of 

JOSEPH BRATFIELD/BRADFIELD 31/05/1865 – 01/01/1932  
The 2nd child of Thomas Bratfield 1844 – 1907 and Bridget Callian 

Bratfield or Bradfield? 

Joseph is a special case. 

I have him in the headings and the lists as Bratfield, and Enid listed him with that name as well, 
his birth seems to have been registered as Bratfield BUT his Marriage Certificate, above, has 
his name as BRADFIELD and the newspaper articles use that name as well as his death notice 
(previous page).  The story of his daughter, Ivy, has her name as Ivy Bradfield as does the letter 
from a solicitor concerning her estate on page above. 

 Sometimes these certificates throw us a curved ball, look carefully and you will see his 
mother’s name written as Eliza Callian rather than the correct Bridget Callian.  
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3. MARY (Marie) ANN BRATFIELD 
09 March 1867 – 18 October 1951 

The 3rd child of Thomas Bratfield and Bridget Callian 
 

Mary (Marie) Ann Bratfield, b. 09 Mar 1867 (daughter of Thomas Bratfield and Bridget 
Callian), d. 18 Oct 1951 in Stroud.  
She never married.  
Evar Alexandrina (Nean) Bratfield, b. 15 May 1893 in Karuah River near Stroud NSW, d. 19 
Dec 1974 in Gloucester. 

 Known as Nean. The family of the next generation believed she was in fact a sister to her aunties. 
She did not marry and lived in Gloucester with Lil and Arch. Even on her headstone the idea that she 
was a sister to Tom and Arch rather than their niece was perpetuated. (NM)  

Nean’s father is thought to have been a catholic priest and when Mary (Marie) was pregnant her 
mother, Bridget, took her upstairs and claimed that in was in fact herself who was pregnant and 
needed to be cared for by Mary. She somehow deceived her husband Thomas as well as everyone 
else.  Bridget has just had her last child, Nettie, in 189.  
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Photo above: 

Daphne Allen and Daphne Carter are cousins. 

Daph Allen the daughter of Evelyn Bratfield she married John Nicholls   

Daph Carter the daughter of Amy Bratfield she married John Mathewson 

Marie Bratfield is their aunty. 

The photo was probably taken between 1931 and 1933 
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Above:  
 Evar Alexandrina (Nean) 
BRATFIELD with her cousin IVY 
MORELLE BRADFIELD (Maloney) 
the daughter of Patrick Bradfield at 
Gloucester in 1967 
Above Left:   
MARY (Marie) ANN BRATFIELD & 
her daughter Evar Alexandrina (Nean) 
BRATFIELD at the farm “Rosedale” at 
Stroud Road in 1934. 
Left:  
An article from the Gloucester 
Advertiser in 1912describing the dresses  
worn to a Ball by Nean and by her aunty 
Madge. Nean attended and helped 
organise dances and balls from 1912 
when she was 18 for a number of years  
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There is very little information about Mary “Marie”. 
 

That completes the family information of 
MARY (Marie) ANN BRATFIELD 09/03/1867 – 18/10/1951  

The 3rd child of Thomas Bratfield 1844 – 1907 and Bridget Callian 
 

A letter sent by Evar Alexandrina (Nean) Bratfield to her Uncle Patrick 
Bradfield in 1950, consoling him on the death of his wife a week earlier. 
Nean also refers to her mother “Marie” (Mary) who is “just able to hobble 
around” Marie died 10 months later in Oct 1951. 

Only the first page of the letter survives. (NM 2023) 

There is also a letter from Pat’s sister Nettie at the same time mentioning the 
death of his wife. A copy of that letter in the section about Nettie Bratfield.   
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4. GEORGE BRADFIELD 
02 May 1869 – 04 June 1919 

The 4th child of Thomas Bratfield and Bridget Callian 
 

Again I have very little information about this George Bradfield. At some point he left 
Stroud, the farm and his family and moved to Sydney. He married when he was 39 in 1869.  
George was an inspector on the Sydney Tramways (an electrified tram system servicing the 
inner suburbs) and he lived at 50 Henry St, Leichardt in Sydney.  That information was 
gleaned from his death notice (see copy below) and there is a notice to indicate that he did 
not have a will at the time of his death. There is some information about his son-in law and 
grandson John. I also met his daughter, Joan, in 1998. (see photo)  (NM 2023)  
George Bradfield, b. 2 May 1869 in Port Stephens (son of Thomas Bratfield and Bridget 
Callian), d. 04 June 1919 in Petersham.  
George married Margeret (Grace) Rose Navin, married 1908 in Waterloo Sydney. 
(Margaret married again in 1920 to William Furlong, he however died 
that same year). 

George and Margaret had 3 children: 
 

I. Mary Veronica Rose Bradfield  b. 1911 in Glebe NSW. d. 01 
Dec 1979 

She married Alexander Patrick Sweeney, married 1936 in 
Registered at Redfern.  
A.  John Gerard Patrick Sweeney. b. 1938 d. 2002. He was a 

Catholic priest. (See information on following pages)  
II.  Joan Patricia Bradfield  b. 1912 in Registered Glebe NSW.  

d. 2005 She married John Henry Birnie 
III.  John W. (Jack) Bradfield  1917 in NSW.  

 

  Left: George 
Bradfield 1869 – 
1919 death notice  

Below: A notice 
concerning George’s 
estate because he 
did not have a will. 

Right: Margaret, 
George’s wife’s 
funeral  information. 
She was 95. 
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George Bradfield’s Family:  
His children 
Right: Wedding details of Mary Veronica Rose 
Bradfield who married Alex Sweeney in 1936 
however just 2 years later in 1938 Alex is dead. 
See obituary below.   
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  Below: This is the only piece of information 
about George Bradfield’s son Jack that I have 
found. I am sure it is him because the person 
EJ Mooney links back to the wedding notice 
on the previous page of Jack’s sister Mary. 

Below: The death notice of George’s 2nd son-
in-law John Birnie in 1950 the husband of his 
daughter Joan.  (They had no children). 

Below: Photo in 2003 of Joan Patricia Birnie 
(Bradfield) daughter of George Bradfield 1867 
– 1919 with her cousin Ivy Morelle Maloney 
(Bradfield) daughter of George’s brother 
Patrick Bradfield.  

Joan was in a nursing home in Coffs harbour 
with dementia. 
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George Bradfield’s Family:  
His grand-child(ren) 
I only know of one grandchild. The son of Mary Waugh and Alex Sweeney and that is John 
Sweeney. The stories below were very much hearsay and foggy recollections that is until I 
researched some reliable sources that proved the stories about John Sweeney are in fact 
correct. (NM 2023) 

In the late 1990s the Sydney District Court jailed three priests who comprised the entire 
leadership of the St Gerard Majella Society. This society, operating in the Parramatta 
diocese in western Sydney, consisted of a core of three priests who recruited and “trained” a 
pool of young Brothers. The three priests were convicted for committing sexual offences 
against the trainees. 
FATHER John Sweeney, then 59, head of the order, was sentenced on 18 July 1997 to 
2 years 3 months jail (18 months minimum) after a jury found him guilty of three counts of 
indecent assault against a 19-year-old trainee Brother. Sweeney still faced further charges 
involving five other young males. 
https://timalderman.com/tag/father-john-sweeney/ 

Society of St. Gerard Majella  
Society of St. Gerard Majella Order of religious teaching brothers founded as a diocesan 
Religious Congregation in 1958 by John Gerard Patrick Sweeney, a former parish priest 
of Our Lady Queen of Peace at Greystanes who became superior general. The order 
described as “something of a pedophile organisation managing a male harem,” had three 
ordained priests, each of whom had been jailed in relation to sexual assaults of young men 
considering a religious life with the order. The sexual abuse continued for decades, right 
under the noses of the diocesan authorities, but the church ignored it and the victims had 
nowhere to go. Bishop Bede Heather quietly disbanded the order 16th December 1994. 
 1. St. Gerard Majella authority Society administered the Catholic parish church at 
Greystanes (near Parramatta), of which John Sweeney was the parish priest. It trained 
novice Brothers (some beginning as young as 16), who were bound by rules of obedience to 
the priests in charge. 

 Society of St. Gerard Majella Cases  
Sweeney case John Gerard Patrick Sweeney (1938-), a St. Gerard Majella brother, head 
of the order, helped administer the Newman Catholic High School.  
1. Sweeney case I Sweeney pleaded guilty to indecent assault on 18 year-old naval 
apprentice, and received good behaviour bond, 1993.  
2. Sweeney case II Convicted by jury of three counts of indecent assault and jailed for 18 
months, May 1997.  
3. Sweeney case III Sweeney pleaded guilty to committing an act of indecency against 
novices and postulants of the order, over an 11 year period. He was sentenced on 18 July 
1997 to 2 years 3 months jail (18 months minimum) after a jury found him guilty of three 
counts of indecent assault against a 19-year-old trainee Brother. He lost Order of Australia 
Medal over the offences, 1998. 
http://www.adfabuse.com/newsstory/19730000%20hmas%20nirimba%20paedophile%20ch
aplains.pdf 

That completes the family information of 
GEORGE BRADFIELD 02/05/1869 – 06/06/1919  

The 4th child of Thomas Bratfield 1844 – 1907 and Bridget Callian 
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5. PATRICK BRADFIELD 
16 November 1870 – 28 July 1960 

The 5th child of Thomas Bratfield and Bridget Callian 
 

The stories and details of Pat Bradfield’s life will make up a separate part further in this book in 
this section I will mention the bare details and list his descendents for just 2 generations.    
 
Patrick Bradfield b. 16 Nov 1870 in Stroud N.S.W (son of Thomas Bratfield and Bridget Callian) 
 d. 28 Jul 1960 in Maclean.  
He  married Annie Ernestine Pringle 7 Aug 1919 in Tullymorgan, b. 28 1893 in Mororo NSW 
(daughter of Robert Arthur Pringle and Harriett Ensby)  d. 9 Dec 1950 in Maclean.  

1.  Ivy Morelle Bradfield, b. 3 Mar 1920 Tullymorgan d. 27 Dec 2004  
She married Jack Martin Maloney, 1942 Murwillumbah b. 13 Apr 1918, d. Oct 1999   

 A. Bruce Stewart Maloney, b. 15 Jun 1942 in Murwillumbah.  
 He married Julie Ann 18 Jan 1966 Murwillumbah, b. Nov 1946 
 in Murwillumbah.  
 B. John Patrick Maloney, b. 9 Jun 1 Murwillumbah, d. 14 May 2021  
 C. Neville Barry Maloney, b. 4 May 1 in Murwillumbah.  
 He married Barbara Suzanne Ford  25 Jan 1975 in Murwillumbah, b. 31 
 May 1954 in Brisbane (daughter Neville Ford  Maxyne Dawn Stanley).  

II.  George Vincent (Red) Bradfield, b. 13 Sep 1921 in Tullymorgan, d. 01 April 1994.  
 
III.  Robert Thomas Bradfield, b. 11 Sep 1923 in Tullymorgan, d. 21 Dec 1994 in Maclean.  

He Mavis Beel, d. 1989 in Maclean NSW.  
   A. Warren Bradfield.  

 B. Graham Patrick Bradfield b. 1949      
 He married Helen 
 C. Cheryl Bradfield, b. 1951 in Maclean NSW.  
 D. Alan Bradfield, b. 12 Sep 1954.  

     E. Colin Bradfield.  
 

IV.  Dorothy (Snowy) May Bradfield b.17 Sep 1925 in Tullymorgan, d. 8 July 2009 in 
Maclean.  

She married Richard (Dick)Cavanough.  
 A. Joy Ann Cavanough, b. 3 Aug 1952.                                                              
 She married Tom Lloyd.  
 B. Dianne Hannah Cavanough, b. 18 Apr 1956.                                               
 She married Colin Sullivan.  
 C. Iris Gail Cavanough, b. 31 Jan 1959, d. 11 Apr 2016 in Lismore.  
 D. Richard (Ricky) Cavanough, b. 22 Mar 1961 in Tullymorgan.   

  
V.  Horace Edward Bradfield, b. 9 Jun 1927 in Tullymorgan, d. 17 April 1998.  

He married Alma Eggins, d. 31 Oct 2020 in Maclean.  
  A. Stewart Thomas Bradfield b. 24 Jan 1951, d. 19 Oct 1951 in Maclean.  
  B. Lesley Bradfield, b. 24 .lul 1952. She married Peter.  
  C. Peter Bradfield. He married .Jo.  

  D. Helen Bradfield. She married Warwick  
 

VI, Stewart Roy Bradfield, b. 7 Sept 1929 in Tullymorgan, d. 1929.  
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VII. Beryl Bradfield, b, 10 Dec 1929 in Tullymorgan.  
She married Mervyn Lyons  
  A. Kaye Lynette Lyons b.17 1952 in Sydney, d. 5 Oct 3 2013 Sydney.  
  B. Bruce Edward Lyons b. 17 Aug 1954 in Sydney.                                                               

 He married (1 ) Penny Dowzer                                                                                
 He married (2) Tracey Morris.  

  C. Peter John Lyons b. 17 Jan 1956 in Sydney.  
 

VIII. Neville Colin Bradfield, b. 6 Sep 1933 in Tullymorgan, 13 Oct 1993 in Maclean.  
He married Dell Hart 
  A. Wayne Neville Bradfield, b. 21 Feb 1957 in Maclean, d. 6 March 2005   
  B. Warren Bradfield, b. 1960 in Maclean, d. 1989.  
  C. Darryl Bradfield b. 1961.                                                                                                        

 He married Rhonda   
 

IX.  Rita Anne Bradfield  b. 23 Jan 1937 in Tullymorgan.d. 27 Jun 2014 in Grafton.  
She married Cecil Edward Want, b. 12 Feb 1935 d. 8 May 2007 in Maclean.  

 A. Stephen Edward Want, b. 16 Apr 1961.  
 He married Karen Chee.    
 B.  Neville Want, b. 24 May 1962    
 He married Helen Sutherland.    
 C. Beverley Want, b. 21 Jan 1966   
 She married Andrew    

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

That completes this first brief family information of 
PATRICK BRADFIELD 16/11/1870 – 28/07/1960  

The 5th child of Thomas Bratfield 1844 – 1907 and Bridget Callian 
 

There is much more information about Pat Bradfield in a latter section of this book 
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6. THOMAS (TOM) BRATFIELD 
04 August 1872 – 04 August 1961 

The 6th child of Thomas Bratfield and Bridget Callian 
 
Again there is very little information about this the sixth child of Thomas, Tom Bratfield. 
The following paragraph is a note from Enid Tognolini about Tom and then I have trawled 
Trove for any story and the clippings and map are the only result. Tom remained a bachelor 
and had no children.  (NM 2023)  
For whatever reason Bridget held her son Tom responsible for the death of his older brother 
John Henry in 1907. She made him responsible for the welfare etc of John’s widow and son, 
Percy. This Tom did, ensuring that Percy had a good education, and moved the family to 
property adjoining the rest of the Bratfield holdings at Stroud Road. Tom had been working 
for John Henry (Harry) on the land for many years. (Enid T 1999) 
  

  

Above: Plater was the maiden name of 
John Henry (Harry) Bratfield’s wife, Mary, 
so it seems like Tom was certainly helping 
out still in 1933.  

Right: The T and A would be Tom and 
Arch. I am not sure who was ill in 1941 
but assume it is Tom and probably to do 
with his eye. (see other articles)  

Below: Tom was growing spectacular rock 
melons in 1936 
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Above: Tom’s eye gave him trouble for 
many years. In a letter from his sister, 
Nettie, to his brother, Pat Bradfield, in 1950 
she expresses concern for eye problem. (see 
letter in section about Nettie)   

Above: On a current map I have marked 
where the article below form 1939 
indicates Tom had a farm; other articles 
refer to the location as Nooroo which is 
further east?  

That completes the family information of 
THOMAS (TOM) BRATFIELD 04/08/1872 – 04/08/1961  

The 6th child of Thomas Bratfield 1844 – 1907 and Bridget Callian 
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7. MARGARET JANE (MADGE) BRATFIELD 
16 May 1874 – 15 August 1947 

The 7th child of Thomas Bratfield and Bridget Callian 
 

Margaret known as Madge spent some of her younger years in Sydney but later moved back to the 
“Rosedale” farm with her sister Mary (Marie), Marie’s daughter Nean and her brother Arch.    
Madge had a baby, Mary, in 1900 that only lived for 3 months. Madge did not marry.  
From articles in the local Gloucester paper it seems that Madge attended balls/dances with her 
niece, Nean, for a number of years around 1910.   
Her niece, Beryl Bradfield, remembered going to Madge’s her funeral with her father Patrick 
when she was just 17. They travelled by train from Grafton.   
 
Margaret Jane (Madge) Bratfield, b. 16 May 1874 (daughter Thomas Bratfield and Bridget 

Callian), d. 15 Aug 1947  
1. Mary Bratfield, b. 1900 in Stephens, d. 1900.  (aged 3 months) 

 
 

Left: Madge; a photo taken in 1934. She seems to 
be wearing a neck brace. (See the photo this was 
taken form on the next page). 
Below: Madge had a riding accident in 1913, she 
would have been 38 at the time of this accident. 

  



97 
 

  

Right: An informative obituary telling us 
about her illness and the Bratfield family. It 
is worth a careful read. 

Below: Madge had been on a long visit in 
April/May 1944 to see her youngest sister 
Nettie who married Alex Calman.  

Bottom: Probate notice of Madge with her 
brother Arch as the executor of her Will 
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 That completes the family information of 
MARGARET JANE (MADGE) BRATFIELD 16/05/1874 – 15/08/1947  

The 7th child of Thomas Bratfield 1844 –1907 and Bridget Callian 
 

 

Above: This photo was taken in 1934 or 1935 at the Bratfield’s farm “Rosedale” at Stroud 
Road. There is a train line and bridge to the right of Madge’s shoulder.  
Left to right: Unknown (not a relative), Mary (Marie) Ann Bratfield Evar Alexandrina 
(Nean) Bratfield, Ivy Morella Bradfield & Margaret Jane (Madge) Bratfield. 
Mary & Madge – are sisters 
Nean – the daughter of Marie 
Ivy – a niece to Marie and Madge, a cousin to Nean and the daughter of Patrick Bradfield. 
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8. LILLIAN BRATFIELD 
26 April 1876 – 27 January 1966 

The 8th child of Thomas Bratfield and Bridget Callian 
 
Lil and her husband Alex lived in Newcastle where he was a manager and they later retired 
to Morpeth where Alex died in 1938. I think in her later years Lil moved in with Nean, Arch 
at Gloucester. (See the obituary of Alex for more details about their lives). 
Lil’s first child died either at birth or soon after, the second a daughter Thalia moved to WA. 
Lillian Bratfield, b. 26 April 1876 in Port Stephens (daughter of Thomas Bratfield and Bridget 
Callian), d. 27 Jan 1966 in Newcastle. She could be buried at Stroud.  

She married Alex Sadler d. 1938, married 1909 in Glebe.  

1.  Francis T Sadler, b. 1910, d. 1910.  
II.  Thalia Lillian Sadler, b. 1915, d. 06 Sept 1966. 

She married Arthur Leonard Dittmer in 1942.  
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 Thalia Lillian Sadler who was born in 1915 was the only surviving child of Lillian 
Bratfield and Alex Sadler. During the 1930’s she attended functions and stayed with her 
Aunt Amy at Shannon Vale near Bretti just north of Gloucester.  
The only personal reference about Thalia comes from a letter sent from Nean, the daughter 
of Mary (Marie) Bratfield that was sent to Ivy Maloney, the daughter of Patrick Bradfield in 
1966. The piece of that letter and that is all that there is of it that remains lists Thalia’s 
address and that she is unwell. The letter was written about 4 weeks before Thalia died. It 
also mentions that she did not move to Perth in Western Australia until after her mother died 
which was in January 1966. So although many in the family knew that she went (or that 
someone moved to WA she in fact only lived there for a few months.  
Thalia was only 50 when she died in September 1966, and her husband Arthur Dittmer born 
1913/14 died a few months later on the 10 Jan 1967. They did not have any children. 

  

That completes the family information of 
LILLIAN BRATFIELD 26/04/1876 – 27/01/1966  

The 8th child of Thomas Bratfield 1844 – 1907 & Bridget Callian 
 

Below: The memorial plaques of Thalia Sadler, the daughter of Lillian 
Bratfield and grand-daughter of Thomas Bradfield, and her husband 
Arthur Dittmer in Fremantle Cemetery WA.   
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9. & 10. UN-NAMED BRATFIELDS 
1877 – 1877 

The 9th & 10th children of Thomas Bratfield and Bridget Callian 
 

 

The twins born in 1877 must have been stillborn because they were not named.  

It is believed that they were buried on the “Rosedale’ farm.  
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11. AMY CHRISTINA BRATFIELD 
01 December 1878 – 03 June 1943 

The 11th child of Thomas Bratfield and Bridget Callian 
 
 Amy’s early life seems to have been one of living on the family farm and been a fairly 
talented singer and dancer as well as an active sports person. Her husband was already very 
successful in education, business and politics by the time they married and they ran a general 
store at Stratford about 10 kilometres south of Gloucester where he was an auctioneer as 
well. When Amy married Thomas Carter in 1912 he was 40 years old (she was 34) and he 
had been the mayor of Gloucester when it formed its first council. In 1933 they sold the 
store at Stratford and moved north to a property called “Shannon Vale”, near Bretti about 
35km north of Gloucester near the Manning River. It must have been a large house because 
they had large social events with a 100 or so people dances at their home. The obituary of 
Thomas in 1938 provides a lot of information about his life and where the family lived. See 
it on later pages. (NM 2023) 

 
AMY CHRISTINA BRATFIELD and THOMAS CARTER’s Family 

 
The 4 children (+1) of AMY BRATFIELD and THOMAS CARTER 

 

NAME 
 

BIRTH 
 

DEATH 
 

MARRIED 
 

Raymond W Bratfield 1902 1902 (Thomas is not the father) 

Vincent Thomas Carter 1912 1984  (Batchelor) 

Daphne Rita Carter 1914 1989 John Matthewson 

Neville John Carter 1915 1987 Elizabeth Paterson 

Gavin Leo Carter 1916 1981 Gladys Breese 

 

Amy Christina Bratfield, b. 01 Dec 1878 registered in Port Stephens (daughter of 
Thomas Bratfield and Bridget Callian), d. 03 June 1943 in Gloucester and buried in 
Stroud Cemetery  
She married Thomas Newton Carter, married 1912 in Maitland West, b. 1872 in Morpeth, d. 
1938  

I. Raymond W Bratfield, b. 1902, d. 1902 (He was born 10 years before Amy was 
married and Tom Carter was not his father).  

 II. Vincent Thomas Carter, b. 1912 in Petersham NSW.  d. 9 Dec 1984 
 III. Daphne Rita Carter, b. 1914 in Stroud. d. 1 July 1989 
 She married John Matthewson, in 1940.  (John died 1993) both are buried at Gloucester. 

 A. Molly Matthewson, b. 25 Dec 1940  She married John Simpson.  
  1. Paul Simpson.  
  2. Margot Simpson.  

 B. John (Jnr) Matthewson. He married Maureen ??.  
  1. John Matthewson.  
  2. Michael Matthewson.  
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 IV. Neville John Carter, b. 1915 in Stroud. He married Elizabeth May Paterson, married 
1945 in Gloucester.  d. 7 Aug 1987  (They did not have any children) 

 V. Gavin Leo (Ikey) Carter, b. 1916. He married Gladys Nita Breese in 1938.  d, 16 Sept 
1981 (He retained the “Shannon Vale” farm). 
 A. Jeanette Patricia Carter. b.11 Apr 1938 d. 2 Apr 2017  She married Thomas Ellis 

  1. Lynn Ellis.  
  2. Kelly Ellis.  

 B. Marie Carter She married Kelvin Gregory. (No children) 
   

 

Below: Amy  Christina  Bratfield 

Right:  Details of Amy’s life are mentioned in her 
obituary.  

Next page: Amy’s husband Tom Carter’s obituary 
provides a lot of detail about what were they lived. And 
another Amy as secretary of the tennis club. 
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105 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Below: Amy’s daughter Daphne’s 
wedding in 1940. In this article and 
the one on the right Thalia Sadler 
the daughter of Amy’s sister, Lillian, 
is mentioned.  

Right: One of many events held at 
Amy and Tom’s home at “Shannon 
Vale”. 

Lower Right: Vincent, Amy’s son has 
an accident in 1943.   
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That completes the family information of 
AMY CHRISTINA BRATFIELD  

26/04/1876 – 27/01/1966  
The 11th child of Thomas Bratfield 1844 – 1907 & Bridget Callian 
 

Daph Carter, the daughter of Amy 
Bratfield with her cousin Pearl, the 
daughter of Horace Bratfield. 
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12. BEATRICE MAY BRATFIELD 
01 July 1880 – 26 February 1965 

The 12th child of Thomas Bratfield and Bridget Callian 

Beatrice, Bea (pronounced Bee), did not marry and did not have any children. She owned 
shares on Mark Foys department store and worked for them in Sydney for 50 plus years. 
After she retired she must have moved back to the Gloucester/Stroud region because she is 
buried in Stroud. She used to bet regularly on horses and often did so with her sister Lillian. 
(My research has come up with very little for Bea, the knowledge that she worked at Mark 
Foys seems to be the limit) The article below indicates that she was a senior person with that 
business NM 2023 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

That completes the family information of 
BEATRICE MAY BRATFIELD  

01/07/1880 – 26/02/1965  
The 12th child of Thomas Bratfield 1844 – 1907 & Bridget Callian 

  



108 
 

13. ARCHIBALD WILLIAM BRATFIELD 
07 June 1882 – 23 June 1978 

The 13th child of Thomas Bratfield and Bridget Callian 
 
Arch was a bachelor and seemed to be the one who administered the family as the years 
went by. He was the executor of the estates of many of the family including his mother. He 
was also involved in community organisations and the MC of local dances and balls during 
the 1930’s & 40’s.When his brother John Henry died in 1907 it was Arch who discovered 
him and testified at the inquest. (See details in the section back about 30 pages John was the 
eldest sibling so number one in this section as the children of Thomas and Bridget). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  

Above: Archibald William Bratfield 1967 at 
his home in Gloucester  

Right & next page: Obituary, funeral notice, 
his grave in Stroud Cemetery and some 
newspaper articles with references to him.  



109 
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Arch with his niece Ivy Maloney (Bradfield) the daughter of Arch’s brother Patrick Bradfield.  
Photo taken in 1967 at Arch’s hose in Gloucester 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The following 4 pages are details of the estate of Arch Bratfield. I have included them in all 
their detail because they list all of his nephews and nieces who were alive when he died in 
1979 and they show his assets and his consideration for their disbursement and the value and 
cost of property and expenses at the time. 

 
 
 

  



111 
 

  



112 
 

  



113 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
113B



113C 

Ancestor Summary 
 
This list applies to all of Arch’s siblings and I have added the names here as a reminder of 
the Bratfield/Bradfield linage.  
Thomas is the father of Arch and 16 other children (two of whom died at birth). My 
grandfather Patrick was one of the 17 children of Thomas. 
Arch’s grandfather Joseph was the child convict transported to Australia in 1818 it is his 
portrait that graces the cover of the book. 
John Bradfield his father we know very little about but can surmise that his life was tough as 
he lived through a time of social upheaval and the Napoleonic wars where many English 
soldiers lost their lives and conditions where they lived must have been difficult. 
The history records stop with Joseph Bradfield who was born in 1763 but he is the oldest 
recorded member of this line of Bradfields. He is my 4th great grandfather, which is 7 
generations of the family. 
 

Neville Maloney (me) 
Ivy Bradfield (my mother) 

Patrick Bradfield (my grandfather) 
Thomas Bratfield (my great grandfather) 

Joseph Bradfield (my great great grandfather) 
John Bradfield (my great great great grandfather) 

Joseph Bradfield (my great great great great grandfather) 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

That completes the family information of 
ARCHIBALD WILLIAM BRATFIELD  

07/06/1882 – 23/06/1978  
The 13th child of Thomas Bratfield 1844 – 1907 & Bridget Callian 
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14. EVELYN MALVINA BRATFIELD 

31 December 1883 – 19 June 1960 
The 14th child of Thomas Bratfield and Bridget Callian 

 
Evelyn married Stanley Allen in 1926 and I assume they lived in the Stroud area, although 
their marriage was registered in Taree, Stanley was listed as a farmer at Stroud Road.  
Evelyn was 43 when she married. 
In 1944 when their only child, their daughter, Daphne was married they were living at 
Stroud Road. They stayed in the area and Evelyn is buried in Stroud Cemetery.  
Most of the information and photos below relate to Evelyn and Stan’s daughter Daphne.   
 
Evelyn Malvina Bratfield, b. 31 Dec 1883 (daughter of Thomas Bratfield and Bridget 
Callian), d. 19 June 1960. She married Stanley Allen, married 1926.  
 1. Daphne Mary Allen, b. 1926 in Stroud. d. 07 Oct 1997 (buried in Stroud)  
 She married in May1944 in Dungog NSW.  John Charles Nicholls b. 23 Aug 1920 d. 
03 Jun  1996. 
  A. Stanley Nicholls. (Did not marry) 
  B. Margaret Jean Nicholls.b.23 Aug 1947, married 15 Feb 1969 to Ian Schultz.  
  I. Leanne Margaret Schultz. b. 7 Oct 1970 She married 3rd Sept 1994 to 
Brett Standing. 
   i. Elyse Margaret Standing b. 20 March 2001. 
   ii.Charlotte Lea Standing b.14 December 2003. 

 
II. Dallas Schultz. b. 13 Dec 1974 he 
married Married Lynette Norma Crosdale 
26 Mar 2011. (2 children))  
(Dallas lives near Stroud 2023) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Left: Evelyn Malvina Allen 
(Bratfield) with her daughter 
Daphne. About 1930. 

Below: Engagement notice  of 
Daphne Mary Allen in The 
Gloucester Advertiser in 1944. 
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Photos above: both photos 
are of Daphne Allen. Daph 
sent the photos to her cousin 
Ivy Maloney (Bradfield) in the 
1940’s 

Right: Daph and her husband 
John Nicholls.  

Stanley and Margaret (Their 
son and daughter standing 
behind them) 

Photo taken on 23 Aug 1990 on 
Stan’s 70

th
 birthday. 
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 That completes the family information of 
EVELYN MALVINA BRATFIELD  

31/12/1883 – 19/06/1960  
The 14th child of Thomas Bratfield 1844 – 1907 & Bridget Callian 

  

Photo above: Daph and her 
husband John Nicholls.  

Standing L to R: Stanley and 
Margaret (Their son and 
daughter) Dallas & 
Leanne(Margret’s son and 
daughter) and Ian Schultz 
(Margaret’s husband) 

Photo taken on 23 Aug 1990 on 
Stan’s 70

th
 birthday. 

Right: Daphne & John’s 
grave in Stroud. 

Below: Evelyn’s Headstone 
in Stroud NSW Cemetery 
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15. HORACE BURTON BRATFIELD 
20 August 1886 – 11 August 1965 

The 15th child of Thomas Bratfield and Bridget Callian 
 

Horace farmed initially dairy cows and latter cattle and bulls in the Stroud region from the 
1920’s until 1956. He married Agnes Lecky in 1919.  
His grandson Des Fittock adds to his story below.  
Horace was one of 17 children of Thomas Bratfield (1844 -1907) and his wife Bridget 
Callian (1844 – 1932) all born on the property named Lilydale, at Stroud Road NSW. 
By what I remember hearing in days gone by, Horace was a very enterprising young chap. 
The first that I remember hearing was that when the North Coast railway was being 
constructed, he and others, probably contracted to move the spoil from the Dungog/Stroud 
Hill tunnel by horse and dray toward Stroud Road.  Some of this filling was used right up to 
where the viaduct is on Lilydale to the Karuah River.  As the work progressed, it was said 
that if an “S” or “K” truck was released at the tunnel it would coast all the way to Stroud 
Road. 
Meanwhile, as the steel bridge was to be constructed over the Karuah river, Horace acquired 
a team of horses and a 4 wheeled wagon and transported the steel girders etc from Booral 
wharf to Stroud Road. 
When the railway work was finished, he commenced dairying on Lilydale.  He continued 

this until about 1956 with his wife 
Agnes May (Lecky, 1898 – 1988) at 
the age of 70 they both in company 
of son Mark James Bratfield (1932 
– 2018) and Grandson Desmond 
James Jasper Fittock, (1941 ----) 
moved to Taree.  Probably within a 
year Jim had returned to the farm, 
Lilydale, to continue farming until 
his death in 2018. 
Horace, Agnes and Des moved to 
Raymond Terrace with Horace 
passing away in1965.  Des had 
returned to Taree where he currently 
lives (2023). 
Agnes purchased a cottage on the 
Southern end of Stroud Road, where 
she remained until moving into aged 
care at Gloucester until her passing 
in 1988. 
(These notes about Horace were written by 
Desmond Fittock, his grandson 
24/02/2023) 

 
Photo: 

Wedding in 1919 
Horace Bratfield and Agnes Lecky 
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Horace Bratfield’s wife Agnes Lecky and their 
daughter Pearlie. (1923) 
 
Below: Pearlie Bratfield (1932 & 1949) 
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Des Fittock 1941, a grandson of Horace Bratfield and Agnes Lecky with his 3 children; 
Marina Michelle, Donald Malcolm and Peter Burton in 2018 at the funeral of Des’s uncle 
Mark James (Jim) Bratfield. 

 
Above: Jim Bratfield (2006) 
Above Right: Jim and his wife Gloria 
Carroll (1957)  
Right: Des Fittock (son of Jim’s sister 
Pearlie) and Jim (2016) 
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16. VINCENT FREDERICK CLARENCE BRATFIELD 
29 October 1889 – 08 September 1907 

The 16th child of Thomas Bratfield and Bridget Callian 
 

Vincent was a month of turning 18 when he died in 1907 with typhoid. His death seemed to 
upset his father, Thomas, so much that he just 5 days later also died at the age of 63.  
There were fairly regular outbreaks of Typhoid Fever in the 1800’s and early 1900’s.  
Vincent seems to have been setting out on a farming career two newspaper articles indicate that 
he was selling pigs and a bull in 1907. (See sales notices below) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

That completes the family information of 
VINCENT FREDERICK CLARENCE BRATFIELD  

29/10/1889 – 08/09/1907  

Above: A notice in the Maitland Mercury 
about the death of Vincent and his father, 
Thomas, in 1907. 

Left: Vincent Bratfield’s headstone in 
Stroud Cemetery. The headstone is barely 
legible but I have included it to show the 
spelling of his name the other newspaper 
articles use the spelling Bradfield. (NM 2023) 
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The 16th child of Thomas Bratfield 1844 – 1907 & Bridget Callian 

17. NETTIE VERA PEARL BRATFIELD 
10 December 1891 – 13 December 1966 

The 17th child of Thomas Bratfield and Bridget Callian 
 

Nettie married Alex Calman in 1929, when she was 38. They lived in Sydney. 
There is very little known about them. Alex seems to have been involved in freight 
associated with the Newcastle Port. They lived in a fairly grand house named “Glenheim” at 
116 Victoria St, Fairfield in Sydney. (That address today looks nothing like the ground 
layout or style of house of the photo on the next page. There is no Victoria St in Fairfeld 
anymore; it is only in Smithfield a neighbouring suburb.) 
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Above: Nettie and Alex’s 
house in Sydney 

 

Left: Nettie and her niece 
Evar (Nean) The daughter 
of Nettie’s sister Mary 
(Marie). 
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This letter was sent by Nettie to her brother Patrick in 1950 just after his wife had died.  
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That completes the family information of 
NETTIE VERA PEARL BRATFIELD 
10 December 1891 – 13 December 1966 

The 17th child of Thomas Bratfield 1844 – 1907 & Bridget Callian 

 

  

Below: Electoral Roll entries for 1913 showing Nettie at age 22 living with her mother 
and two older brothers at Telegherry north- west of Stroud. Her father Thomas had died 
6 years earlier in 1907 
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Thomas Bradfield and Bridget Callian’s 17 children 
A Summary  

 

1.  John Henry (Harry) Bradfield .......... 1863 – 1907, married Mary Ann Plater in 1889 

when he was 26. They had 2 children; Amy and Percy. Amy died within a days of birth.  

They had 2 grand children. 

2.  Joseph Bratfield ........................................ 1865 – 1932, married Elizabeth Ann Anderson in 

1892 when he was 27. They had 2 children; Violet and Ivy. Violet died at age 2 and Ivy 

does not seem to have had children. 

3.  Mary (Marie) Ann Bratfield  ............... 1867 – 1951. Spinster – 1 daughter in 1893, when 

she was 26. Evar (Nean) who was bought up as her sister.  

4. George Bradfield * ..................................... 1869 – 1919, married Margaret Rose Navin in 

1908 when he was 39. They had 3 children; Mary, Joan & John(Jack). Only Mary had a 

child, John who became a priest. 

5. Patrick Bradfield ...................................... 1870 – 1960, married Annie Ernestine Pringle in 

1919 when he was 49. They had 9 children; Ivy, George (Red), Robert, Dorothy (Snowy), 

Horace, Stewart, Beryl, Neville & Rita. And 25 grandchildren.      

6. Thomas Jnr (Tom) Bratfield  .............. 1872 – 1961, Bachelor  

7. Margaret Jane (Madge) Bratfield ..... 1874 – 1947,  Spinster 1 daughter in Mary 1900 

when she was 26. The baby, Mary, only lived a short time.  

8. Lillian Bratfield .......................................... 1876 – 1966, married Samuel Alex Sadler in 1909 

when she was 33. They had 2 children: Francis & Thalia. Francis on lived for a short time. 

Thalia did not seem to have any children. 

9.  Un-named Bratfield ................................ 1877 – 1877, (Twin – Still born)  

10.  Un-named Bratfield ................................ 1877 – 1877, (Twin – Still born)  

11. Amy Christina Bratfield ........................ 1878 – 1943, married Thomas Newton Carter in 

1912 when she was 34. Amy had a child,  Raymond, in 1902 who died with a short time,  

when she was 24 she later had 4 children with Thomas Carter; Vincent, Daphne, Neville & 

Gavin (Leo). They had 4 grandchildren. 

12. Beatrice May Bratfield ........................... 1880 – 1965, Spinster 

13. Archibald William Bratfield ................ 1882 – 1978, Bachelor 

14. Evelyn Malvina Bratfield ....................... 1883 – 1960, married Stanley Allen in 1926 when 

she was 43. They had 1 child; Daphne.  They had 2 grandchildren 

15. Horace Burton Bratfield 1886 – 1965, married Agnes May Lecky in 1919 when 

he was 33. They had 3 children; George, Pearl & Mark (Jim). George died shortly after 

birth. They had 7 grandchildren. 

16. Vincent Frederick Clarence Bratfield 1889 – 1907, Died  18 years old. 

17. Nettie Vera Pearl Bratfield .................. 1891 – 1966, married Alexander T Calman in 

1929 when she was 38. They did not have any children. 

Colour key:  No children 

  Children did not survive to adulthood 

  No grand children & * includes George whose grandson became a priest 

  Have grand children & descendants  

  



126 
 

Thomas Bradfield  and  Bridget Callian’s 

17 children and 29 grand children  
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THE BRADFIELD BOOK - Part 2 
 

 

PATRICK BRADFIELD  
Born 16 November 1870 

Died 28 July 1960 

 

This section of the book is about Patrick (Pat) Bradfield the 5th child 
of Thomas Bratfield and Bridget Callian the grandson of Joseph 
Bradfield the convict, the 13 year old kid who kicked off this family 
history when he stole a watch in Eye in Suffolk UK in 1817.
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 PATRICK BRADFIELD 16 November 1870 – 28 July 1960 

 

Pat’s Grandfather Joseph 

Joseph had two older brothers, John and also a brother 
with the same name as him, Joseph, who died before he 
was born. He also had a sister Sarah.  

 

 

The Great Aunties and Uncles of Pat Bradfield  

 

 

Pat’s Father Thomas. 

Thomas had 3 brothers, and 3 sisters, their stories and the stories of their 
descendants are detailed in earlier sections of this book.   

 

The Aunties and Uncles of Pat Bradfield. 

      Number of children they had 

 

Strangely we don’t know very much about Pat’s early life: from 1870 when he was born until 1904 
when he arrived in Tullymorgan at 34 years old it’s practically a blank slate. Some of the stories like 
being related to John Crew Bradfield of Sydney Harbour Bridge fame are now demonstrably untrue; 
whether or not he believed that story we have no idea. The only other claim about his life was that 
he was a surveyor and this also seems unlikely. The eulogy at his son Neville’s funeral mentions a 
specific job working on the construction of the Sydney Central Railway Station and this could have 
been true, but it is unlikely that he was a professional surveyor; rather he may have worked with 
surveyors on that job in the early 1900’s.  

Pat’s early life can be surmised from what we know about his brothers and sisters.    
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The children and grand-children of Patrick Bradfield & Annie Pringle 
 

Patrick Bradfield b. 16 Nov 1870 in Stroud N.S.W (son of Thomas Bratfield and Bridget Callian) 
 d. 28 Jul 1960 in Maclean.  

He married Annie Ernestine Pringle 7 Aug 1919 in Tullymorgan, b. 28 1893 in Mororo NSW 
(daughter of Robert Arthur Pringle and Harriett Ensby)  d. 9 Dec 1950 in Maclean.  

I.  Ivy Morelle Bradfield, b. 3 Mar 1920 Tullymorgan d. 27 Dec 2004  

She married Jack Martin Maloney, 1942 Murwillumbah b. 13 Apr 1918, d. Oct 1999   

 A. Bruce Stewart Maloney, b. 15 Jun 1942 in Murwillumbah.  

 He married Julie Ann 18 Jan 1966 Murwillumbah, b. Nov 1946 in Murwillumbah.  

 B. John Patrick Maloney, b. 9 Jun 1 Murwillumbah, d. 14 May 2021  

 C. Neville Barry Maloney, b. 4 May 1 in Murwillumbah.  

 He married Barbara Suzanne Ford  25 Jan 1975  

II.  George Vincent (Red) Bradfield, b. 13 Sep 1921 in Tullymorgan, d. 01 April 1994.  

 

III.  Robert Thomas Bradfield, b. 11 Sep 1923 in Tullymorgan, d. 21 Dec 1994 in Maclean.  
He married Mavis Beel, d. 1989 in Maclean NSW.  

 A. Warren Bradfield.  

 B. Graham Patrick Bradfield b. 1949      

 He married Helen James 

 C. Cheryl Bradfield, b. 1951 in Maclean NSW.  

 D. Alan Bradfield, b. 12 Sep 1954.  

 E. Collin Bradfield.  

 

IV.  Dorothy (Snowy) May Bradfield b.17 Sep 1925 Tullymorgan, d. 8 July 2009 in Maclean.  

She married Richard (Dick)Cavanough.  

 A. Joy Ann Cavanough, b. 3 Aug 1952.                                                                

 She married (1) Alvin Lloyd. (Div)  (2) Partner Tom Mladenovic 

 B. Dianne Hannah Cavanough, b. 18 Apr 1956.                                                 

 She married Colin Sullivan.  

 C. Iris Gail Cavanough, b. 31 Jan 1959, d. 11 Apr 2016 in Lismore.  

 D. Richard (Ricky) Cavanough, b. 22 Mar 1961 in Tullymorgan.   

  

V.  Horace Edward Bradfield, b. 9 Jun 1927 in Tullymorgan, d. 17 April 1998.  

He married Alma Eggins, d. 31 Oct 2020 in Maclean.  

  A. Stewart Thomas Bradfield b. 24 Jan 1951, d. 19 Oct 1951 in Maclean.  

  B. Lesley Bradfield, b. 24 .lul 1952. Partner Peter O’Sullivan 

  C. Peter Bradfield. Partner Jo Reader.  
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  D. Helen Bradfield. She married Warwick McLeod 

 

VI, Stewart Roy Bradfield, b. 7 Sept 1929 in Tullymorgan, d. 28 Dec 1929.  

 

VII. Beryl Bradfield, b, 10 Dec 1929 in Tullymorgan.  

She married Mervyn Lyons  

  A. Kaye Lynette Lyons b.17 1952 in Sydney, d. 5 Oct 3 2013 Sydney.  

  B. Bruce Edward Lyons b. 17 Aug 1954 in Sydney.                                                               
 He married (1) Penny Dowzer      (2) Tracey Morris.  

  C. Peter John Lyons b. 17 Jan 1956 in Sydney.  

 

VIII. Neville Colin Bradfield, b. 6 Sep 1933 in Tullymorgan, 13 Oct 1993 in Maclean.  

He married Dell Hart 

  A. Wayne Neville Bradfield, b. 21 Feb 1957 in Maclean, d. 6 March 2005   

  B. Warren Bradfield, b. 1960 in Maclean, d. 1989.  (He married Shirley Hollis) 

  C. Darryl Bradfield b. 21 May1961.                                                                                                        
  He married Rhonda Boyle 17 Mar 1959 

 

IX.  Rita Anne Bradfield  b. 23 Jan 1937 in Tullymorgan d. 27 Jun 2014 in Grafton.  

She married Cecil Edward Want, b. 12 Feb 1935 d. 8 May 2007 in Maclean.  

 A. Stephen Edward Want, b. 16 Apr 1961.  

 He married Karen Chee.    

 B.  Neville Want, b. 24 May 1962    

 He married Helen Sutherland. (Div)   

 C. Beverley Want, b. 21 Jan 1966   

 She married Andrew Green    
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Pat Bradfield moves to Tullymorgan 
The earliest evidence of Pat living at Tullymorgan is the newspaper article “The Tullymorgan Lands” 

below from 1908 where he is leasing land at Tullymorgan.  The other evidence of why Pat moved 

to Tullymorgan comes from the Obituary of Angus Sutherland in 1937. In the second column it 
mentions that Angus encouraged Pat to move 
to The Clarence region to stud a horse he 
owned “Young Cavalier”. They studded that 

horse from 1904 at Palmers Channel.  Pat and 

Angus remained good friends and undertook 
many ventures together as articles in later 
pages testify.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



132 
 

Pat Bradfield and Angus Sutherland advertise their horse “Young Cavalier’ from Aug 
1904 until they sell it in Sydney in Aug 1909  
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Pat settles into the Tullymorgan community and attends meetings, acts as an MC 
(master of Ceremony) at events and has some land resumed for a road to be built into Maclean.  

The story below is interesting because Pat is the 
MC at a birthday party for the Pringle family (The 

article has him as D. Bradfield but those letter 

mistakes are common the newspaper articles). His 
future wife Annie was most likely present and 
she would have been 18 and Pat 41. 
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Pat Bradfield marries Annie Ernestine Pringle on August 7th 1919. 

Pat is 49 and Annie is 26 and already has a child, Gladys, who is 10 years old. (Gladys’s father may 
have been a soldier in WW1 who did not return). The marriage proves solid and loving with the 
couple being recognised as throughout the Tullymorgan community for their warm and inviting 
home. They have a tennis court and games are played between the local communities from 
Palmers Island to Ulmarra.  

The home life is simple and the family grows and over the next 17 years Pat and Annie have 9 
children. They all, except for Stewart who dies a few months after his birth in 1929, go to school at 
Tullymorgan which is built on land resumed from the Bradfield farm. The farm has dairy cows and 
they grow corn and other crops to support the herd.  In later years Pat experiments with new 
pastures and crops. He grows potatoes and according to his accounting books he was selling fish to 

the Brisbane Markets. 

Pat is a regular newspaper 
reader and keeps abreast of 
nation and international 
affairs. He listens to the radio 
and at breakfast birds often 
fly into the verandah and land 
on his shoulder where he 
feeds them some of his 
crumbs.  

He sets the family rules and 
the kids have tasks around 
the farm and he insists they 
do their homework. And 
learn their times tables. 

Some of his sayings were 
often repeated by his children 
my cousins and I (Neville) 
remember them from our 
childhood: “You’re as good as 
anyone else” “Go and ask 
yourself you have a tongue in 
your head’ Pat seemed very 
much the farmer philosopher.   
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Patrick Bradfield and Annie Pringle 
The marriage document below is the marriage certificate issued by The Church of England. It is 
signed by the Bishop of Grafton because it has been granted “without publication of banns”. In 
1919 this was still an issue. It meant that the proclamation of the wedding was not read out at the 3 
preceding Sunday church services prior to the wedding and only a bishop could approve that.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pat Bradfield at home at Tullymorgan  

The background in the picture below is of the family home. Later photos show it in an increasing 
dilapidated state but in this photo there is a garden, the gate look new and the roof is free of rust. 
There is a glimpse of the rose beds that were each side of the front path.  
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Life at Tullymorgan 1920 to 1950 
 In 1925 phone lines link them to the outside world and 
the exchange just up the road provides jobs to local 
women. Pat has a role at some point in managing the 
switchboard operations. The phone in the house at 
Tullymorgan is run by two large circular batteries. 

In 1923 Annie has a Cheque/postal order some form of 
government payment stolen and cashed that results in a 
court case. 

 

In 1930 Pat is elected president of the school P&C and he 
is also elected to the management committee for a 
public hall. 
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In the years from 1920 to 1950 Pat and Annie have 9 children, in fact they have all 9 within 17 
years and the last Rita is born in 1937. It’s not all smooth sailing the 6th child, Stewart lives only 3 
months, he probably had one of the many fever type diseases that were deadly until vaccination 
became widely available 

 

 

  

In 1941 a terrible 
accident must have 
caused grief within 
the family. Pat and his 
son Horace were 
felling a tree when a 
neighbour’s child was 
struck and killed 

 

Below: Patrick 
Bradfield & his son 
George (Red).  
Late 1930’s/early 1940’s 
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Pat Bradfield continues his involvement in the community he is involved in the P&C and is an 
office bearer as president or secretary for many years. His son George (Red) often attends the 
meeting with his father from the mid 1930’s for a many years as well. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pat’s brother Horace comes for a visit in 1947 and 
from copies of letters and cards that were sent to 
Pat, it seems he kept in fairly close contact with his 
siblings. He attended the funerals of his sisters in 
the 1940’s and took his daughter Beryl with him to Gloucester in 1943 when Amy died.  

They travelled by train from Grafton.  Getting to Grafton must have been quite a task especially 
before WWII. There were very few cars and especially in the early 1920’s just a few kilometres was 
a fair distance to travel. Beryl remembers they used the Cream Run truck to get a lift to Maclean 
and then back again in the afternoon. It seems the Cream Run vehicle doubled as a delivery and bus 
service. Riding a horse was the obvious main mode of 
transport but how they moved a family I am not sure. For 
example, in 1925 they had 4 kids so to take the 6 of them 
(mum & dad & the kids) to town especially all the way into 
Grafton, about 40kms would have taken hours. Even 
Maclean was about 15kms away and that included a trip 
across a ferry.    



139 
 

 Annie Ernestine Pringle 28th September 1893 – 9th December 1950 

Annie is the daughter of a prominent Tullymorgan family. Her father is Robert Arthur Pringle 1867 
– 1948 who owns property and the Pringle family operate a sawmill, her mother is Harriett Ensby 
1871 – 1943 both family lines trace back to England.  

Annie’s home is a welcoming place relatives come to stay and during the depression she fed 
swaggies and we even know the name of one, Ned Langrigan, who stayed in the area and did odd 
jobs, and she gave them shelter and work when she could. She knitted during WWII and her socks 
and scarfs were sent to soldiers on the frontlines. Like many farming wives she was self sufficient 
and her days would have been busy from sun up to sun down. She made bread and in fact had to 
get the yeast by leaving soaked potato skins out on the verandah to attract wild yeast.   

In late 1949 she was in hospital for an operation and back in hospital again in 1950. Her death in 
December 1950 was unexpected and a severe disruption to the young members of the family. Beryl 
was 2 years into her Nursing qualifications but came home and although she later returned to 
Sydney she never completed them. Pat must have been devastated he had just turned 80 and his 
youngest child, Rita was just 13.     

Annie in her 20’s    Annie in her 50’s 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



140 
 

Gladys Pringle the daughter of Annie Pringle 

As mentioned above 
Annie had a daughter 
who was born in 1909 
who was 10 years old 
when she married Pat in 
1919. Gladys lived with 
her mother and Pat until 
she married in 1932.  

She is included in this 
Bradfield history 
because children of Pat 
and Annie considered 
her a sister.  

In 1982 Beryl, Red and 
Snowy flew to Cairns to 
celebrate with Gladys 
and her husband Alf 
their 50th wedding 
anniversary.    Gladys & Alf are sitting and their son Bobby is standing on the right. 

The family of Gladys Pringle and Alf Rowles 

Gladys May Pringle, b. 20 Sep1909 (daughter of Annie Ernestine Pringle), d. 1992. 

She married Alf Rowles, married 6 Jan1932. 

1. Valerie Rowles, b. 13 Nov 1935. 

 She married Maxwell Wells. 

 A. Leanne Wells, b. 29 May 1965. 

 B. Karen Wells, b. 13 Mar 1958. 

2. Robert (Bobby) Rowles, b. 1942, d. 2006. 

3. Nola Rowles, b. Sep 1945. 

4. Alfie Rowles, b. 29 Jun 1937, d. 2005. 

5. Malvena Rowles, b. 10 Jun 1940, d. 2016. 

6. Ray Rowles, b. Feb 1934. 

7. Desmond Rowles, b. 1957, d. 2010. 

8. John Rowles, b. 20 Jul 1932, d. 2006. 

  
Above: Gladys & Alf with their 
children and their partners (1982) 

Left: Gladys & Alf with their 
grandchildren (1982) 
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The house at Tullymorgan 
It seems that Pat built the house and was living there prior to his marriage to Annie.  

It was a typical farmhouse with a front verandah, a central hall with bedrooms on both sides at the 
front and two small bedrooms off the hall on both sides, the hall leads into the dining room and the 
kitchen is through a door to the left and at the back of the house is another verandah. I have no 
idea how a family with 8 kids lived in the space. There was one tap in the kitchen about 40cm from 
ground level that came through the side wall from the outside tank. A wood stove was the cooking 
appliance. An ice-safe a green painted metal cupboard was cooled by a block of ice that was 
delivered 3 times a week, by the 1940’s that was replaced with a kerosene fridge bought by George 
(Red).  

Electricity did not arrive until the 1960’s so the smell of burning kerosene pervaded the place each 
evening. On the back verandah was a bathtub and later a wall separated it from the open verandah. 
The outhouse was further out the back with pieces of newspaper on a hook.     

 

 

 

  

The Tullymorgan Home 

1. Late 1950’s (The front gardens have gone)  

2. 1970’s (A power pole is in front of the house) 

3. 1987 (Back verandah has fallen down. Amber 
Maloney, Pat’s great grand-daughter visits the 
house). 

4. 1987 (The house is on the ground the stumps 
have rotted away. (Neville Maloney & his 3 kids; 
Andrew, Reeanna & Amber are visiting) 

5. 1990 The house is leaning & white ants holding 
the walls together. (John Maloney is visiting) 
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Inside the Tullymorgan home  

 

 

 

 

The Tullymorgan Bradfield Kids 

At the Tullymorgan school reunion in 1993 

 

Left to right and in order of age: 

Ivy, George (Red), Robert (Robbie), Dorothy (Snowy), Horace, Beryl, Neville (Ned), Rita 

  

The front bedroom with iron posted bed and solid 
dresser in the late 1980’s, (Amber Maloney Pat & 
Annie’s great-granddaughter) 

The dining room. The large table was thought to 
have been a wedding present from Annie’s 
parents made from timber from their sawmill. 
1980’s, (John Maloney Pat & Annie’s grandson) 
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Annie Bradfield the wife of Pat dies in December 1950 

The years 1948 and 1951 seem to have been a tough time for the Bradfield family both Pat and 
Annie were in and out of hospital. Annie had an operation in Brisbane in December and that must 
not have gone well, it was related to a gall stones 
problem, because she died on the 9th of that month. 
Pat had been in and out of hospital probably with lung 
issues because it is mentioned in one of his admissions 
that he had pneumonia. Fortunately hospital 
admissions were mentioned in the personal/gossip 
column of the daily papers.   

By 1953 Pat is getting is getting better and holidaying.  

Troubled Years  

Left Column: 
1. Pat in hospital July 1948 
2. Annie in hospital Dec 1949 
3. Horace is visiting & Pat is well enough to go to Stroud 
4. Annie is “again” in hospital Oct 1950 (Ivy is visiting) 
Right Column 
1. Annie has an operation in Brisbane hospital Dec 1950 
2. Pat is in a Brisbane hospital in May 1951 
3. Pat and G, Bradfield (Red) return home from Brisbane 
4. Pat is well enough to Nov 1951 to visit family in Gloucester 
5. Pat & Rita holiday in Jan 1953. 
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The 1950’s – Pat Bradfield is in his eighties, in 1958 he celebrates his 88 birthday and again it is 

mentioned that it was Angus Sutherland who encouraged Pat to come to the Clarence to live. When 
Pat first arrived he lived with the Sutherland’s at Palmers Channel. He is also referred to as 
“Tullymorgan’s oldest pioneer” 

 

Pat with his daughter Ivy 
Maloney in 1959 and Pat with 
his pipe sitting in front of his 
house at Tullymorgan.  
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Patrick Bradfield and the Bradfield family Line   

Pat Bradfield’s father 
Thomas BRATFIELD - 1844 – 1907 

 

Pat Bradfield’s Grandfather 
Joseph BRADFIELD - 1802 – 1886 

Pat’s wife Annie Pringle 1893 – 1960 
& their daughter Beryl 
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Patrick Bradfield 1870-1960 - The Documents 
There were a number of documents left in the Tullymorgan house and in a visit when it was 
unoccupied in the late 1980’s I took some of them for “safe keeping”. Some of the documents on 
the following pages, in particular the cards sent to Pat and Annie when Stewart died and then to 
Pat when Annie died were in possession of Pat’s daughter Beryl who kept dozens of them in a box.  

The first document, Pat’s Will, is pretty much 
illegible but I have managed to decipher it 
and include a transcript to make its reading 
possible. The Will was made out in 1951 just 
after Annie died.  

There is also a letter from the solicitors after 
Pat died to Ned and Red that makes it seem 
that there could have been a later will than 
the one I have copied here. The end of the 3rd 
paragraph in that letter mentions the 
situation if they die without a Will.    

 

The Will itself has the signature of Pat 
Bradfield and on the left side are the 
signatures of Neville (Ned) and George (red) 
Bradfield.  

 

  

THIS IS THE LAST WILL AND TESTAMENT of me PATRICK BRADFIELD of  

Tullymorgan in the state of New South Wales, farmer I APPOINT as  

executors and trustees of this my will GEORGE VINCENT BRADFIELD 

and NEVILLE COLIN BRADFIELD and I GIVE DEVISE and BEQUETH the 

whole of the  estate  whether real or personal  of or to which I die 

seised possessed or entitled only by said two sons in equal share 

if both survive me . But if one of my sons predecease me or dies  

without having obtained grant of Probate of this my will then 

I GIVE DEVISE AND BEQUETH the whole of my estate to such of any  

said two sons  as shall survive me and prove as executor of this 

my will as his own absolutely. AND I HERBY REVOKE all wills and  

testamentary dispositions herewith made by me AND DECLARE  

this to be my last will and testament IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have 

hereunto set my name this  Twenty eight th day of July in the year 

Of our lord One thousand nine hundred and fifty one 

SIGNED by the testator as and 

For his last will and testament in 

The presence of us both being present 

At the same time and we at his request 

In his presence and in the presence  

Of each other here have hereunto subscribed 

Our names as witness  
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This is a receipt for 
insurance of the house at 
Tullymorgan in 1959. The 
house is insured for £200 
and the fee was £1.4s 
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A page from an account book in Pat’s handwriting  

It seems that he was selling fish to the Brisbane market in 1946 (From an exercise type account 
book where Pat wrote out income expense information). 

And the receipt below is from The Pasture Protection Board was for a payment paid by cheque in 
June 1960 and it is made out to Pat and Neville (Ned).  
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Pat Bradfield’s bank book from 1956 

The £2088 balance in 1956 is equivalent to about $40,000 today in 2023. So the farm was doing 
well.  The receipt for the watch that George (Red) bought was for £15 and that’s about $300 today 
(2023). Watches were the high tech items at that time.  To give some perspective to these values in 
1956 a Holden car cost about £2000, Bread 10p (20c) a large loaf, milk 9p for =2 litres. Comparisons 
are hard but the long term trend is that prices have tended to double each decade since 1960, but 
not for cars.  The wages for most people were about £15 a week in 1956 so the watch was 
expensive.  
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Sympathy cards and telegrams sent to Pat after Annie died in December 1950. The cards are a 
small sample of the dozens received. The few shown here are from the community and extended 
family. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Annie’s relatives 

Pat’s sister and husband 
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A letter from Evar Alexandrina (Nean) Bratfield – Dec 12th 1950 

Nean is Pat’s niece the daughter of his sister Mary, who is referred to in the letter as Marie. Nean 
lived her life as a spinster and presented to the world and the family as one of Pat’s siblings. (See 
notes in Part of 1 about that generation of the Bradfield/Bratfield family).  

Marie, Nean’s mother is quite unwell and she dies some months later in October 1951 The Tom and 
Lil are Pat’s brother and his sister Lillian.  Tom had eye trouble and had operations in Sydney from 
1946 and he also had further complications in 1950 and Nean is referring to his recovery. 

The farm she mentions is the family farm at Stroud Road where all of Pat’s family grew up. Nean, 
with her Aunt Lillian and Uncle Arch did sell the farm to the son of another brother, Horace, and 
they moved to Gloucester and lived in a house there together.   
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The Family of Patrick Bradfield and Annie Pringle 
 

9 children 

 

1. Ivy Morelle Bradfield   1920 – 2004  (Married Jack Maloney) 

2. George (Red)Vincent Bradfield  1921 – 1994 (Bachelor) 

3. Robert (Robbie) Thomas Bradfield  1923 – 1994 (Married – Mavis Beel) 

4. Dorothy (Snowy) May Bradfield  1925 – 2009 (Married Richard (Dick) Cavanough)       

5. Horace Edward Bradfield    1927 – 1998  (Married Alma Eggins)       

6. Stewart Roy Bradfield   1929 – 1929 (Died at 4 months)  

7. Beryl Joy Bradfield    1930 – 20?? (Married – Mervyn Lyons ) 

8. Neville (Ned) Colin Bradfield  1933 – 1993  (Married Delma Hart)       

9. Rita Anne Bradfield     1937 – 2014 (Married Cecil Want) 
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1. IVY MORELLE BRADFIELD 
03 March 1920 – 27 December 2004 

The 1st child of Patrick Bradfield and Annie Pringle 
 

Ivy was probably born in Maclean or with a mid-wife at Tullymorgan. She spoke of an 
enjoyable home life with caring parents and often mentioned the days when as a family they sat 
around the dining table and talked. She was proud to be a 
Bradfield and was strongly influenced by a visit she made to 
her father’s extended family in Gloucester when she was 
about 15. She had tonsillitis and had been in hospital and as 
a recuperation tonic she went to visit her aunts and uncles. 
Her sisters claimed she returned a “lady” well that was their 
polite version the other was she was very “snooty” and 
displayed airs and graces and made demands on her siblings 
to be better mannered.  
I certainly remember sitting up at the dinner table and mum 
getting dressed in better clothes to go shopping and doing 
her gardening in stockings and high heels. But very few 
demands rather requests for us to do the right thing and very 
forgiving and understanding.  

 
She left the family home in 1940 and moved to 
Murwillumbah to work for Idy Eaton in a shop she had 
recently purchased, the Handy Store.  
The Eaton family had a shop, a small general store 
something like a roadside stall at Tullymorgan and they 
owned the cream run business. He died in 1936/37 and after 
a year or two Ivy Eaton sold the business and moved to 
Murwillumbah. She bought The Handy Store in mid 1939 
and just after sent a letter to Annie & Pat asking if their 
daughter, Ivy, could come and work for her. Ivy made a life-
long friend of Ruby Gear who was a cook at the store. I 
think it gave Ivy an “I can do attitude” to life as well and Idy 
Easton must have been a formidable role model.  
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 The Handy Store was a general store, a milk bar, a cafe and an agency for tickets and for goods 
to left and picked up. 
By the time the photo below was taken in 1954 much had happened. Idy Eaton seems to have 
sold the store in 1949 to Laurie Jenkins and moved to Brisbane. Ivy has married and has 3 
children. 

 
Backing up a few years: Tullymorgan in the 1920’s was a pioneering sort of place and Pat 
Bradfield was in the thick of the progress that was happening. Roads, a community hall and 
school were built. Farmers were fencing their land and building up a dairy industry. And 
someone in the Tullymorgan extended family 
had a camera very early on because there is a 
photo of Ivy just a few months old and one with 
her brother George (Red) just a few years later. 
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Like the rest of her siblings Ivy attended school on a regular basis and did quite well with little 
aspiration for a future of academic life. Sports 
and competition were important and all the 
Bradfield kids do well at school and regional 
sports. It is suggested that it is in fact a Pringle 
trait inherited from their mother.  Ivy wins the 8 
to 9 year old running event at the Empire Day 
sports carnival in 1928. 
 By the end of 1930 Ivy has 3 brothers and 2 more sisters: Red, Robbie, Snowy, Horace and 
Beryl. The home has these 6 kids Mum and Dad and also Gladys a daughter Annie had in 1909 
all 9 are living in the little Tullymorgan farmhouse. Ivy as an 11 year old must have been 
helping, along with Gladys, their mother look after the younger ones. Gladys marries in 
January 1932 she must have been very much the older sister to Ivy.    

After Ivy returns from her recuperative months in 
Gloucester in 1935 she works either in Maclean or 
helps Ivy Eaton out with her business in Tullymorgan 
but continues to have throat problems and finally gets 
her tonsils out in February 1940. In the newspaper 
story opposite there is mention about Lindsay the son 
of Angus Sutherland Pat’s friend and also a mention 
about Mr swift who bought the cream run business 
from Ivy Eaton.  
Later in 1940 Ivy moves to Murwillumbah and part of 
her employment arrangement she has accommodation 

with Mrs Eaton in a house near her shop. 
The photo opposite is Ivy in Murwillumbah 
Main St in 1941. Later in ’41 she met Jack 
Maloney at a dance (he was home on leave 
from the army). In June 1942 she gave birth 
to a son, Bruce and was now living with 
Jack’s mother, Mary, in a house on the 
corner of Brisbane and Condong Sts just a 
few blocks along from the Handy Store and 
on the site where the bowling club was later 
built in 1949. Today (2023) that site has 
been purchased and a Woolworths 
Supermarket is to be built there. The house 
was bought by Jack and Ivy and moved to 
10 Elizabeth St. 
Ivy and Jack married on 29th August 1942  
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Ivy with friends (Doris and Daphne) and her brothers 
Robbie and Red who were both in the AIF Light 
Horse and her sister Rita. The Photo was probably 
taken when she visited the family in early July 1941 

In the photo below Ivy (2nd from right) is about 15 she 
is with her Aunts Marie and Madge and her cousin 
Evar (Nean) at Stroud Road near Gloucester in 1935 

 

 

 

 

 

Ivy in 1941 and on 
the right with Ivy 
Eaton at the back 
of the Handy 
Store.  
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Ivy continued working for Ivy Eaton until 1949 when she sold the business. During these years 
life changing things were happening. Ivy became a mother and married in 1942, she moved in 
with Jack’s mother and found a kindred spirit and all of her life she spoke in glowing terms of 
Mary Maloney and the love and affection and the help she provided when Bruce was young.  
The letter below and following page was written in 1944. It seems Mary is visiting her sister 
Elsie Ellis at Coutts Crossing and Ivy is visiting her family at Tullymorgan.  
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The Regent Theatre was completed in 1947 and Mrs Eaton expanded her business but taking 
the lease on the theatre shop, Ivy worked in there for a year or so. Bruce remembers spending 
days with his mum when she worked at The Handy Store and he would cross the road, sit on 
the fence and watch the calf sales taking place.  
Ivy’s mother-in-law, Mary Maloney, died in April 1948, and The Handy Store was sold in 
1949. Jack and Ivy bought the house that Mary had been renting and had it moved to Elizabeth 
Street in 1949/1950   
Below is the house 
in 1964/65 
Ivy’s 2nd child, John 
is born in June 1950 
and the family are 
living at 10 Elizabeth 
St, Murwillumbah. 
Her husband, jack, is 
working at various 
jobs; cane cutting, 
driving a truck to 
Brisbane to pick up 
fruit and vegetables, 
he opened his own 
Fruit and veg shop 
for a while and 
finally he becomes a 
cook/chef at the 
Austral cafe. They 
have a large 
vegetable garden and a large chook pen/yard. In the early days there is a horse in the paddock 
next door but soon an old truck is bought and later they have a Ford Prefect. A bicycle is Jack’s 
main mode of transport around town. Ivy settles into motherhood and is a good homemaker; 
she sews, cooks washes and cleans.  

Ivy with 
Bruce in 
1942 and 
with Bruce 
and new 
born John in 
1950. 
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Ivy has 3 children Neville is born in May 1953.  John, Neville, Ivy & Bruce in 1954 

 
The in 50’s and most of the 1960’s are years of raising the family, the kids all go to 
Murwillumbah Primary and High Schools, Bruce and Neville have asthma and this was a 
constant worry for Ivy. 
These decades bring change for everyone: electric stoves replace the labour intensive wood 
stoves, washing machines slowly replace the wood fired coppers, television replaces the radio, 
the outhouse is replaced with an indoor toilet, wall to wall carpet and venation blinds are 
installed along with flyscreens, an electric heater replaces the kero one, electric frypans and 
vertical grills let us know we are a modern family. Ivy goes along with all of this but still wears 
stockings and gets dressed up to go out.  
At Kingscliff late 1950’s Neville, John & Ivy.  Ivy and Bruce at Murwillumbah Show  

     
In 1966 the family move to 2 Thompson St, 
Murwillumbah from an old wooden house into an art 
deco plaster home. This house is “out of the flood” if 
anything disturbed the peace of mind it was the stress of 
constant floods, they came in 1941, 1945&46, a big one 
in 1954, almost a flood in 1955, 58 & 61, in 1964 a 
cyclone batters the town and threatens a flood. Water 
went into the Elizabeth house 3 or 4 times during the 
50’s and 60’s it was devastating and hard smelly work 
to clean it all up and start again.   
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     After 1966 when moved house Ivy had enough labour saving devices and less children to 
look after constantly to enable her join the CWA and spend time with women of her generation 
at cards and charity functions. She assisted at catering for wedding and parties her sister-in-law 
Elsie Dawes became her best friend and they travelled together on tours to Tasmania and 
Central NSW & Qld. She took up a paid job catering at the Golf Club and later as a carer for 
older people cooking and cleaning for them. She enjoyed the independence and saw value in 
work and it gave her “spending” money for the things she wanted. And it got her out of the 
house and into the world although it was now more than 40 years after she started that venture 
by leaving Tullymorgan.  

  

Above: Ivy 1940’s & 1960’s  

Left :  Ivy in 1985 with 
grandson Jack Andrew 
Maloney and Her grand-
daughter Reeanna Jain 
Maloney in painting in 
background.  

Right: Ivy 2004 at home 
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The 4 Bradfield sisters L-R: Rita, Beryl, Dorothy (Snowy) and Ivy in Murwillumbah 1966  

 

At Ivy’s funeral her niece, Marie Melski, in her eulogy said: 
“Today is a celebration for Ivy Maloney – our aunt, our mother, grandmother, great 
grandmother, sister, sister-in-law, friend, and my mentor for whom we gather.  
Ivy joined our family when she married Uncle Jack, and moved into the family home where 
Nanny still lived.  Nanny’s home had been the base in Murwillumbah for her daughters (my 
mum Nita included) when they came into town to shop.  We children were left with Nanny 
while Mum and her sisters went up town.  And so began a life long tradition – coming into 
town to stay with Nanny, and when she died - Uncle Jack and Aunty Ivy.  Most of the cousins 
here today would have at some time stayed with Auntie Ivy, some for extended times, some 
for only a day or a few hours – but who ever we were, Ivy always welcomed us with open 
arms.  That same welcome was extended to all her sisters-in-law, who became like her 
sisters, with that bond still continuing to the present with Auntie Elsie, with whom Ivy 
enjoyed holidays, endless games of cards, and many dinners together 
But most importantly it was her philosophy on life which I honour – the fact that people 
were the most important thing for her.  Not how much money she could have had – not 
material success at all – but her love and concern for those close to her typified her outlook 
on life.  Nothing pleased her more than to take members of her family out for dinner, to get 
dressed up, and enjoy their company for the evening. 
Thinking of dressing up – Ivy took great pride in her appearance, her hair always just so – 
her cloths suiting her down to the ground.  I asked her recently if she had ever worn slacks, 
as I had never seen her in them.  Well she thought for a while – then replied that perhaps 



164 
 

she had owned a pair when she was young – but never liked them.  As John once said – 
Mum was the only person I knew who wore high heels to the beach, and mowed the lawn in 
high heels!!! 
Along with the dinners, came the flutter on the pokies – she had a knack of picking a 
machine – up and leaving it if “The dam thing isn’t paying tonight!” and moving on to 
another.  All in good fun and after all where else could you get a good night out for less!!! 
If not taking people out to dinner – then having them come to her home gave her great 
pleasure.  No use saying that you didn’t feel like anything – out would come the coffee or 
tea, the cakes or plates of savories. Nearly always lurking in the fridge was a bowl of 
coleslaw, or slaw as she used to call it.  “I just 
love making cups of tea for visitors” she often 
commented.  How many of us remember those 
happy occasions 
And who could forget her pride in her garden 
– how the lawn had to be mowed to within an 
inch of it’s life – no blade of grass would dare 
to grow out of line!! Then there were the edges 
– especially along the footpath.  They had to 
be neatly edged with a spade – and she would 
get out there and make sure that it was done 
properly!!!” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Above: Home at 2 Thompson St, Murwillumbah 

Left: Ivy with husband Jack Maloney early 1960’s 

Below: jack Maloney and his mother Mary 
Maloney (nee Waugh) who played an important 
role in Ivy’s early married life. 
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Lisa, Ivy, Zac & Bruce – Ivy with 1
st

 grandchild 2002 

Ivy Bradfield’s children and grandchildren 
 Ivy Morelle Bradfield, b. 03 Mar 1920 in Tullymorgan (daughter of Patrick Bradfield and 
Annie Ernestine Pringle), d. 27 Dec 2004 in Tugun (John Flynn Hospital) buried in 
Murwillumbah Cemetery Bray Park. 
She married Jack Martin Maloney, married 29 August 1942 in Murwillumbah, b. 13 Apr 
1918 in Clarenza Gardens Grafton (son of John Maloney and Mary Jeanette Waugh), d. 25 
Oct 1999  
I. Bruce Stewart Maloney, b. 15 Jun 1942 in Murwillumbah. 
  He married Julie Ann Bourke, married 18 Jan 1966 in Murwillumbah, b. 25 Nov 1946 

in Murwillumbah. 
  A. Tanya Maree Maloney, b. 8 Dec 1971 in Murwillumbah. 
 B. Lisa Jane Maloney, b. 28 Oct 1973 in 

Murwillumbah. 
  She married Peter Wotherspoon, married 18 

April 1998 in Murwillumbah. 
  1. Zac Peter Wotherspoon, b.13 Mar 

2002 
  2. Zoe Ann Wotherspoon, b. 21 Nov 2003. 
  3. Meg Ivy Wotherspoon, b. 7 July 2005. 
  4. Pip Jane Wotherspoon, b. 20 May 2007 
 C. Stuart John Maloney, b. 17 Mar 1978 in Murwillumbah. 
  He married Rachel Anne Morriss, married 14 April 2007 in Hastings Point. 
  1. Nate Phillip Maloney, b. 8 Feb 2012 in Tweed Heads. 
  2. Jack Michael Maloney, b. 12 Feb 2015 in Tweed Heads. 
II. John Patrick Maloney, b. 9 Jun 1950 in Murwillumbah, d. 14 May 2021 in Lismore. 
III. Neville Barry Maloney, b. 4 May 1953 in Murwillumbah. 
 He married Barbara Suzanne Ford, married 25 Jan 1975 in Murwillumbah, b. 31 May 

1954 in Brisbane (daughter of Albert Neville Ford and Maxyne Dawn Stanley). 
 A.  Reeanna Jain Maloney, b. 16 Sep 1979 in Brisbane. 
 B. Amber Maree Maloney, b. 6 Feb 1984 in Brisbane. 
  She married Remy Ventura Horta, married 16 Oct 2020 in Paris, b. 13 Mar 1982 in 

Paris France. 
  1. Jude Louis Ventura Horta, b. 15 Jan 2015 in Melbourne. 
  2. Freya Ivy Amelia Ventura Horta, b. 27 Aug 2018 in Melbourne. 
 C. Jack Andrew Maloney, b. 25 Sep 1985 in Brisbane. 
  He married Cyndi Joyce Castro Batacan, b. 14 May 1990 in Zamboanga del Norte 

Philippines (daughter of David Batacan and Cynthia Esparagoza Castro). 
  1. Caleb Martin Maloney, b. 16 Oct 2020 in Brisbane. 
  2. Carter John Maloney, b. 16 Dec 2021 in Townsville.
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Ivy’s son Bruce worked at Partridge and Walkers, the Ford car dealership in Murwillumbah, 
when he left school taking up a panel beater apprenticeship initially starting at their repair 
shop in South Murwillumbah and later managing the paint-shop crash repair department of 
the business that wrapped around the Regent Picture Theatre in Wollumbin & Brisbane Sts. 
In the 1960’s, 70’s and 80’s the car dealerships of Ford and GMH (Holden) were major 
businesses in most towns and cities.  
In 1985 purchased the Disposal store in the Main St, then in 1991 fire destroyed the shop but 
true to his word (from the story below) he reopened, after having had to operating from a 
temporary location in Wollumbin St for a year or so. He sold the shop and retired in 2005. 
The shop is till at the same location and is now called “Outdoorism”.   
 



165B 

Ivy’s Children 
 
   

Ivy’s Grand-Children 

Lisa, Reeanna, Stuart, Tanya, Amber & Jack (Andrew) 

Right: Bruce Maloney & his 
wife Julie Bourke 

Below left: John Maloney 

Below right: Neville Maloney 
& his wife Barbara Ford 
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Ivy’s Great Grand-Children  

Top: Zoe, Pip, Meg & Zac Wotherspoon 

Above left: Jack & Nate Maloney 

Above: Carter & Caleb Maloney 

Left: Freya & Jude Maloney 
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2. GEORGE (RED) VINCENT BRADFIELD 
13 September 1921 – 01 April 1994 

The 2nd child of Patrick Bradfield and Annie Pringle 

There is a photo of Red when he was about 2 
years old back a few pages in the section on 
Ivy and that’s the only childhood photo. He 
seemed a shy kid and the story goes that he 
used to run and hide when visitors came to 
house. He seemed to get along well his father 
and both attended community meetings 
together Red was a big man taller than his 
father and in the photo opposite they present 
as a formidable duo.  
An incident one day may indicate the 
temperament of Red and his sister Ivy. Jim 
Rowles* was visiting in 1936 and was telling 
Red that he was lazy and needed to do more 
work around the farm, Red would have been 
about 16 at the time and Ivy heard Jim getting 
into Red so she told Jim to get out of the 
house and leave. Their mother Annie was 
away and Ivy decided she was in charge.     
*the brother of Alf Rowles who was the husband 
Gladys their elder half sister 

Red joined the army at the very outbreak of 
WWII in 1939 when was only 17. His service 
number was NX47782 and when he enlisted 
he gave his birth date as 13 Sept 1918! (Check 
correct year above) 

Tullymorgan news from July 1941 Annie’s mother 
is visiting and so is her daughter  Ivy, claiming 
from Lismore but that should have been from 
Murwillumbah and George (Red) is home on 
leave. 
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Red in the army. 

WWII must have been a time of concern about the fighting men especially those who like 
Red were on the frontline. Initially he was in the Middle 
East in the Light Horse and then recalled form there and 
sent to Borneo in the AIF (No horses needed in Borneo). 

In June 1940 Red seemingly was transferring between army 
units. Other Tullymorgan recruits are mentioned in the news 
story below. About 13 boys/men from Tullymorgan enlisted 
in WWII and they all came home all without any serious 
wounds.  
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Red returns to Tullymorgan and works on the farm. As his father, Patrick, ages Red and Ned 
take over more and more of the farm labour.  

Photo opposite is Red on leave in early 1940’s 
with his mother.  

In 1946 Red is travelling to trotting events 
with the Lindsay Sutherland and so the 
Bradfield/Sutherland connection with horses 
continues. 

 

In July 1949 Red has an accident in a truck. While the 
truck seems to have been damaged and bogged no one 
seems to have been injured.  
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After 1950 when his mother died the farm must have lost some 
of her refinement and homely charm. Only Pat, Red. Ned and 
Rita who was only 13 at the time were living at home. The 
farm operated with good profits and the accounts that remained 
showed Pat and his two sons as equal partners in the business 
and Pat’s Will reflected that situation. Red’s bank book form 
1967 but there were others with all of their names in them.  

After his father died in 1960 (Rita had just married and moved 
to Lawrence) Red lived on the farm with Ned but soon had a 
wife and spent more and more time in Maclean. Red at some 
point moved out of the deteriorating Tullymorgan home and 
lived with Iris Sutherland not far away and still in 
Tullymorgan. 

Red was diagnosed with cancer in the early 1990’s and after 
various treatments and finally chemo therapy in Brisbane 
where he was accompanied by Iris and his sister Beryl. He died 
in 1994 just a couple of days after he returned home to 
Tullymorgan. 
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3. ROBERT (ROBBIE) THOMAS BRADFIELD 
11 September 1923 – 21 December 1994 
The 3rd child of Patrick Bradfield and Annie Pringle 

Robert was always Robbie within the family his mates often called him Bob. Like his 
siblings he (see their childhood notes) attended the Tullymorgan School and did chores on 
the farm.  

At school he was also good at athletics and at the 
Empire Day sporting events in 1937 his 
achievements in the senior student division are 
listed in the newspaper report 
His brother Horace won in junior divisions 
He like his older brother, Red, Robbie enlisted in 
the army in WWII and he must have waited until 
early 1941 because he was only 16 in 1939, even 
so he, like Red, gave the wrong year for his date 
of birth stating 1922 rather than 1923. They were 
keen on getting in to the Army.  

This newspaper article says he had just 
completed his 3 months training and that 
was in late May 1941 
Robbie was probably driving trucks even 
before he enlisted helping out with deliveries with someone who had a business in Maclean. 
In the army he was in a transport unit driving truck. 
 Both Robbie and Red were in Borneo at the same time and it turned out that Red was 
travelling in the truck convey that Robbie was driving for at some stage but at the time 
neither knew they were so close together only realising it much later.  
Robbie’s army number was NX128222 He was at 
the battle front in 1943 as this article states. 
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Robbie and Mavis’s first child Warren John Bradfield was born in September 1947 and died 
in November 1948. They were living at the time with Mavis’s sister Dorothea (Dorrie) and 
her husband Bert Barnier on a farm at Tyndale near Maclean.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

After the war Robbie became a gun cane cutter and managed a 
very successful gang/team. The article opposite is about the 1953 
cane season. 

 

He married Mavis Beel in 1947 and after Warren they had four 
more children.  
Robert Thomas Bradfield, b. 11 Sep 1923 in Tullymorgan (son of Patrick 
Bradfield and Annie Ernestine Pringle), d. 21 Dec 1994 in Maclean. 

He married Mavis Doreen Beel, married 1947, d. 1989 in Maclean NSW. 

I. Warren John Bradfield, b. Sep 1947, d. Nov 1948. 

II. Graham Patrick Bradfield, b. 1949. 

 He married Helen James, b. 22 Oct 1953 in Grafton. 

  A. Jodie Helen Bradfield, b. 2 May 1972. 

   She married (1) Brett Ford. (Div) 

   She married (2) Paul Watson. (Div) 

   1. Bryar Bradfield Ford, (daughter of Brett Ford and  
       Jodie Bradfield) b. 5 Oct 1996. 

       Her partner Lachlan Davis. 

     a. Gwendolyn Clare Davis, b. 17 Aug 2018. 

   2. Zane Ford, (son of Brett Ford and Jodie   
      Bradfield) b. 18 Dec 1995, d. 18 Dec 1995. 

   B. Timothy Bradfield, b. 7 May 1976. 

III. Cheryl Bradfield, b. 1951 in Maclean NSW. 

IV. Allen Robert Bradfield, b. 12 Sep 1954, d. 24 May 1993. 

      He married Judy Eggins. (After Allen died Judy married Stewart  
     Mcpherson who she later divorced) 

      A. Dean Bradfield (McPherson), b. 10 Oct 1989. 

           V. Collin Bradfield, b. 29 Apr 1964. 
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Robbie and Mavis 
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Robbie’s children 
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4. DOROTHY (SNOWY) MAY BRADFIELD 
17 September 1925 – 07 July 2009 

The 4th child of Patrick Bradfield and Annie Pringle 

I will have to call her Snowy because for so long I didn’t know she had another name. Let’s 
start with Dorothy because that’s the name she was given and it appears on a few legal 
documents only. At school and in her years before she married she was DORIS and at some 

point the name changed to Snowy and that stuck.  

Snowy was loud, boisterous and noisy her gravelly voice 
and cackle laugh were legendary. Seems like even as a 
child those characteristics were levelled at her and she 
probably revelled in them.  

The nephews and nieces loved Snowy and her house 
became something of a pilgrimage back to Tullymorgan 
after the Bradfield family home was no longer habitable 
after the1960’s. Her sponge cake was raved about and 
the casual nature and the way she made it was the talk of 
any visit. There was a consensus that the ash from her 
roll your own cigarettes that never left the corner of her 
mouth was the secret ingredient that made her sponge 
cake rise so well. (In truth probably all the fresh eggs was 
the cause.) You lived wildly when you visited, chook pens, 

tractor and horse rides, cows around the house and until fairly late in the piece a sloping 
outdoor toilet. Generations of kids loved it. They also loved the non-stop supply of food: 
breakfast, morning tea, lunch, afternoon tea, dinner and later supper and the best they all 
came with dessert.  

Her brothers and sisters would sound out 
Snowy on family issues. They came to her 
for advice and for her opinion or maybe she 
was just a good listener of their concerns. 

Snowy married George Richard Cavanough 
in 1952 I had no idea his name was George 
he was always known as DICK. So it is 
clearly Dick and Snowy not George and 
Dorothy.  

BUT we are in spelling games yet again, as if the Bradfield/Bratfield issue isn’t confusing 
enough the Cavanough name is likewise conflicted. The road up to Showy and Disk’s house 
is called Cavanaugh Rd. Their son, Ricky, tells me there is also an unrelated family in 
Tullymorgan called Cavanaugh but the road is named for Snowy’s in laws and is spelt 
incorrectly. The marriage registration for Dick and Snowy has his name as George Richard 
Cavanaugh but his headstone is Cavanough. The name the family uses is Cavanough and 
that is what I am going with. (But there will still be the incorrect version on some photos 
and lists).  

When Snowy finished school at Tullymorgan she got a job at the Maclean Maternity 
Hospital where they did pre and post natal care and this is where she worked as a nursing 
assistant for a number of years and with that job she lived at the hospital during week and 
went home on weekends. And it was at these weekends that her sister Beryl remembers 
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the house became more lively and noisy. Beryl also had 
her first job at the Maclean Hospital as her first job but 
travelled to and from each day as a passenger on a 
motor cycle with some likely local lad.  

The 4 Bradfield sisters Ivy, Snowy, Beryl and Rita 
obviously enjoyed life on the Tullymorgan farm; Snowy 
related a tale of them having a horse called “Molly” that 
the 4 of them would get on and ride without a bridle 
just steering it by pulling on its neck.  

One Christmas when Snowy was just a kid she woke up 
very early to find her present under the Christmas tree, 
she found it and promptly dropped it and the porcelain 
doll inside shattered.     

The sporting events on Empire Day in 1939 & 1937 
when Snowy (Doris) was 11 and 13 where she excelled in the “egg and spoon race” and in 
“eating the apple”. Note that Robert (Robbie) Horace and Beryl are also winners at these sports. 

   

  

In September 1941 Snowy fell off a horse 
and was in hospital. She was only 16 but it 
mentions she is a “great patriotic worker”. 

Above: in 1950 she has been on a visit to 
see her sister Ivy in Murwillumbah. 
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Dorothy, Doris, Snowy in photos.   
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Snowy Bradfield and Dick Cavanough’s family 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Above: Ricky, Joy, Diane & Iris Gail (1963) 

Right: Iris Gail Cavanough (Always know as Gail) 

Below: Richard (Ricky) Cavanough (2007) 

 

  Below: Colin Sullivan and Diane Cavanough 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Below: Joy Cavanough (1960 & 2007) 

  

Above: Diane Cavanough and Colin Sullivan 2023 
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Dorothy (Snowy) May Bradfield, b. 17 Sep 1925 in Tullymorgan (daughter of Patrick 
Bradfield and Annie Ernestine Pringle), d. 7 July 2009 in Maclean. 
She married George Richard (Dick)Cavanough, married 1952. 
I. Joy Ann Cavanough, b. 3 Aug 1952. 
  She married (1) Alvin Geoffery Lloyd, married 26 Jun 1971. (Div) 
  Partner (2) Tom Mladenovic. 
 A. Tracey Lloyd, (daughter of Alvin Lloyd & Joy Cavanough) b. 5 Nov 1971. 
  She married Graham Walton. 
 B. Colleen Lloyd, (daughter of Alvin Lloyd &d Joy Cavanough) b. 29 Dec 1975. 
  She married Michael Egan. 
  1. Joshua Egan, b. 29 Jan 2003. 
  2. Tameka Egan, b. 29 Jan 2003. 
 C. Priscilla Lloyd, (daughter of Alvin Lloyd & Joy Cavanough) b. 4 Mar 1975. 
  She married Brett Mawhitz. 
  1. Macenzi Lloyd, b. 17 Sep 1996. 
    She married Joel Bon. 
  2. Charli May Lloyd, b. 21 May 2004. 
  3. Camrin Trace Lloyd, b. 17 Mar 2006. 
  4. Ryli Rules Lloyd, b. 7 Jan 2008. 
II. Dianne Hannah Cavanough, b. 18 Apr 1956. 
 She married Colin Sullivan. 
III. Iris Gail Cavanough, b. 31 Jan 1959, d. 11 Apr 2016 in Lismore. 
IV. Richard (Ricky) Cavanough, b. 22 Mar 1961 in Tullymorgan. 

Ricky works the farm at Tullymorgan and lives in the original Cavanough homestead. Diane 
and her husband Colin live at Tucabia near Maclean. Joy and her partner Tom live in 
Tasmania as does her daughter Pricilla.  

 

  
Left: Tom Mladenovic & Joy Cavanough 

 

Next Page 

Top Left: Macenzi Lloyd & Joel Bon 

Top Right: Michael Egan, Joshua Egan, Colleen Lloyd & Tameka Egan 

Centre: Left: Pricilla & Colleen Lloyd (2007) 

Bottom Right:  Pricilla Lloyd & her daughter Charli Lloyd 

Bottom Left: Tracey Lloyd & Graham Walton 
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Snowy Bradfield and Dick Cavanough’s grandchildren 
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The great nephews and 
nieces visit Snowy for 
horse riding and eating. 
Reeanna, Amber and 
Andrew Maloney visiting 
in 1988 and 1995. 

Above:  The marriage record of George (Dick) and 
Dorothy (Snowy) 

Right: Their headstone in Maclean Cemetery 

Below: The extended family of Snowy’s mother Annie 
Pringle at Snowy’s funeral in 2007.  

(Far left:  Robert Pringle and centre, with red hair, 
Deslea Pringle and far right Ian Pringle, the children of 
Thomas Pringle Annie’s brother. And second from right: 
Warren Sutherland the son of Edna Pringle, Annie’s 
sister & Alec Sutherland they are all Snowy’s first 
cousins.  
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5. HORACE (HORRIE) EDWARD BRADFIELD 
9 June 1927 – 17 April 1998 

The 5th child of Patrick Bradfield and Annie Pringle 

Rather than repeating the same information about the school days and a kids life in 
Tullymorgan most of what Horace’s younger days were like is covered in the stories of Red, 
Robbie and Snowy. He seemed good at sport and in addition to that played tennis with 
some skill.  

During WWII, and keep in mind he was only 12 in 1939 when the war started, he in the 
latter years of the war 1944/45 drove a truck for a transport company delivering goods but 
mostly wood into Maclean. 

A few years after he finished school Horace sat an examination to get a job at White Bay 
Power Station in Sydney. I assume it was a sought after job because they chose only the 
best from a state wide examination procedure. In the newspaper article it mentions that he 
achieved an A1 pass. 

Horace married Alma Eggins very soon after he took up his job in Sydney and they were 
married in Drummoyne on June 12th 1948. Since the Eggins family lived near Maclean I can 
assume the romance began before Horace got the job in Sydney and had to take up the 
offer quite quickly which necessitated a wedding in Sydney if they were to live together.  

Sometime in the 1950’s Horace returned to Maclean to run and manage the cane farm 
owned by Alma’s parents. That farm was located near the Serpentine Channel on 
Chatsworth Island just north of Maclean.  When Alma’s father died in the early 1980’s 
there was an expectation that Horace and Alma would inherit the farm however that did 
not turn out to be the case and it was left to Alma’s brother. Horace purchased another 
farm not far away from the Eggins property and continued cane farming.  
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Horace Bradfield and Alma Eggins Wedding June 12th 1948 
?,?, Beryl Bradfield, Horace, Alma, Tom Eggins, Rita Bradfield 
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Horace was cremated and his ashes are interned at the Lismore Memorial Gardens Cemetery.   
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6. STEWART ROY BRADFIELD 
7 September 1929 – 28 December 1929 
The 6th child of Patrick Bradfield and Annie Pringle 

 

The information in the Grafton Daily Examiner newspaper article dated Monday 30th 
December 1930 is the only information I have about Stewart who lived for only 4 months.  

The sympathy cards below were just a few of the many that were sent to Pat and Annie 
after Stewart died.  

(Note: The Stewart Thomas Bradfield listed on the grave headstone of Patrick and Annie 
Bradfield is NOT this Stewart but rather a son of Horace and Alma and is Pat and Annie’s 
grandson who died in 1951.) 
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Where the Bradfield families lived in the Tullymorgan region  

Rita married and lived in Lawrence 
(Richmond St) 

Pat & Annie’s farm at Tullymorgan 
(Ashby-Tullymorgan Rd) 

Snowy married and lived at Tullymorgan 
(Cavanaughs Rd) 

Robbie married & lived in Maclean 
(John St)  

Ned married & lived in Maclean 
(And also Grafton for some time) 

 

Horace married and lived at Chatsworth Island 
Red lived at Tullymorgan 

         (Cavanaughs Rd) 

After Red died in 1994 the Tullymorgan farm was sold by 
the sons of Ned who had inherited the property 
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7. BERYL JOYCE BRADFIELD 
10 December 1930 – 14 July 2023 

The 7th child of Patrick Bradfield and Annie Pringle 

 

 and her younger sister Rita were the best proper athletes in the family, none of this egg 
and spon stuff for them, they won real races and both represented the region in school 
athletics. Beryl was a Bradfield in name and in conscience her values like her older sister Ivy 
were the values of their father Patrick.   

Beryl was born as The Depression cast a shadow over the land and like many her younger 
years were a time of making do, but being on a farm and having enterprising and caring 
parents they were better off than many. Beryl remembered early winter morning going out 
and chasing a cow that had been lying down to stand bare footed in the warmed grass 
where the cow had lain. 

The Tullymorgan School was across the paddocks 
but before breakfast there were cows to milk and 
after school it was milking time again but after 
dinner each night their dad insisted they do their 
homework and he helped and added the times 
tables to their homework task.  

The Tullymorgan home has a tennis court and it 
becomes a centre for competitive competitions 
between clubs from Lawrence, Palmers Island, 
Ulmarra and Tullymorgan. Red and Horace are the 
best family players and compete for the 
Tullymorgan team as they get older. Mum, Annie 
provides refreshments and the front verandah 
becomes the place for local gossip, a smoke and a 
drink after the games. Patrick often promotes ideas 
for the development and improvement of 
Tullymorgan; phones in the 1920’s, new crops and 
pastures, better roads, Empire Day activities and 
P&C school programs. One of the players, Sandy 
Clarke, brings a mouth organ (harmonica) and often 
song and dancing is part of the summer evening 
entertainment.  Beryl with her mother, Annie, at 

Tullymorgan 1948 or 1949 
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By the time Beryl turns 10 in 1940 she has two 
younger siblings Ned and Rita but her two older 
sisters Gladys and Ivy have left home. There are 
still 8 of them living in their 4 bedroom home. 
WWII has started and Red has enlisted and 
Robbie is about to do so, both lying about their 
date of birth.  For Beryl it is still all about school 
and the farm she is not sure what is going on but 
Red does look smart when he comes home in his 
army uniform.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In 1943 Pat takes Beryl with him to Gloucester to 
attend his sister Amy’s funeral. They take the train 
from Grafton. They did not own a car so getting to 
Grafton was a task, usually done by catching a cream 
truck. You could go via Maclean and get a bus but it 
was a multi-hour trip. 

1950 bought chaos to her life Beryl was 2 years into 
her nursing course when her mother died. Chaos 
because her mother was 17 years younger than father 
and was just 57 years old.  

Above: Beryl wins a race in 1945 

Left: Beryl is the District Athletic 
Champion 

Below: Tullymorgan News 

R. Pringle is Beryl’s grandfather he died 
later in1948 

The Doris Cavanaugh is NOT Snowy. She 
is mentioned later in the article returning 
home with Beryl from Inverell. Beryl’s 
brother Horace is mentioned with his AI 
pass for a job in Sydney. 
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Beryl was the first in her family to get an Intermediate Certificate and she had a natural 
aptitude to caring and nursing. Her first job was working, like Snowy, at the Maclean 
Hospital where an older nurse (a Sister was the term used then) saw Beryl’s skills and 
suggested she go to Sydney and become a fully fledged nurse. Unlike Snowy, Beryl didn’t 
board at the hospital she came home every night. Times were changing and she got a lift 
on the back of a motorcycle.  

In 1948 there is great optimism, World War II rationing is ending and opportunities are 
opening up in all walks of life and Beryl made the big decision to go to Sydney. She started 
her course in 1949 and shared a room with a rather “wild” girl, Margaret, at the Canterbury 
Hospital residence who Beryl claims dragged her along to parties that they snuck out to 
attend on quite a few evenings. They were nearly caught on several occasions trying to 
sneak back into their room.    
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When her mother died in December 1950 Beryl stayed on at home in Tullymorgan until 
June 1951 and returned to complete her Nursing course but fate intervened. Her favourite 
place to go shopping was at Campsie, the closest shopping centre to the Canterbury 
Hospital, and Mervyn Lyons lived just near there in South Parade. They met and rest is 
history so to speak. They were married in July 1952 
and Kaye was born in December. Study was no 
longer an option for a married female. But fate is a 
strange beast and Mervyn’s father is a 
physiotherapist with a clinic built into his house, 
Beryl becomes his assistant “nurse’ and for many 
years that is her career. During these years her sons 
Bruce and Peter are born in 1954 and 1956. 
Mervyn’s mother dies and Beryl becomes the chief 
carer (de facto mother) for his much younger sisters 
Valerie and Ann. 

Beryl’s home became the magnet for her nephews 
and nieces who visited Sydney she was a great host 
and you were made so welcome you came back 
time and time again, you bought your children and 
as the years went by they visited. Beryl was always 
interested in what you were doing and how your 
family was and she had the family gossip/news 
about what was happening in the extended family.   

Beryl had 25 Bradfield nephews and nieces and of 
the 23 who survived to adulthood many would visit 
her and those who didn’t often phoned her and 
kept in irregular contact, her phone book was a 
treasure trove of old numbers and addresses that 
depicted their changing locations over the years.  
For years she kept in weekly contact with my 
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brother John and other cousins have 
mentioned a similar relationship. 
Interestingly Beryl also made the 
same kind of contact with her 
aunties, uncles and cousins, visiting 
many and entertaining them when 
she setup home in Sydney. Many of 
the incidental tales in this book 
came from Beryl. She had met many 
who are mentioned in Part 1 of this 
book; Daphne Carter & Daphne 
Allen, Percy, Jack, Arch, Alex, Nettie, 
Nean.....  

Two relatives played a greater role 
than others in Beryl’s life; Stephen 
Want, Rita’s son moved to Sydney 
and lived with Beryl for some time. 
He moved out, got married and had 
kids and those kids called in and 
helped Beryl as the years went by. 
Stephen was always there if Beryl 
needed any help, especially repairs 
around the house and yard. Ivy’s 
grand-daughter, Lisa Wotherspoon 
(Maloney) took Beryl to 

appointments, called in and helped out with meals and shopping and her kids in turn, that 
is, her great grand nieces and nephews visited and treated Beryl as a close “aunty”. 

While Tullymorgan is the 
formative/spiritual home of the 
Bradfield clan who are descended 
from Patrick Bradfield and Annie 
Pringle, strangely Beryl’s place in 
Sydney became the family information 
centre. The family cousins in the next 
generation all knew Beryl and knew 
she was interested in knowing what 
we were doing.  

In the 1970’s Beryl and Mervyn 
separated and Beryl moved to 
Punchbowl and restarted her career in 
hospital work in rehabilitation at The 
Royal Prince Alfred Hospital.  

If 1950 bought shock and despair then 
2013 must have been even more 
difficult, her daughter Kaye, her 
daughter who lived with her, who was 
her best friend and her support in the 
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world died of lung cancer. All the plans of who would look after Peter, Beryl’s youngest 
son, because he had special needs, were gone. Beryl was 82 but she soldiered on and she 
and Peter for the next 10 years kept home and soul together in Sydney. Stephen and Lisa 
and their families mentioned earlier were there to help and grand daughter Jessica was 
ever present.  

Her son Bruce gave Beryl 8 grandchildren and 5 great grandchildren.  

At 92 Beryl was the last of her generation the last of all of the 28 Bradfield siblings and 
cousins and a similar number on the Pringle side as well.  

Beryl loved a good discussion and I equally liked her winning argument technique. After 
expressing her view before I could answer she would say ‘If you don’t agree you’re a damn 
fool”. It seemed like I had a choice to agree or prove I was a fool. Sometimes I chose the 
latter but it always ended with a laugh and best of all a hug.     

Photos Previous Page: 

Rita (bridesmaid) Mervyn Lyons & Beryl (1952) 

Beryl with Bruce, Peter & Kaye (1956) 

This page:  

Top Right Beryl (1966) 

Above: Beryl (2013) 

Right: Beryl (June 2023) 

Below: Kaye, Beryl & Peter 
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Beryl at work:  In 1972 Beryl is working as a 
physiotherapists aid at The Royal Prince Alfred Hospital 
(RPA) at Camperdown, Sydney. (Photo from RPA 
magazine 1972) 

 

Beryl’s children 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Below: 
Kaye, 
Mervyn, 
Bruce & 
Beryl  1954 

 

 

  

 

 

 Above: Kaye                                      
 Below: Kaye & Reeanna Maloney in 
 Brisbane 1985  
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Beryl’s son Bruce and her 8 grandchildren: Jessica Emma, Nathan, Bowen, Ethan, Aston, Hudson & Samara 
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Above: Bruce Lyons & 
his Police Career 

Left: Beryl & her sister 
Ivy 

Right Top: Beryl & her 
sister Snowy 

Right Bottom: Beryl, 
Red & Snowy visit their 
half sister Gladys in 
1982 



198 
 

Beryl Joyce Bradfield, b. 10 Dec 1930 in Tullymorgan (daughter of Patrick Bradfield and 
Annie Ernestine Pringle). D. 14 Jul 2023 in Byron Bay 
She married Mervyn Edward John Joseph Lyons, married Jul 1952, b. 1931 (son of Eric 
Basil Bega Lyons and Dorothy Pearl Lindsay). 
I. Kaye Lynette Lyons, b. 17 Dec 1952 in Sydney, d. 5 Oct 2013 in Sydney. 
II. Bruce Edward Lyons, b. 17 Aug 1954 in Sydney. 
 He married (1) Penny Dowzer. 
 He married (2) Tracey Morris. 
  A. Jessica Ann Lyons, (daughter of Bruce Lyons & Penny Dowzer) b. 1 Oct 1986. 
   She married Andrew Laydon, married 28 May 2023 in Sydney. 
  B.  Nathan Edward Lyons, (son of Bruce Lyons & Penny Dowzer) b. 6 Oct 1988. 
   He married Kate Theresa Wilcox, married 21 Jan 2012. 
    1. Halle Rose Lyons, b. 26 Jun 2020. 
     2. Hugh Gavin Lyons, b. 1 Mar 2023. 
 
  C. Emma Jayne Lyons, (daughter of Bruce Lyons & Penny Dowzer) b. 6 Oct1988 
   She married Allan Matthew. 
    1. Lushington Layne Matthew, b. 2013. 
     2. Lakerson Layne Matthew, b. 2015. 
     3. Lexington Layne Matthew, b. 2017. 
 
 D. Bowen Jake Lyons, (son of Bruce Lyons and Tracey Morris) b. 8 Aug 2003. 
 E. Ethan Jack Lyons, (son of Bruce Lyons and Tracey Morris) b. 6 Jan 2006  
 F. Aston Lee Lyons, (son of Bruce Lyons and Tracey Morris) b. 10 Dec 2008. 
 G. Hudson Lee Lyons, (son of Bruce Lyons and Tracey Morris) b. 5 July 2011  
 H. Samara Lee Lyons, (daughter of Bruce Lyons and Tracey Morris) b. 9 May  
III. Peter John Lyons, b. 17 Jan 1956 in Sydney. 

 

Bruce Lyons & Tracey Morris’s family 

L to R:  Aston, Tracey, Samara, Bowen, 
 Bruce, Hudson & Ethan.  
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Beryl’s Grand & Great Grandchildren 

The families of Bruce Lyons and Penny Dowzer 

  

Bruce Lyons Penny Dowzer 

Jessica Lyons & Andrew Laydon 

Emma Lyons, Lushington Matthew (2013), 
Bruce Lyons, Lexington Matthew (2017), 
Lakerson Mathew (2015) & Allan Mathew 

Kate Wicox & Nathan Lyons with their 
son Hugh Lyons (2023) They also have a 
daughter Halle Lyons (2020)  
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8. NEVILLE (NED) COLIN BRADFIELD 
6 September 1933 – 13 October 1993 

The 8th child of Patrick Bradfield and Annie Pringle 

Ned was the wild one in the family, wild in the rodeo sense he had a natural talent to ride bulls and 
bucking horses. In the house at Tullymorgan there were blankets made from the ribbons Ned had 
won at rodeo competitions.  

After his mother, Annie, died in 1950 when Ned was just 17 there was only his father Pat, Red, 
Ned’s older brother and his sisters Snowy and Rita living in the family home. Snowy married in 1952 
and moved just up the hill to the Cavanough farm.  Pat had turned 80 in November 1950 so the day 
to day running of the farm was in the hands of Red and Ned. As the years went by Ned preferred 
the rough and tumble of the Rodeo circuit where he was a successful contestant and Red didn’t 
have the drive and innovative enthusiasm that Pat bought to the Tullymorgan farm.  

After Pat died in 1960 the farm tended to be 
neglected. Ned was away and had moved into 
Maclean with Del. They lived at 14 Morven St 
in a house owned by Del’s mother, just around 
the corner from Robbie.  

 Red tended to live a few kilometres away with 
Iris Sutherland. The house became rundown 
and termites finished it off, the walls fell in 
and the  stumps rotted away. When Ned died 
the farm belonged to Red and on his death in 
1993 Ned’s sons inherited the farm that they 
later sold. 

Ned married Delma (Del) Hart who already 
had a daughter, Denise, who at one stage 
went to live with Ned’s sister Beryl for a year. 
Denise married Gary Briscoe. 

Del was originally Delma Woods before she 
married Stan Hart.   

Ned and Del had 3 sons Wayne, Warren and 
Darryl. Both Warren and Wayne committed 
suicide.  

Ned, like his brother Robbie, was a gun cane 
cutter and from the age of 16 he cut cane for 
some 27 years until he was 42 in 1975. He had 
an accident, I think at a rodeo when he was 
young that caused substantial hearing loss and 
he disliked wearing hearing aids.  

In the 1950’s Ned bought a Morris Minor with a dicky type seat. I think it was a 2 door model. Rita 
drove the car around Tullymorgan well before she was eligible to get a licence.  

Ned had a car accident sometime in the 1960’s when he was 
driving on the road from Maclean to Tullymorgan. His family 
were all in the car and it rolled down a slope on the 
windy/hilly section of the road and Ned and Del were trapped, 
the kids who were only 7 and 8 or so had to go for help up 
over the hill to the nearest farmhouse.   
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In the late 1960’s After Del died in 1976 Ned 
moved to the Tullymorgan farm house but found 
himself staying more often in Grafton with Norma 
Williams. That came to an end when Ned became 
ill in 1992 and he moved to Snowy’s place and was 
cared for by her and her daughter Dianne.  

 

 

 

  
Above:  
Ivy (Ned’s sister), Ned & his nephew Neville Maloney (1958) 

Left: Ned on a horse photo that is in the Lawrence Tavern 

Below left: Wayne, Warren & Darryl and Ned’s wife Del. 

Below: Ned and his sisters Ivy & Beryl (1993) 
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A newspaper story about 
Ned’s buckjumping exploits 
Note the error about Ned 
being from Coffs Harbour. 

Below: Delma (Del) Woods  
She ws also known as Del 
Hart (She had married Stan 
Hart before she married Ned)  

Below Right: House at 14 
Morven St, Maclean (owned 
by Del’s mum) where Ned 
and his family lived. 

Bottom Right: Sitting is 
Denise a daughter of Del’s  & 
2 of Ned and Del’s sons 
Wayne and Darryl 
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Above:  A letter written in 1970 by Del to Ned’s sister Ivy. (Ivy had just had a hysterectomy operation). 
 

Below: On the following 4 pages is the eulogy given by Kevin Shortt at Ned Bradfield’s Funeral in 1993.  
It covers some of the Bradfield family myths about the Harbour Bridge and Patrick being a surveyor but 
if you take your time a read the whole thing it tells story about who Ned was and the admiration be 
received for his buckjumping exploits.  
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Wayne Bradfield  21st February 1957 – 6th March 2005 

Ned and Del’s oldest son, Wayne married Shirley Hollis, their 
children and grandchildren are mentioned in the funeral notice 
below of Shirley who died in 2022. 

Both of Ned’s son’s Wayne and Warren lived in Grafton
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Warren Bradfield  30th August 1960 – 20th Aug 1989 

Warren was the second child of Ned and Del, his daughter Sonnie has given me some of the few 
photos of Warren that remain today.  

Warren’s daughter, Sonnie, lives in 
Grafton and has three children. She 
works for Grafton Contract 
Cleaning.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Photos below: Warren and Sandra’s wedding 1976. 
    Below and Bottom Right: Warren with his daughter Sonnie 1989 

  

Below Left: Sonnie (Warren’s daughter) & her husband William Brown and their children 
Hazel, Harlo & Henri  
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Darryl Bradfield 21st May 1961 – 

The third child of Ned and Del, Darryl lives in Yamba and in recent years has managed the caravan 
park in Iluka and a motel in Yamba. He has recently semi retired. Darryl has maintained a link with 
many of his cousins, especially the ones who still live in the Clarence Region, and their extended 
families he has been a valuable source of information and leads for me as I put this book together.  
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9. RITA ANN BRADFIELD 
23 January 1937 – 27 June 2014 

The 9th child of Patrick Bradfield and Annie Pringle 

Rita was the baby of the family born 28 years after her mother had her first child Gladys in 
1909. We don’t know Gladys’s father. Patrick Bradfield was the father of Rita and her 8 full 
brothers and sisters. Rita was 17 years younger than her sister Ivy and just 13 when her 
mother died in 1950. 

Rita and George (Red) were the redheads in the 
family; the red hair gene is expressed in 
generations down the line – have a look at the 
photos of the grand and great grand kids in the 
Bradfield/Pringle families. 

Rita was the athlete in the family of sport skilled 
kids. She was a good runner and played tennis with 
more skill than most. Her running career was 
probably cut short by a cold/sore throat. (See the 
newspaper stories).  

Lawrence, just a few miles down the road 
from Tullymorgan, became the home for 
Rita after she married Cecil Want in 1960, 
just months before her father died.  

 

 

From 1952 (when Snowy married and moved out) 
Rita was the domestic manager of the Tullymorgan 
home. Her dad and Red were at home and Ned 
came and went as his cane work, rodeos and his 
family kept him busy, but he still helped run the 
farm. Over these years the dairy farm turned into a 
beef farm and the corn crops were no longer grown. 
Apart from the farm itself Pat leased from Crown 
Lands an extensive area west of Tullymorgan where 
many of the beef cattle roamed.  

Rita met Cecil through her tennis playing. They both 
played in local tennis completions and the Wants 
had a court near their house in Lawrence.  

Cecil worked at the saw mill in Lawrence and also 
ran an “SP bookie” business (Starting Price (SP) 
Bookies were prevalent in Australia from the 1930s 
until the state operated TABs were setup and took 
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over by the 1990’s. The business was illegal but with the cooperation or the turning of a 
blind eye by the local police SP bookmakers were operating in every town and village, 
usually from a local pub where the SP bookie took the bets. The only way to place a legal 
bet at the time was to go to a racetrack and bet with registered bookmakers who varied 
their payout odds depending on a horse’s pervious performance and how much was being 
bet. The local illegal bookies usually based their payout on an average of the legal 
bookmaker’s starting price odds).    

So Cecil is running an illegal business often from his kitchen at home as well as the hotel 
bars in Maclean and Lawrence. Sometimes Rita handled the phone calls and record keeping 
at home, but it was very much Cecil’s business. Anyway from time to time the police had to 
be been seen to be doing their job and they raided the business and charged the bookie 
because it was obvious what was going on. Well Rita was at home and she got charged. The 
police, the prosecutor and probably the judge knew it was not Rita who ran the SP Bookie 
operation and they asked her a few times, was she really the one running the illegal betting 
business and she said yes and was charged.  A fine no doubt. She didn’t go to gaol.    

 

Rita the athlete, 1947 to 1952 seems to have been her 
“heyday” she made to the state school (PSAAA) sports 
finals in Sydney, but during this time she was also in and 
out of hospital with infections (tonsillitis) and in 1950 her 
died. Her sporting career turned to tennis. 

Her prowess as a sportswoman got off to a rocky start 
when as a 6 year old she fell from horse. 
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In 1948 Rita attended her brother Horace’s wedding in 
Sydney along with her sister Dorothy (Snowy).  

 

In the years after her mother, Annie, died in Dec 1950 
Rita and her father travelled to a wedding in 
Beaudesert and holidayed at Brooms Head 

 

 

 

 

 

In the wedding photo above: 

L to R: Joy Cavanough (daughter of Snowy) 
Kaye Lyons (daughter of Beryl) Horace (Rita’s 
brother) Peter Bradfield (Horace’s son) and 
Rita 

Rita’s wedding photo 1960: Cecil want and 
Rita in front. Ned Bradfield (Rita’s brother) & 
Pam Cavanough (Snowy’s niece). 

 

Rita trained and qualified as a nurse but after having kids and raising her family she took to 
her farming roots and often with her sister Snowy and Red’s partner Iris Sutherland they 
picked crops mainly digging potatoes. She later became a cleaner at the Lawrence School.  

A story told by many cousins is that Rita especially in her later years enjoyed a drop of wine 
and as she came to enjoy it earlier and earlier in the day she deployed a deceptive 
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appearance of drinking it from a tea cup while sitting on her verandah and watching the 
world go by. Those who did not know assumed she really enjoyed a good cuppa tea.    

Cecil and Rita with their sons Neville and Stephen. 1963/64 

Below Rita and Cecil’s 3 children Neville, Stephen & Beverley. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In an interesting twist of fate Rita and Cecil’s son Neville bought the family home in Lawrence from 
the people who had purchased it after Rita died in 2014.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The family home of Rita and Cecil Want in Richmond St, 
Lawrence NSW 

Since Neville repurchased the house in 2021he has been 
renovating and modernizing it. Photo above includes Neville 
and a sign about his & his son, John’s business Wants 
Constructions.    
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The Descendants of Rita Bradfield 

Rita Ann Bradfield, b. 23 Jan 1937 in Tullymorgan (daughter of Patrick Bradfield and Annie 
Ernestine Pringle), d. 27 Jun 2014 in Grafton. 

She married Cecil Edward Want, b. 12 Feb 1935, d. 8 May 2007 in Maclean. 

I. Stephen Edward Want, b. 16 Apr 1961 in Lawrence NSW. 

  He married Karen Nicole Chee, b. 1967. 

 A. Matthew Edward Want, b. 16 Jul 1991 in Sydney. 

  His partner Jess Te. 

 B. Nicholas Alan Want, b. 24 Oct 1993 in Sydney. 

  His partner Molly Tierney. 

II. Neville John Want, b. 24 May 1962 in Lawrence NSW. 

  He married Helen Eileen Sutherland, b. 1963. (div) 

 A. Patricia Ann Want, b. 23 Sep 1983. 

  She married Ross Johnson, b. 1980. 

  1. Jaida Johnston, b. 25 Jan 2019. 

 B. John Dennis Want, b. 17 Feb 1986 in Lawrence NSW. 

  He married Amiee Harrison, b. 15 May 1986. 

  1. Cody Want, b. 7 Mar 2017. 

 C. Rebecca Jane Want, b. 9 Sep 1987. 

  She married Stuart Allan. 

  1. Louis Allan, b. 4 Dec 2010. 

  2. Jessie Want, b. 20 Jul 2012. 

  3. Katie Want, b. 11 Jan 2015. 

  4. Bobby Buster Allan, b. 2 Jul 2019. 

 D. Shane Trevor Want, b. 14 Jul 1991 in Lawrence NSW. 

  He married Michelle Firth, b. 13 May 1993. 

  1. Cooper John Want, b. 2014. 

  2. Oliver James Want, b. 21 Jun 2015. 

  3. Alexis (Lexi) Kae Want, b. 16 Nov 2017. 

III. Beverley Want, b. 21 Jan 1966 in Lawrence NSW. 

 She married (1) Andrew James Harrison, b. 1962. 

 She married (2) Rodney Charles Munro. 

 A. Tegan Annie Harrison,  

  (daughter of Andrew James Harrison and Beverley Want) b. 12 Feb 1989 in  
  Lawrence NSW. 

  She married Ben Hull 2023
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Stephen Want - 1961 

The eldest child of Rita Bradfield and Cecil Want 

Stephen grew up like his siblings in Lawrence but the bright lights and sporting potential in 
Sydney lead him far from home. Following in his mother’s footsteps Stephen put his 
running ability to the test as a winger in Rugby League and played in the   A-Grade team 
when the Bulldogs Club was in its winning premierships heyday of the 1980’s. He played 
first grade at various stages from 1981 to 1985 for The Canterbury Bulldogs and Western 
Sydney. Canterbury player number 532 with 6 first grade tries to his name, today Stephen 
owns and manages Sports Factory a Sports Wear, School Uniforms & Bowls Apparel 
business in Sydney. His two sons Matt and Nick have grown up city kids and the farmlands 
of Tullymorgan are a long way in kilometres and culture from the life of Stephens Mum and 
his grandfather. 

 

Above Stephen Want in 1981 and right above with his wife Karen Chee in 2023 
Below: Molly Tierney partner of on the far right Nicholas Want. In the centre is Matthew Want and 
his partner Jess Te. (Photo taken at the funeral of Beryl Lyons (Bradfield) in July 2023 at Lismore 
NSW).
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Neville Want – 1962 
The second child of Rita Bradfield and Cecil Want  

As mentioned earlier in Neville repurchased the family home in Lawrence, he has 
maintained an active interest in the Clarence region and has worked in the area in building, 
construction and landscaping business. BUT he has also dabbled in horse racing and his 
hobby has resulted in some winners. Neville has four children Patricia, John, Rebecca and 
Shane. He has 9 grand-children.  

  

Neville Want, his sister Beverley & 
his son John feature as well in the 
horse racing stakes.   
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Neville Want – Children and Grandchildren 

 

  

Above: Patricia, John (at the back), Shane & Rebecca 
Want (Neville Want’s  4 children) 1993.  

Above Right:  Patricia (left) Neville & Rebecca 

Right: John and Patricia 

 

Below (The Grandchildren) 

Jaida (2019, Lexi (2017), Cody (2017), Oliver (2015), 
Cooper (2014), Jessie (2012) & Louis (2010) 

Inset below: Katie (2015) & Buster (2019) 

 



220 
 

Beverley Want – 1966 
(Edited form an article by Max Godbee, July 11th 2006 Daily Examiner Grafton)  

BEVERLY Want no longer rides in races but she well remembers her fine career a few years 
back, particularly her association with the champion local galloper, the well-named 
Flashing Red. 

Beverly was one of the few women jockeys of the time and was just 17 when she became the 
first lady jockey to win a feature event during the annual July Racing Carnival in Grafton, 
with victory in the 1983 South Grafton Cup (1600m). 

Beverly took Flashing Red to the front at the 1200 metres, led into the straight and beat 
Millers Forrest (John Hutchings) by four and a half lengths, with the Stuart Craig-ridden 
Vibes finishing third in the full field of 16 runners. 

That year Beverly was also the first woman 
jockey to win a feature race at the annual 
Inverell carnival, teaming with Flashing 
Red to capture the 1400m Inverell Cup. 

The duo made it two Inverell cups in a row 
winning again 12 months later. 

Beverly was apprenticed to Lawrence 
trainer Doug Payne who owned Flashing 
Red in partnership with his wife Mel, 
daughter Betty Parkes and her husband 
Erin Parkes. 

In a comparatively short but impressive 
career, Beverly Want rode her share of 
winners on a variety of tracks on the 
Northern Rivers and Tablelands as well as 
being successful at Newcastle, Wyong and 
Scone. 

One of her major achievements was 
winning the Northern Rivers Racing 
Association Apprentices' Premiership with 
33 winners. 

Her biggest wins, however, were that 1983 
victory on Flashing Red in the South Grafton Cup and the Newcastle Labour Day Cup at 
Broadmeadow track on the same galloper. 

As in all her rides on Flashing Red she talked to and encouraged the chestnut entire 
throughout each race and the horse loved it, responding when she called on him to up the 
pace or fight back against any challenging horse. 

Rider and horse were crowd favourites and received great support from the gallery each 
time they returned to scale after any of their wins. 

Beverly Ann Want was born at Maclean in 1966, the daughter of Cecil and Rita (nee 
Bradfield) Want. 

She has two brothers, Stephen and Neville who while living on the Lower Clarence were 
each involved in cricket, running and rugby league. 

Stephen continued in this vein after moving to Sydney mainly going there for cricket but 
was soon proving himself in the Sydney rugby league scene as a speedy and exciting winger 
in first grade with successful Canterbury-Bankstown club, these days known as the 
Canterbury Bulldogs, and later playing for Western Suburbs. 

Neville continued his cricket and football in the Lower Clarence and also helped trainers 
with trackwork and for a time was a trainer himself. 

Their parents still live in the Lawrence area and in days gone by both were good at any sport 
they played, such as tennis, and were involved in athletics. 
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They also combined to be successful starting price bookmakers (generally called SP 
bookmakers) operating from the Lawrence Tavern in the days before TAB outlets were 
established, when virtually every hotel in Australia featured an SP operator or operators, as 
a much wanted service to their customers. 

Beverly attended Lawrence Public School, then a year at Grafton High, before a final two 
years at Maclean High. 

Her main sports were softball, running and touch football and hockey and she captained the 
high school's junior hockey team in inter-school competition. 

She continued on with touch football in Grafton and Yamba competitions after she left 
school and was just 15 when she became an indentured apprentice to Lawrence trainer 
Doug Payne. 

Beverly also gained her first winner riding Flashing 
Red to take out the 1982 PB Judd Farewell Handicap 
(1600m) at the South Grafton Jockey Club meeting, 
the final event of that year's July Racing Carnival. 

Other important wins for Flashing Red with Beverly 
Want in the saddle were the two Inverell Cups, The 
Labour Day Cup (1400m) at Newcastle, The Christmas 
Cup at Grafton as well as the Casino, Ballina and 
Lismore cups. 

Beverly gained her share of wins but was still quite 
young when she retired from race riding. 

She was having a baby to then partner Andrew 
Harrison and they named their young daughter Tegan. 

The partnership has since broken up, although the 
parents remain good friends. 

Beverly and partner Rodney Munro currently live with 
Tegan in Lawrence. 

After giving up the racing game Beverly became a bar attendant, learning the trade in 
serving at the Lawrence Tavern, where she was employed for 17 years. 

She describes herself now as on holiday although she does occasional casual bar work for 
clubs around Grafton. 

Fondly she remembers her days in racing, loving the atmosphere and the roar of the crowds 
and her friendship with the Payne family. 

She retains her great love of horses, all breeds but particularly the thoroughbreds. 

"I rode some great horses and I am lucky and grateful that Doug Payne apprenticed me and 
believed in me," Beverly said. 

"He gave me good advice and good horses to ride. How many people, particularly a teenage 
girl, get to ride a much admired local hero and true champion such as Flashing Red or a 
horse such as Sped?" 

Tegan Harrison – 1989 

The daughter of Beverley Want, Tegan follows in her 
mother’s footsteps.  

(The story below comes from a website and is the brief about a 
podcast with Tegan by JohnTapp.racing – Episode 190) 

This is a light hearted chat with a vivacious young lady who has 
strong support from owners and trainers in NSW and Queensland. 
Tegan has been out of action for almost five months following the 
worst fall of her ten year career.  
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Tegan pays special tribute to her jockey/mother who rode many winners on the NSW Northern Riv ers 
under the name of Bev Want. She thinks it’s pretty special that she was going around in races before 
her Mum realised she was in the early stages of pregnancy.  

Tegan acknowledges the efforts of her father Andrew, a versatile jack of all trades who’s a lways first 
there to help his daughter out when things need fixing.  

The jockey reflects on her childhood involvement with Grafton Pony Club, and a transition to the re 
educating of retired racehorses. She admits she didn’t like the thoroughbreds at first.   

Tegan looks back on her apprenticeship to Bruce Hill on the Gold Coast, and her disastrous first race 
ride - one she’d rather forget.  

She recalls her early education at Julia Creek in the Queensland outback, a special winning ride at 
Goondiwindi and her very first city 
success.   

Tegan still can’t believe that Tony 
Gollan gave her the prized ride on 
Temple Of Boom in a Stradbroke 
and a Doomben $10,000 - she 
finished a close second in both 
races.  

She profiles some of the horses 
who’ve helped her profile in the last 
few years.  

Tegan talks of life on the Gold 
Coast with her partner Ben Hull, 
former successful jockey and 
currently making a name for himself 
as a trainer. She confirms that Ben 
gave her a sparkling engagement 
ring just recently. 
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This completes the families of Patrick Bradfield and Annie Pringle, Rita was their youngest 
child, she was born in 1937 and she died in 2014, her sister, Beryl, died while I was working 
on this book, she died on July 14th 2023 and she was the last of her generation, that last of 
her 32 cousins.  

 The letter below is a link between Rita’s generation and the one before. It is a letter from 
Patrick Bradfield’s sister Nettie to Rita in December 1960 just after her father, Pat, died. 
Nettie mentions Beryl and she refers to Evelyn – Pat’s sister (Rita’s aunty) – who died in 
July 1960.
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The 25 Grandchildren of Patrick Bradfield and Annie Ernestine Pringle 
             
A. Ivy Morelle Bradfield & Jack Martin Maloney           36 great grandchildren   
 1. Bruce Stewart Maloney (Julie Bourke)    1942 -   3 
 2. John Patrick Maloney      1950 - 2021  - 
 3. Neville Barry Maloney (Barbara Ford)   1953 -    3  
      
B. George (Red) Bradfield,  
 (No children) 
 
C. Robert (Robbie) Bradfield & Mavis Beel  
 1. Warren John Bradfield    1947 - 1948  - 
 2. Graham Patrick Bradfield (Helen James)   1949 -   2 
 3. Cheryl Bradfield (Barry Williams)   1951 -   - 
 4. Allen Robert Bradfield (Judy Eggins)   1954 - 1993  1 
 5. Collin Bradfield     1964 -   - 
 
D. Dorothy (Snowy) May Bradfield & George Richard (Dick)Cavanough  
 1. Joy Ann Cavanough (Alvin Lloyd)   1952 -   3 
 2. Dianne Hannah Cavanough (Colin Sullivan)   1956 -   - 
 3. Iris Gail Cavanough     1959 - 2016  -  
 4. Richard (Ricky) Cavanough    1961 -    - 
 
E. Horace Edward Bradfield & Alma Eggins  
 1. Stewart Thomas Bradfield    1951 - 1951   - 
 2. Lesley Bradfield (Peter O'Sullivan)   1952 -   - 
 3. Peter Bradfield. (1) Jo Reader    1955 -   2 
         (2) Jodie McKenzie-Smith.     1 
 4. Helen Joyce Bradfield (Warwick Macleod )  1957 -   2 
 
F. Stewart Roy Bradfield 
 (No children) 
 
G. Beryl Joyce Bradfield & Mervyn Lyons  
 1. Kaye Lynette Lyons      1952 - 2013  -  
 2. Bruce Edward Lyons (1) Penny Dowzer    1954 -   3 
                 (2) Tracey Morris     5 
 3. Peter John Lyons     1956 -   - 
 
H. Neville Colin Bradfield & Del Hart (Woods)  
  1. Wayne Neville Bradfield (Shirley Hollis)  1957 - 2005  2  
 2.   Warren Bradley Bradfield (Sandra Maclay)   1960 - 1989  1 
 3.   Darryl James Colin Bradfield (Rhonda Boyle)  1961 -   2 
   
 
I. Rita Ann Bradfield & Cecil Want  
 1. Stephen Edward Want (Karen Chee)    1961 -   2 
 2. Neville John Want (Helen Sutherland)   1962 -   4 
 3. Beverley Want (Andrew Harrison)    1966 -   1 
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Who’s Who  

Bradfield Family Lists 

The lynchpin of this Bradfield Family History is Joseph Bradfield born in 1802 in 

Norwich, England and transported to Australia in 1818. He died in 1886 in Grafton NSW. 
The story of Joseph and his family and the family of his son Thomas Bratfield 1844 - 1907 
form Part 1 of this book and most of that research and work was done by Enid Tognolini in 
the 1990’s 

Patrick Bradfield 1870 - 1960, Thomas’s son, his family and descendants are detailed in 
Part 2. 

JOSEPH BRADFIELD 1802 – 1886 & Anne Reardon 1810 – 1872 

Matthew Bradfield Joseph Bradfield  Jnr 

Mary Anne Bradfield  Thomas Bratfield  

George Bratfield  Sarah Bradfield  

Sophia Bradfield   

THOMAS BRATFIELD 1844 – 1907 & Bridget Callian 1844 – 1932 

John Henry (Harry) Bradfield  (Unnamed Twins) 

Joseph Bratfield   Amy Christina Bratfield 

Mary (Marie) Ann Bratfield Beatrice May Bradfield 

George Bradfield Archibald William Bratfield 

Patrick Bradfield Evelyn Malvina Bratfield 

Tom Bradfield Horace Burton Bratfield 

Margaret (Madge) Jane Bratfield Vincent Fredrick Clarence Bratfield 

Lillian Bratfield Nettie Vera Pearl Bratfield    

 

PATRICK BRADFIELD 1970 – 1960 & Annie Pringle 1893 – 1950 

Ivy Morelle Bradfield 

George (Red) Vincent Bradfield 

Robert (Robbie)Thomas Bradfield 

Dorothy (Snowy) May Bradfield 

Horace Edward Bradfield 

Stewart Roy Bradfield 

Beryl Joyce Bradfield 

Neville (Ned) Colin Bradfield 

Rita Anne Bradfield 
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Cousins Explained  

First cousins have the same grandparents. 

Second cousins have the same great-grandparents, but not the same grandparents. 

Third cousins have in common two great-great-grandparents and their ancestors. 

Once Removed 

Once removed means there is a difference of one generation. Your mother's first cousin is 
also your first cousin but removed by one generation, that is, once removed.  

Twice removed means that there is a two-generation difference. Your grandmother's first 
cousin would be your first cousin, twice removed because you are separated by two 
generations. (Your grandmother’s first cousin’s grandchild would be your 3rd cousin).  

Some Bradfield family examples (See previous page for names) 

A grandchild child of Horace Bratfield (Paul son of James) and a grandchild Patrick Bradfield 
(Stephen son of Rita) are 2nd cousins (All of the grandchildren of Thomas Bratfield’s children 
are 2nd cousins. That is they all share great great grandparents Thomas and Bridget. Note 
however that some are first cousins and some are brothers and sisters to each other).   
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To do 

Docs from DES 

Darryl 

Jason (Wayne’s son) FB messenger - he has photos 

Beverley info 

Collin info 

Paul Bratfield (Stroud Road) info 

Cheryl ? 

Lesley ? 

 (John Henry  ---- Percy line)  Gail Flanery 
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Rosedale and Lilydale 

The Bratfield Farms at Stroud Road 
Why did the family settle in the Stroud/Dungog/Gloucester region? 
Joseph Bradfield received his Conditional Pardon in 1838 (the main condition being that 
he would never return to England) and by 1850 be decided to take up a either a land 
selection offer or lease of land near Gloucester. He moved his family from Seaham some 
100kms further south. 
In 1858 Joseph’s daughter Sophia married and moved to Clarence Region 
(Grafton/Maclean/Yamba area) and his son George also moved to that area, Ulmarra, at the 
same time. In 1866 Sarah married and also moved to the Clarence Region. In 1869, the 
remainder of the family - Matthew, Joseph Jr., and Joseph and Anne - moved north to 
Grafton. All of them did, except for Thomas. 
Thomas married Bridget Callian (Callaghan) in 1864 and took up a land selection at Stroud 
Road “Rosedale”   
Thomas died in 1907 and the farm became the property of his son Archibald. In 1978 when 
Arch died the son of his brother, Horace, Jim took up an offer in Arch’s Will to purchase the 
farm.  
Horace had had previously purchased “Lillydale” a farm that had a long common boundary 
with “Rosedale”. Horace died in 1965 so when Mark James (Jim) Bratfield purchased 
“Rosedale” the two farms became one under his ownership.  
In the family history the farm name “Naroo” is often referred to and that property was 
owned by another of Thomas’s sons, Tom, and it also had a common boundary with 
“Rosedale”  on the western side. That property was sold and is no longer a part of the family 
holdings.  
The combined farms are today (2023) 
run by Jim’s son Paul and his 
daughter Brieanna and her husband 
Owen. They employ Paul’s nephew 
Rhys (Todd’s son) so it remains a 
family farm. Still a dairy farm and for 
the last 40 years they have also raised 
chickens thousands at a time in large 
open range sheds.  
The main railway line from Sydney 
to Brisbane runs through the farm. 
(See photos)    
The red line is approximate area of 
the farms Rosedale and Lillydale 
today. The village of Stroud Road is 
in the top right of the map. Stroud is 
about 8kms south, Gloucester north 
and Dungog about 20kms west. 
Where the Naroo farm was located 
The chicken sheds 
The current farm houses 
Location of the original farm 
buildings before 1911. (See photo next page). Bratfield road bridge      Railway bridge  
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The original farm buildings where Thomas & Bridget’s 14 children grew up no longer exist. 
Thomas built the current Rosedale house near the property entrance and the house where 
Gloria (Jim Bratfield’s wife) currently lives (2023) was built by Horace Bratfield on 
Lillydale in the 1930/40’s  
Below the Rosedale farmhouse (currently occupied by Brieanna (Paul’s daughter) and her 
family and behind it is also a second dwelling occupied by Jim’s son Paul and his wife 
Karen. (2023) 
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Gloria (Mark James 
(Jim) Bratfield’s 
wife) outside the 
Lillydale farm house 
built by Jim’s father 
Horace.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Reidsdale Road 
bridge crossing the 
Karuah River near the 
entrance to The 
Rosedale and Lillydale 
property was replaced 
with a concrete structure 
and officially opened and 
named the Bratfield 
Bridge in December 
2013. 
First across the bridge 
were:  3 generations of 
the Bratfield family. 
Gloria and Jim 
Bratfield  their son Paul 
and his daughter 
Brieanna  
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The two children of Horace Burton Bratfield 
1886-1965 have had their ashes interred and 
spread on the farm at Stroud Road. Plaques on 
rocks on the side of The Nob the round hill that 
straddles the two farms is a fitting resting place.   

 

Rosedale above, the chicken sheds on the left and the farmhouses near the cetre 

The original property line between Rosedale & Lillydale is about where the dark green 
pasture ends in the centre of the photo The farm house is also near centre.                                           

 



234 
 

 
 

Above: Gloria wife of Jim Bratfield, Rhys Bratfield son of Todd and Paul, Gloria’s son who with 
his daughter (Brieanna) manages the farms Rosedale & Lillydale. Rhys and Brieanna’s partner 
Owen Daley also work and help manage the farms.  
Top Right: Stroud Road (The village a kilometre from the farm that is essentially a general store 
and railway station and a dozen hosues) 
Below From the western side of the farm looking east. The railway line runs through the farm & 
Reidsdale Rd divides it east/west. And inside one of the chicken raising sheds 
Site of the original farm buildings (see photo of railway bridge and buildings from 1911)  

 
The 5 generations of Bratfields who have farmed Rosedale 
Thomas 1844-1907 & his wife Bridget (He bought the farm in 1864/65) 
Arichbald 1882-1978 (at various times all of his brothers & sisters helped on the farm)  
Mark James (JIM) 1932-2018 (Jim & his wife Gloria buy the farm in 1979) 
(Jims father had previously bought Lillydale so in 1979 the two farms in effect became one) 

Paul 1964- (His 3 brothers and his sister all grew up on the farm have moved and 
undertaken other careers) 
Breianna 1994- (The 5th  generation taking up the farming mantle)  
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The family of Jim and Gloria Bratfield 
Jim’s father was Horace Burton Bratfield 1886-1965 and his grandfather was Thomas 

Bratfield 1844-1907& his great grandfather was Joseph Bratfield 1802-1886  
Mark James (Jim) Bratfield, b. 27 Dec 1932 in Stroud, d. 24 Jul 2018 in Stroud Road. 
     He married Gloria Dawn Carroll, married 09 Nov 1957. 
  A. James Scott Bratfield, b. 13 Jan 1962 in Stroud.(Spent some years 
managing the farm but gaining qualifications as a motor vehicle mechanic he took up an 
offer to buy Ollie’s Service Centre in Gloucester)  
   He married Keryn Waldron, b. 1966. 
  1. Loryn Elise Bratfield, b. 6 Feb 1991. 
    She married Joshua Gilbert. 
    a.       Adeline Poet Gilbert, b. 14 Aug 2023. 
  2. Thomas James Bratfield, b. 16 Feb1993. 
  3. Alex Scott Bratfield, b. Mar 1995. 
 B. Paul Anthony Bratfield, b. 29 Sep 1964 in Stroud. (Manages the farms 
Rosedale and Lillydale) 
   He married Karen Woodward, b. 20 Apr 1966. 
  1. Brieanna Bratfield, b. 4 Jan 1994. (Manages the dairying at 
Rosedale & Lillydale)  
    Her partner Owen Daley. 
   a.     Hugo Jeremy Daley, b. 6 Sep 2016. 
     b. Winnie El Daley, b. 4 Jan 2019. 
   c. Theodore Owen Daley, b. 23 Nov 2020. 
   d. Clancy James Daley, b. 2 Dec 2022. 
 C. Todd Andrew Bratfield, b. 08 Sep 1966 in Stroud. (The need to live closer 
to medical services for his family Todd moved to Stockton, Newcastle)  
  He married Sharon Christie. 
  1. Rhys James Bratfield, b. 16 Jul 1996. (Works on the farms) 
  2. Kate Kristie Bratfield, b. 17 Nov 1998. 
 D. Jason Mark Bratfield, b. 30 Oct 1970 in Stroud. (Lives at Old Bar and is a 
linesman working on high power electricity lines ne previously worked as a helicopter pilot 
in WA) 
  He married Michelle. 
 E. Nicole Ann Bratfield, b. 20 Apr 1973. (Lives in Bellingen and is the deputy 
principal at the primary school) 
  She married Malcolm McFarlane. 
  1. Liam McFarlane, b. 4 May 2005. 
  2. Hugh McFarlane, b. 23 May 2008. 
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Bratfield/Bradfield Grave Locations 
Grafton NSW Cemetery - Joseph Bradfield 1802-1886 

 
 

Grafton NSW Cemetery - Joseph Bradfield 1802-1886 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
Stroud NSW Cemetery – Bratfield/Bradfield graves 

CATHOLIC 

Bridget Bratfield (Callian) 
1932 

Vincent Bratfield 1907 

Thomas Bratfield 1961 

Avar (Nean) Bratfield 1974 

Archibald Bratfield 1978 

Evelyn Allen (Bratfield) 
1960 

Margaret (Madge) Bratfield 
1947 

Mary (Marie) Bratfield 1951 

 

CHURCH OF ENGLAND 

Thomas Bratfield 1907 

John Henry Bratfield 1907 

George Leonard Bratfield 
(Son of Horace) 1919 

Horace Bratfield 1965 

Agnes Bratfield (Lecky) 
1988 

Stan Allen (Husband of 
Evelyn Bratfield) 1972 

Amy (Bratfield) 1943 & 
Tom Carter 1938 

 


